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2007
Tanla lists on premier
stock exchanges NSE, BSE, in
addition to existing listings
Tanla Solutions records growth
in revenues and profitability with
Consolidated total income increasing
by 262.8% Y-O-Y and
net profit by 206% Y-O-Y
Tanla Solutions pays
an interim dividend of 100%
in March,
compared with 25% in the
previous year

2006
2005

Company’s Follow-on Public Offer in December

Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
acquires Mobizar Limited
(Now known as Tanla Mobile Limited) as
wholly owned subsidiary in September

Establishes business relationships with renowned
telecom operators like Vodafone, 02, Orange

2004
Acquires two companies as
wholly-owned subsidiaries:

Starts Research and Development on Telemetry

2003
SS7 VMS implementation

2002

Implements High-Density
Media Servers

Implements ORS

Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
(formerly known as Techserv
Teleservices)
and
Smartnet Communication Systems
in December

Starts Research and Development
on SS7-based voice mail server

2001
First SMSC implementation
Starts research and development
on Optimal Routing Solutions
(ORS)

2000
On 16th March, the Company
changes its name to
Tanla Solutions Limited
Starts research and development
on SMSC and WAP Gateway

1999
Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy
and Associates take over
management control
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ENTERPRISE MOBILITY
THE NEXT WAVE IN MOBILE SERVICES
“We’re making a bet that what happened to PCs,
will happen to smart phones”
— Ed Zander,
CEO, Motorola

ata services and applications is the next wave in mobile services as carriers
across the world target customers with a myriad range of entertainment,
content and tools. There are a multitude of initiatives being undertaken by
carriers across the globe with a focus on driving higher per user revenue by
offering various value-added services. These services have been a crucial
element in providing better entertainment to the consumers and improving
revenues for the carriers. Currently, the growth in data services has been more prevalent in
developed markets, with emerging markets slated to exhibit similar growth in the future. In fact,
the growth in data services will be led by Asia Pacific and Europe, both in terms of subscriber
volume and value.

D

Sophistication of mobile devices, rapid increase in wireless bandwidth and the transformation of
mobile phones from a communication device to the center of consumer lifestyle are driving the
adoption of data services. Encouraged by the trend in adoption among individuals, even
enterprises have begun to implement mobile technologies to connect employees throughout the
organization. For enterprises, the need for remote access to company resources through a variety
of platforms has assumed greater importance as traditional brick-and-mortar offices give way to
a dispersed workforce with remote employees maintaining a virtual presence within an
enterprise. Enterprises see significant benefits in providing mobile access to relevant, real-time
information to employees, especially mobile workers typically represented by sales and field
personnel. It is becoming a common sight to see workers touting blackberries, PDAs and
smartphones, accessing corporate information systems on the move.

ENTERPRISE MOBILITY

Technology companies and carriers are responding to the demand with new technologies to
help enterprises incorporate mobility into their systems. Features that were exclusively in the
domain of computers earlier are being ported over to mobile devices with increasing frequency,
leading these devices down the same path that made computers a dominant force in home and
office technologies. Email and PIM functions are becoming commoditized to a great extent not
only in developed markets but also in emerging markets. Enterprises are now strategizing to
take mobility to the next level by providing convenient access to enterprise applications
through mobile devices.
The industry is churning out micro-versions of popular enterprise applications like CRM,
forecasting systems and inventory management that can be run from mobile devices. The
development of such applications is, however, at a very nascent stage and the general view is
that these applications and the device platforms need to be more sophisticated as many mobile
applications remain watered down versions of desktop enterprise tools. This situation offers
significant opportunities for developers to create path-breaking mobile applications and
platforms that satisfy the needs of enterprises in terms of ease of use, security, and flexibility.
The next five years will see widespread adoption of mobile enterprise technologies as
technological developments mature into fully functional, user-friendly applications that drive
businesses.
Although rapid progress is being made to turn enterprise mobility into reality, concerns such
as security and device management still remain among the top issues facing enterprises
looking at mobile applications. A larger prevailing issue is who does one turn to for
implementing mobile enterprise services? Traditionally, carriers may be at the top-of-mind
recall but as enterprise mobility goes beyond just email, vertically-integrated software vendors,
hosted service providers application development platform vendors and device vendors are
becoming the obvious choices. The recent introduction of Vodafone Application Service for
mobilizing applications which including salesforce.com and SAP, is an example of a carrierinitiated service. Vendors, however, are not far behind and although they yet have to fully
mobilize their applications, efforts are being made to accelerate the rollout.
Companies looking to go mobile need to consider a few key points that help in enhancing the
usefulness of their mobile enterprise systems. First, mobile applications need to be designed
keeping the end user in mind to ensure that widespread adoption takes place within the
enterprise. Second, systems need to support multiple devices rather than having multiple
applications supporting a single device because variance in needs of different business units,
geographies, carriers and even technologies need to be accommodated. Lastly, if mobile
access to enterprise systems extends beyond a few executives, using a hosted service offers
the flexibility for employees to access data from a variety of devices and service providers can
guarantee message delivery regardless of geographical location.
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CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE
“With close to 3 billion
global mobile subscribers and
a digital convergence of
telecommunication services, you may
think that the communications boom
has already arrived. However, with
more than half of the world’s
population yet to make
their first phone call, the
telecommunications revolution has
just begun.”
“At Tanla, we strongly believe that the
growing number of
telecommunications subscribers in
developing markets, coupled with the
availability of rich media
communication services in developed
markets will lead to an exponential
growth in the demand for converged
communications across multiple
digital channels.”

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

n behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to extend a hearty welcome to all our shareholders, most
of whom are new members of the Tanla family. Our Follow On Public offer of 1,58,85,000 equity shares
for Rs.2/- each at a premium of Rs. 263/- in December 2006 stood out for its success in spite of volatile
market conditions. The issue was oversubscribed by more than 38 times its total size of Rs. 421 Crores. The
institutional segment was oversubscribed by 57 times, reinforcing Foreign Institutional Investors’ (FII) and
Domestic Institutional investors’ interest in the company. FII holding now stands at approximately 34% and
market capitalization as on March 31, 2007 stood at Rs. 1732 Crores. Retail participation was extremely
enthusiastic and our family of shareholders has now exceeded 1,00,000. I would like to place on record our
sincere gratitude to all of you for reposing your faith in us. I would also like to thank SBI Capital Markets, IL &
FS Investsmart, ICICI Securities and Kotak Securities in making the FPO a huge success.

O

Last year has been exceptional both in terms of the company’s capitalization and exponential growth in financial
performance. On a consolidated basis Total Income increased from Rs. 63.12 Crores in 2005-06 to Rs. 229
Crores posting a 263% growth. Net Profit for the year ended March 31, 2007 stood at Rs. 92.79 Crores, up from
Rs. 30.25 Crores in FY 2006. This translates into a consolidated EPS of Rs. 24.31 on a weighted average equity
capital of the company. You would also be happy to know that the company has declared a dividend of 100% for
the last financial year as compared to 25% in FY 2006. These numbers are all the more heartening in light of the
fact that our subsidiary, Tanla Mobile (UK), is one of the youngest and fastest growing primary aggregators in
the UK. Tanla Mobile’s business model of providing end-to-end solutions including mobile messaging and
payment services coupled with integrated interactive media platforms, application development, hosted
infrastructure services and support is adding real value to our customers in terms of speeding up time-to-market
for their telecommunications, digital content delivery and media services. We hope to substantially increase our
market share in the UK in the coming period. Consolidating on these firm foundations, we are set to launch our
operations into new geographies. We have extended our UK footprint into Ireland and are well on a way to roll
out in the US, Singapore, UAE, Australia and Canada. Towards this, we have added significant leadership
bandwidth and recruited senior professionals to head our Business Units, Sales, Marketing, Quality and Business
Excellence initiatives. All these professionals bring in a wealth of experience to our fold, having previously
worked with the best companies in the Telecom domain.
Based on the envisaged project outlay during the last issue, our company is progressing well on schedule to
enhance our infrastructure capabilities. Our new development centre at Hyderabad would be ready by the third
quarter of FY 2008. We also continue to capitalize our existing and new operations to cater to the budgeted and
planned expansion. Going forward, the company would be laying emphasis on global network connectivity and
product development. These would be both in existing and new geographies. I am happy to announce that our
company now has ISO 9001:2000 international quality system standard and ISO 27001 information security
certification, and we are now working towards getting CMMi Level 3 certification in software design, delivery,
product and system integration. Our company has also planned to implement world class people management
practices in accordance with PCMM (People Capability Maturity Model), which will support Tanla’s journey of
process-driven business excellence. We are now truly at an inflection point in our growth story. The journey of
exponential growth comes with its own challenges which we are confident of meeting. Being a people centric
business, we continuously need to raise the bar in adopting Human Resources best practices to overcome
employee turnover and retention issues. Inorganic growth options have to be carefully weighed for both shortterm and long-term implications on the business. Identifying and evaluating suitable and synergistic acquisitions
at high levels of world economic growth require all the dexterity of thought leadership and due diligence which
the company hopes to provide.
I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow board members, business partners, employees and all
other stake holders for the unequivocal support extended.
Warm Regards,
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director
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BUSINESS
REVIEW

A Transformational Year
The last year has been a watershed in terms of exponential growth and progress experienced by our
business. We recorded a 263% growth in consolidated total income reaching Rs. 221.85 crore (up from
Rs. 63 crore in FY 2006) and a 207% growth in net profit of Rs. 92.79 crore (up from Rs. 30 crore for
FY 2006).
FY 2007 was also an important year in the strategic development of our business, one in which we
significantly strengthened our position in India and the UK and laid the foundation for extensive
international expansion.
We extended our footprint into Ireland by signing revenue sharing agreements for mobile payments and
premium messaging services with all Irish Mobile Operators including 3, O2, Meteor and Vodafone. Our
strategic expansion into Ireland gives our customers an excellent opportunity to reach a wider audience
and take advantage of the common SMS Short Code numbering between the UK and Ireland. The Irish
mobile market is one of the most advanced in Europe, if not the world, with penetration of 100%.
Moreover, the typical average revenue per user is high at around £55 per month.
Our international mobile payments and messaging aggregation business experienced phenomenal
growth with increased usage of mobile content and premium billing services by our clients. We have
been successful at growing our market share in the UK while maintaining margins through our approach
of providing end-to-end solutions for our clients. This increased business resulted in growth of premium
SMS and messaging revenues generated in partnership with mobile operators including 3, O2, Orange,
T-Mobile, Vodafone and Virgin Mobile as well as growth in our offshore services business,with the
signing up of many high profile international customers including Skype, Breathe, 4D Interactive and
Tele2.

“We are moving into a world of Applications Anywhere Anytime. To harness the
power of mobility requires specialist providers such as Tanla Solutions who are
able to bridge the Content and Network worlds, to deliver best in class but useful
Applications that customers truly value”

Mike Short,
Chairman, Mobile Data Association

BUSINESS REVIEW

D. Uday Kumar Reddy & Gautam Sabharwal
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Tanla was also one of the first companies to
achieve PAYFORIT accreditation as an
authorised mobile payments intermediary for
all UK Mobile Operators offering WAP-based
payments aggregation services including 3,
O2, Orange, T-Mobile, Vodafone and Virgin
Mobile. PAYFORIT is a cross-network mobile
payments and transactions framework which
is designed to further develop the mobile
commerce and payments market by offering
a ubiquitous interface enabled by accredited
payment intermediaries. Mobile payment
services growth is underpinned by an
increased consumer demand for digital
content and premium entertainment
services. Mobile Entertainment, Interactive
TV, Video, Music and Games are
spearheading the growth in demand.
According to analysts’ forecasts from
Informa Telecoms & Media, the global
mobile entertainment market will be worth
$23.1 billion in revenues by 2007.
FY07 saw the launch of our new Interactive
TV platform which enables media owners to
add mobile interactivity via SMS, MMS and
video messaging integrating into live TV
programs. We also launched our new 3G
Video dialling service that lets consumers’
video dial into live and recorded
entertainment content. We have also signed
up new customers for whom we are
developing customised mobile interactive TV

and video applications aimed at the social
networking, user generated content and
community TV portals market.
Our strategy of selling our products on a
revenue sharing basis also saw an increased
uptake from existing customers as well as
interest from new service providers in the
MVNO space. Typically the MVNO business
model is not very capital intensive at the
initial stage and the revenue share model fits
in very well in this space.
International Expansion
In February 2007, we unveiled our plans for
international expansion into North America,
South East Asia and Australia at the 3GSM
event in Barcelona. We will start operations
in North America by setting up firstly in the
USA which has over 230 million mobile
subscribers with five main mobile operators
and several virtual network operators. The
average revenue per user per month varies
between $50 and $61 across different
mobile operators making it a highly attractive
market. We believe that the market for mobile
services in North America is still very
nascent and our entry at this stage will allow
us the opportunity to benefit from the growth
as it unfolds.
The US market is also important for us as all
the major software vendors and several

“Breathe is committed to providing the latest services to its subscribers
so it seemed an obvious choice for us to take advantage of mobile/PC
convergence and create a new SMS service for our users. Tanla Mobile is a
proven leader in the mobile field and therefore the natural choice to deliver this
critical new service.”
MARCUS EAST, CEO, BREATHE NETWORKS LTD

BUSINESS REVIEW

global internet brands have their international
headquarters there. It is important that we
take advantage of the opportunity to help
develop and implement their mobile strategy.
We plan to start operations in the Middle East
by initially launching in Dubai, UAE. We
intend to service the South East Asian market
by setting up our business in Singapore. We
believe that Dubai and Singapore are the
mobile innovation centres of Asia which
complement the technological developments
and market growth being experienced by
India and China.
We also plan to begin operations in Australia
which has over 20 million mobile
subscribers and a highly developed mobile
content market. There are four main mobile
operators in Australia including Hutchison,
Optus, Telstra and Vodafone with several
virtual operators using their networks.
Senior Management Appointments
We have expanded our senior management
team by making some strategic
appointments in India and overseas. We have
appointed senior industry executives to head
different global business functions including
international Marketing, Operations and Sales
based out of our London offices. We have
also appointed a new President for Quality
& Business Excellence to further strengthen
our commitment to quality and adherence to

internationally
processes.

recognised

business

We will continue to announce several
key management appointments in 2007
aimed at creating a global organisation.
We are currently building a global Sales,
Marketing and Technical organisation to
further accelerate mobile payments,
interactive applications and messaging
services business.
Building a Vertical Market
Sectors-Based Organisation
We have restructured the teams based on
our four main vertical market sectors
which are:
1. Mobile Media & Broadcast
2. Digital Content & Mobile Entertainment
3. Mobile Advertising & Marketing
4. Enterprise & Public Sector
The Media & Broadcast sector is at
the forefront of adding interactive
mobile services such as SMS Voting for
reality TV programs, Competitions, Mobile
TV
and
Video
Calling
over
3G aimed at increasing viewership and
generating revenues. The Digital Content &
Mobile Entertainment sectors have
traditionally been pioneering the market for
premium content delivered to phones such

“We were the first to offer television-based social networking in the UK and with
this deal we’re again preparing to break new ground. The relationship with Tanla
Mobile will improve not only the content and reach of our channels but will help
us deliver even tighter integration with our mobile, 3G Video and web-based
chat services.”
DAVID LEE, MANAGING DIRECTOR FOR 4D INTERACTIVE
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as music (ringtones), games and videos.
Tanla will provide a complete solution
to the sector including mobile messaging,
payments, content management, multimedia
applications and service delivery.
Mobile Advertising and Marketing is
one of the fastest growing sectors where
global brands are launching interactive
mobile campaigns and portals to promote
products. With increased penetration of
mobile Internet-enabled phones and major
search engines partnering with mobile
operators to provide paid for advertising, this
sector is creating new opportunities to
transfer the internet advertising model onto
mobile phones.
Yahoo, Google and Microsoft are already very
active in the mobile advertising and search
engine market creating an environment for
further growth. There are new virtual mobile
operators such as Blyk, which is launching an
entirely new concept where consumers will
be getting free phone calls and messaging in
exchange for accepting targeted advertising.
Tanla is well placed to technically enable mobile
marketing and advertising services by providing
specialist mobile campaign management,
interactive services and delivery using its
existing product suite. Lastly the demand for
wireless applications and services from the
enterprise and public sector is increasing with

“3 welcomes Tanla Mobile to

the network on both
Premium Messaging and PAYFORIT services and looks
forward to Tanla and its customers bringing great new
and well run services to our highly active
customer base.”
RORY MAGUIRE,
HEAD OF 3RD PARTY SERVICES UK & IRELAND, 3

“The

mobile interactive
services
market
is
growing exponentially with
an increased demand for
digital content and media applications.
O2 highly values its partnership with
Tanla where we are working together
to provide cutting edge messaging
solutions and mobile services to this
fast growing sector”
NIGEL DEAN, Head of Interactive
Sales, O2 UK Ltd
field service automation, wireless telematics
and mobile working creating a demand for
managed wireless services.
All our vertical market sectors have an
increased demand for mobile messaging,
applications and payment services. Tanla is
highly encouraged by the drive
towards global mobilisation of the IT,
Communications and Media sectors and
we believe that we are well placed to
enable mobile services for these
high-growth markets.
Digital Convergence
With the convergence of Web, TV and Mobile,
media owners are developing an integrated
content and communications strategy.
According to Deloitte Consulting, by 2010,
emerging convergence products and services
will generate at least a trillion dollars in revenue
globally. Digital content publishers and brands
are focused on monetising content and
delivering services across multiple platforms.
This trend towards converging media is creating

BUSINESS REVIEW

an increased demand for our products and
services. Tanla specialises in integrating mobile
with other media channels as we are doing with
our interactive TV, mobile content and
community platforms.
3G & High Speed Data
With most European operators launching 3G
services and the widespread availability of
higher speed data access, the demand for
media rich content is rising. Mobile
Entertainment Services and Content
consumption is increasing with Music, Video
and TV services being launched by many
mobile operators including 3, O2, Orange
and Vodafone.
According to Juniper Research, the global value
of the mobile entertainment market, including
music, games, TV, sports and infotainment
content is forecasted to increase to nearly
$77 billion by 2011, driven by a buoyant Asian
market, demand for mobile TV and high-end
digital media applications. Tanla has developed
3G Video calling and interactive TV platforms to
service the demand from Entertainment Content
Publishers to deliver richer services over
3G networks.
Multimedia Handsets
The growth of mobile data services
has been accelerated by the launch
of feature rich handsets with higher storage
capacity, integrated media players, high
resolution imaging and camera capabilities.
Nokia recently launched the Nokia N95 with
built-in GPS navigation, 5 megapixel camera,
web browsing, wi-fi connectivity, MP3 player
and many more rich features. This is an
example of handsets turning more like hand held
computers
capable
of
advanced
communications and consumption of
multimedia content. The wide-spread
penetration of feature rich handsets can lead to
an increased demand for premium content and

“The Mobile Content sector is seeing
accelerated growth yet is faced by
challenges in monetising its digital
assets. Tanla Solutions is ideally placed
to provide digital content owners an end-to-end
mobile solution enabling mobile service delivery,
content management and billing”
GRAHAM BROWN,
DIRECTOR, WIRELESS WORLD FORUM
services. Tanla is well placed to service the
needs of content publishers with our mobile
content management solution which will
help digital content brands make most of
this opportunity.
End-to-End Mobile Content Solutions
and Applications
The market for mobile content and services is
highly fragmented with many small vendors
providing different components of the solution.
Tanla is well placed as an end-to-end mobile
solutions provider helping content brands to
focus on marketing of services and letting us
deliver the complete technical solution. Tanla
helps digital content brands and media owners
maximise their content’s potential by providing
them with customised mobile applications,
interactive media platforms, integrated
content management, messaging and mobile
payment solutions.
Our three-fold expansion strategy aimed at
geographical, product-based and vertical
market growth gives us a focus on generating
revenues and gaining market share across the
spectrum of opportunities created by the global
mobilisation of economies, businesses
and communities.
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

<<D. Uday Kumar Reddy

<<Gautam Sabharwal
Satish Kathirisetti>>
D. Uday Kumar Reddy,
Chairman & Managing Director

Uday is one of the founding members of Tanla. An entrepreneur,
he has an excellent reputation among colleagues, business
partners and customers for his combination of strategic insight,
operational expertise and technological and financial skills.
He has been instrumental in leading the organisation’s
significant increase in revenue and profitability. He holds an
MBA from UK.

Satish Kathirisetti,

Gautam Sabharwal,
Director-Global Business Development

Director & CTO

Gautam is responsible for Tanla’s global Business
Development. Specialising in market visualisation,
approach strategies and sales initiatives, he has
comprehensive knowledge of the Telecom Services
Industry – managing a number of successful
businesses within the European emerging telecom
services markets. His business acumen, strategic
planning capabilities, combined with his in-depth
understanding of Tanla’s core business, contributed
to the company’s continued growth. He holds an
MBA from UK.

INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

Abhishek Khaitan

Satish has significant technology,
programming and domain expertise in the
Telecom and Systems Engineering arena.
He has a proven track record in the design and
delivery of mission critical systems, and is a
strong advocate of the Open Source
Foundation. He holds an M.E. from Madras
Institute of Technology.

Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal
Director

An LLB (Hons.) and
Solicitor, he has
worked with
companies in both
India and England.
He is currently a
solicitor with The
Bower Cotton Partnership, a London-based firm
specialising in Commercial Property, Company
Law, Litigation and Private Clients. He is a
board member of Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
and Mobizar Limited, UK.

Director

A distinguished
scientist, his
achievements include
Padmashree
in 1990 and
Padmabhushan in
2000, the
Dr. Biren Roy Space Science Award (1990)
Aero Society of India, Scientist of the Year
Award (1993), DRDO Technology Leadership
Award (1998), Chandrasekhar Saraswati
National Eminence Award for Science (2000)
and Life Time Achievement Award (2004). He
has over 40 years experience in Missile
Technology; Lead Long Range Missile Systems,
Design and Development: AGNI Series. He
worked as Program Director (AGNI) and till
recently as Director, Advanced Systems
Laboratory, DRDO. He holds an M.E. from
Aero-IISc, Bangalore, is a graduate of Madras
Institute of Technology.

Dr. Sudhanshu Shekhar Jamuar
Director

Dr. Jamuar has held a
number of positions
with IIT Delhi, Kanpur
and Hindustan
Aeronautics Ltd.,
Lucknow. He is now a
Professor at the
University Putra Malaysia. In 1976 he was
granted the Meghanad Saha Memorial Award
from The Institution of Electronics &
Telecommunication Engineers, New Delhi. He
has registered several patents, and published
and presented articles and papers in journals
and at conferences. He holds a doctorate in
Study of Tracking Filter FM Modulation and a
Masters in Technology from IIT Kanpur.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Amit Gupta>>
Amit Gupta,
Director-Finance

Amit is an expert in the BFSI and
software engineering sectors.
Before joining Tanla, he worked
with Ernst & Young and KPMG,
specializing in Financial
Planning and Information
Technology consulting services
for Global 2000 companies.
He has worked on projects
ranging from business process
engineering to implementation of
enterprise applications for large
financial institutions. He holds a
B.Tech. from IIT Delhi.

<<Anoop Roy Kundal

Anoop Roy Kundal,
Director-Operations

Anoop works across a wide range of technologies. With
comprehensive understanding of object-oriented design and
enterprise software development, he has worked on state-of-the-art
business solutions employing multi-layered architecture designs
and applications development and deployment. His specialised field
is Business Intelligence. He holds a B.Tech. from IIT Delhi.

<<Navnit Chachan
Navnit Chachan,
Director-Research & Development

Navnit has designed, developed,
implemented and enhanced software
programs across various operating
systems. Prior to joining Tanla, he
worked with Reliance Industries
Limited. His area of expertise is open
source technologies. He holds a
B.Tech. from IIT Delhi.

Prof S. K. Palhan

Shrikant Madan Chitnis
Director

Prof. Palhan is an
engineering graduate
from I.I.T Kharagpur.
He did his DIM & MBA
from FMS Delhi
University and
Advanced Training in
Industrial Management in the Netherlands. He
was formerly Industrial Adviser in the Ministry
of Industries and Director on the board of Traco
Cable company (1990-1998). He is the Dean
of Knowledge Network India, an institution
conducting management and I.T courses
(MBA, MIT, BBS&BIT). He is also the vice
president of the Vivekananda Centre for
Holistic Management.

Villadath Harish Kumar
Director

Previously a General
Manager with IDBI
Bank. Mr. Chitnis was
the Managing Director
of the Mauritius
Development Bank and
acted as Consultant to
the World Bank. He holds an MBA, MA, LLB
and a CAIIB.

Director

An LLB, and member
of the Institute of
Company Secretaries
of India, he is a
practising Advocate in
the High Court of
Andhra Pradesh.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Dear Shareholders,
e at Team Investor
Relations wish to
thank all shareholders
for expressing their trust
in Tanla by virtue of the
large number of Retail and
Institutional applications during the Follow On
Public Offer in December 2006. We would
seek to address any issue and provide
information you might require. At Tanla we
encourage stakeholder feedback and would
be glad to hear from you. We will be reaching
out to you through our website
www.tanlasolutions.com with periodic SMS
alerts, newsletters and mails on corporate
developments. We request you to register on
our website to receive these updates. We at
Tanla are passionate about all inclusive
shareholder delight. Do email any specific
query to us at:
investorhelp@tanlasolutions.com
We can also be reached at:
+91 40 40099999.

W

D

Contact Rohit Midha at:
ir@tanlasolutions.com
For assistance/queries on equity shares you
may write to our registrars:
Karvy Computershare Private Limited
“Karvy House”
46, Avenue 4, Street No: 1,
Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad 500 034.
Andhra Pradesh, India.
Tel: +91 40 23320251/ 23312454
Fax: +91 40 23431551
E-mail: mailmanager@karvy.com
Website: www.karvy.com

TANLA IN THE NEWS DURING FPO
Public Offer: Tanla Solutions
“The public offer of Tanla Solutions has
received an excellent response from
investors and has been subscribed
39 times.”
— December 20, 2006,
Business Standard

Tanla Solutions IPO Subscribed
More Than 33 Times Despite
Market Crash
“The IPO of Tanla Solution Limited has
received an excellent response from
investors and has been subscribed more
than 33 times despite the stock market
crash of over 1000 points on BSE Sensex.”
— December 24, 2006,
Finance Today
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WELL-DEFINED METRICS
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A

t Tanla we are committed to
the highest standards of
honesty in every aspect of our
business. We value and practice
honesty, integrity and ethical
business practices.
We pursue excellence in
everything we do, bettering the
best each time. Every facet of our
business reflects the highest level
of customer service and quality
with value. We are perceptive,
attentive, and responsive to the
needs of our customers.

“Mobile applications and solutions is a
very exciting space to be working in”
“Tanla being a futuristic organization
and entrepreneurial is a great place
to participate and create value”
— N. V. Subba Rao
President & CEO, Tanla Mobile Inc.
(PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED WITH BHARTI AIRTEL;
B.TECH/M.TECH FROM IIT, BOMBAY, MBA)

Tanla is driven by well-defined
metrics. All aspects have
measurements, which help the
organization in its continuous
improvement process.
We have a performance
management system, which
rewards good performance and
also identifies poor or low
performers for appropriate action.
Employees are empowered with
appropriate delegation of powers
to execute their authority.
Learning and development takes
prime focus at Tanla. Each
employee has to undergo eight
days of training in a year as part
of continuous learning and
knowledge updation process.
Tanla has a culture where
employees are encouraged
to get into open discussions.
Our culture-building and
entertainment includes team
lunches, picnics, annual day
celebrations, periodic sports
events and social activities.
Employees are also encouraged
to bring their friends into the
company by way of referral
bonus schemes.

“Tanla Solutions is a dynamic and
highly regarded telecoms solutions
provider with an enviable range of
marquee clients in India and overseas
so this position presents a challenge that
I can relish. I am delighted to take the
next step in my career with this
innovative company and look forward to
further build on the company's
commitment to quality and
business excellence”
— Bhushan Dewan
President-Quality & Business Excellence
(PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED WITH TCS;
M.TECH FROM IIT DELHI, PGDCM)

WELL-DEFINED METRICS

“Tanla’s financial strength, development
resource and International poise
attracted me”
— Gerry Drew

“I preferred joining Tanla since it is a reputed
product development company in the Telecom
domain with demonstrated deliveries of carrier
grade class”

Head of Sales, Tanla Mobile (UK)

— Sashi Kala Jagadam

(JOINED FROM OPERA TELECOM AND PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED
AS COMMERCIAL DIRECTOR AT O2)

Technical Architect
(PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED WITH WIPRO)

“Tanla’s inherent strengths of developing
telecom products have attracted me to make

“I am delighted to be joining Tanla Mobile
at a time of exponential growth and global
market expansion. The company is young
and exciting with unrivalled technological
advantages to capitalise on the growing
mobile and digital communications sector”
— Anuj Khanna
Head of Marketing, Tanla Mobile
(PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED WITH NETSIZE, MBA)

this career choice”
— Balachary D
Project Manager
(PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED WITH WIPRO)

“Tanla gives me a vast canvass to develop new
products in the telecom domain”
— S Manish Pratap Singh
Project Manager
(PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED WITH NOKIA)

“Tanla’s dynamism and exciting growth trajectory have

“With high caliber technical and managerial

attracted me to this role which assumes a great
significance after the Company’s Follow on Issue and
resultant capitalisation”

promoters, I see myself on an exciting career
growth path in an ever changing technology
environment”
— Lakshmi Prasannam C

— Rohit Midha

Delivery Manager

Head-Corporate Affairs

(PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED WITH VIRTUSA)

(PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED WITH APEEJAY SURRENDRA GROUP, MBA)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Members,
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 11th Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of
Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2007.
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
You will be glad to note that your Company has achieved a total revenue of Rs. 9113.64 Lakhs as against
Rs.4194.93 Lakhs in the previous year, thus registering an increase of 117%. The Company has earned a Gross
profit of Rs.5594.67 Lakhs before depreciation and other income as against Rs.2765.77 Lakhs in the previous
year. After deducting Rs.586.01 Lakhs as provision for depreciation& amortization and Rs.158.15 Lakhs as
income tax provision, the operations resulted in a net profit of Rs.5762.71 Lakhs as against Rs.2573.39 Lakhs in
the previous year, thereby recording a growth of 124%.
DIVIDEND
Your Directors take pleasure in informing you that an interim dividend @100% (Rs.2/- per share of Rs.2/- face
value) on the paid-up Equity Share Capital was declared for the year 2006-07. The interim dividend was paid to
all those equity shareholders whose names appeared in the register of members and as beneficial owners as
furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited as on March
26 2007.
The net cash outflow including dividend distribution tax was Rs.1140 Lakhs. Considering the requirement of
funds, the Board of Directors have not recommended any final dividend and interim dividend may itself be
considered as the final dividend.
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors’ Responsibility
Statement is given in Annexure-A which forms part of this report.

DISCLOSURES :
Particulars pursuant to Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules,1988
A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Our operations are not energy intensive. However, significant measures are taken to reduce energy consumption
by using energy-efficient computers and purchasing energy efficient equipment. We constantly evaluate new
technologies and invest to make our infrastructure more energy efficient.
B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORBTION
Research and development of new products, processes and methodologies continue to be of importance to us.
This allows us to enhance quality, productivity and customer satisfaction through continuous innovation. Our
Company continues to invest in rapidly changing technologies and use them to improve the quality of the
products’ service offerings. This has resulted in an overall reduction in defect rates and a higher level of customer
satisfaction.
C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
In fiscal 2007, net revenues earned in foreign exchange was Rs.678,319,133.
Gross foreign exchange revenue earned: Rs.833,373, 825
Gross foreign exchange outgo: Rs.155,054,692
a.
b
c
d.

Cost of services Rs.134,743,879
Cost of travel Rs.1,596,559
Professional charges Rs.6,797,950
Cost of capital goods imported Rs.11,916,304

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

D) PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
Pursuant to the Provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended, the name and other particulars of employee are as under:
Sl.No Name of the Employee

Age

Designation

1

40

CFO

Mr. Akash Rukhaiyar

Gross
Remuneration
(Paid Up To
March 31,
2007)
Rs.
*8,039,998

Qualification

Experience
in Years

Post Graduate 17
Diploma in
Management –
Indian Institute
of Management,
Bangalore

Date
Particulars of
of
Last
Commencement Employment
of
Employment
01/10/2005

Senior
Manager with
Accenture
Services
Private
Limited

*Gross Remuneration includes Special Bonus of Rs.50 Lakhs paid during the year.

DIRECTORS
Padmabhushan R. N. Agarwal and Mr. S. M. Chitnis retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
During the year Mr. Amit Gupta, Director-Reference Architecture, was re-designated as Director-Finance.
Mr. Subir Mehra, who has been on the Board since November 2005, has informed the Company that owing to
personal obligations, he is unable to continue on the Board of Directors as an Independent Director, the Board
places on record appreciation to Mr. Subir Mehra for his valuable suggestions and presence during the Audit
Committee and Board meetings.
Prof. S. K. Palhan has been appointed as a Director under section 262 of the Companies Act, 1956, pursuant to
the resignation of Mr. Subir Mehra and would retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible,
offers himself for appointment.
The Remuneration Committee in its meeting held on July 18 2007 approved an increase in the remuneration
payable to Mr. D Uday Kumar Reddy, Mr. K. Satish, Mr.Anoop Roy Kundal, Mr.Navnit Chachan and Mr.Amit Gupta.
The remuneration payable to the Directors would also constitute commission as a component, which would be a
performance based incentive; Mr.Gautam Sabharwal would hereafter subject to the approval of the shareholders
be eligible for commission. The enhancement in remuneration payable to the said Directors shall be as set out in
the Notice convening the 11th Annual General Meeting, subject to the approval of the shareholders.
ESOP 2005: The shareholders at their meeting held on December 3, 2005, approved the issue of shares under
the Employee Stock Option Scheme 2005 and no options have been granted under the ESOP Scheme 2005,
during the year 2006-2007. Considering the changes in rules regulating the issue of options, it has been
proposed to the shareholders to approve a resolution as set out in the Notice convening 11th Annual General
Meeting in super session to the earlier resolution.
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FOLLOW ON PUBLIC ISSUE (FPO)
• DRHP was filed with SEBI on December 8 2005.
• Final Observations from SEBI allowing the Company to proceed with FPO was received on November 14,
2006.
• Updated DRHP with suggestions of SEBI was submitted to SEBI on November 17 2006.
• The Price Band as Rs.230 as the floor price and Rs.265/- as the cap price was fixed on November 22, 2006.
• RHP was filed with RoC on November 22, 2006.
• Marketing activities also started during the same period.
• The Promoter Contribution to the extent of 10% of the Public issue at cap price was brought in on December 7
2006.
• The Issue was opened on December 11 and closed on December 14, 2006.
• The Issue was over subscribed under various categories as follows:
Category
No. of Shares Available
QIB
7,148,250
Non-Institutional Investors
2,144,435
Retail Investors
2,003,775

No. of Shares Subscribed for
407,869,075
88,457,950
55,505,525

No. of Times Subscribed
57.06
41.58
11.09

• The Issue Price was decided as Rs. 265/ on December 16, 2006, and informed to the Stock Exchanges.
• The Basis of Allotment was approved by the BSE on December 27, 2006, and the Board of Directors on
December 28, 2006.
• The In-Principe Approvals were received from the Stock Exchanges on December 28, 2006.
• The shares were credited to the allottees on December 29, 2006.
• The final permission for listing of shares on the terminals of the BSE and NSE apart from HSE/MSE/ASE was
received on January 4, 2007. The permission to trade was given by Stock Exchanges w.e.f January 5, 2007.
Your Company has successfully completed the FPO in December 2006 and mobilized Rs.421 Crores from the
market.
The funds thus raised, have been utilized for the purposes as specified in the Prospectus. A statement showing
the utilization of funds is as follows:
Particulars
Funds raised on Follow on Public Offer of equity shares
Less: Utilized upto March 31, 2007
Expansion & Upgradation of Existing Research & Product Development facilities 16.83
For working capital requirements
341.93
For Issue expenses
1,933.49
General Corporate purposes
5,360.73
Funds unutilized as on March 31, 2007

(Rs. in Lakhs)
42,095.25

7,652.98
34,442.27

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS:
The relations with employees have been cordial throughout the year under review. Your Directors place on record
their sincere appreciation in respect of services rendered by the employees of the Company at all levels. The
number of employees as on March 31, 2007, of your Company along with its subsidiaries is approx. 300.
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AUDITORS:
The Statutory Auditors of the Company viz., M/s. Ramasamy Koteswara Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants retire at
the conclusion of the 11th Annual General Meeting and have confirmed their eligibility and willingness to accept
office, if re-appointed from the conclusion of the 11th Annual General Meeting up to the conclusion of the 12th
Annual General Meeting. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors recommended re-appointment of
Ramasamy Koteswara Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2007-2008.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
A detailed Management Discussion & Analysis report on the Financial Condition and Results of Operations of the
Company is included in this Annual Report.
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:
The Company has three wholly-owned subsidiaries viz. Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited, Smartnet Communication
Systems Private Limited and Tanla Mobile Asia Pacific Pte Limited. Tanla Mobile Limited (formerly known as
Mobizar Limited), UK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited.
Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited has moved to new premises during the year. Tanla Mobile is a leading innovator of
next generation mobile application solutions, m-commerce and interactive services. Tanla Mobile works in
partnership with global mobile operators across UK and Asia to deliver and bill mobile content over SMS, WAP,
MMS, Video, etc. Its product suite includes Mobile Payments Solutions, Campaign Management, Content
Management, 3G Video Management and Interactive TV Management applications. It has in the recent past
entered into partnerships with prestigious names like Skype, Breathe and 4D interactive.
Smartnet Communication Systems Private Limited was originally incorporated on November 16, 1998, a
company engaged in the business of R& D activities and development of solutions relating to both hardware and
software for various e-commerce applications. Operations in this Company have been insignificant.
The Registered Office of this Company has been shifted from the State of West Bengal to the State of Andhra
Pradesh as per the order of Eastern Company Law Board, Eastern Bench, it is presently located at Tanla
Technology Centre, Hi-tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081.
As indicated in the objectives of the Public Issue, the Company has initiated the process of expanding into other
geographies. Tanla Mobile Asia Pacific Pte Ltd, a subsidiary of Tanla Solutions Ltd has been incorporated in
Singapore, further Tanla Mobile Asia Pacific Pte Ltd have incorporated 2 subsidiaries, namely 1) Tanla Mobile
Inc., New Jersey, USA and 2) Tanla Mobile Ireland, Dublin Ireland as a step towards global expansion.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The Directors have pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March
31, 2007, which form part of the Annual Report.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
In pursuance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges, a separate section on
Corporate Governance has been incorporated in the Annual Report for the information of shareholders. A
certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated under the said clause also forms part of the Annual Report.
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FIXED DEPOSITS:
Your Company has not accepted/renewed any fixed deposits under section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956
during the year 2006-2007 and hence no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on the Balance
Sheet date.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
The Directors place on record their sincere appreciation and thanks for the valuable co-operation and support
received from the Company’s Bankers, Central and State Government Authorities, Consultants, Suppliers and
Members of the Company and look forward to the same in greater measure in the coming years. The Directors
specifically appreciate the confidence reposed in the Company and just completed FPO by the shareholders
and investors.

Annexure A
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors hereby state that:
a) In preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures.
b) We have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as on
March 31 2007, and of profits for the year ended on that date.
c) We have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities.
d) We have prepared the annual accounts on an ongoing concern basis.
Place: Hyderabad
Date: July 18, 2007

For and on behalf of the Board
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
In compliance with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges, the Company hereby
submits the report on the matters as mentioned in the said clause and practices followed by the Company.
1. PHILOSOPHY OF THE COMPANY ON THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
The Company aims at achieving transparency, accountability and equity in all facets of its operations and in all
interactions with stakeholders, including the shareholders, employees, government, and other constituents while
fulfilling the role of a responsible corporate representative committed to good corporate practices. The Company
is committed to achieving the good standards of Corporate Governance.
The Company believes that all its operations and actions must result in enhancement of the overall shareholder
value in terms of maximization of shareholder’s benefits etc., over a sustained period of time.
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board of Directors consists of 12 Directors with an Executive Chairman. Of the 12 Directors, six are
Independent and Non-Executive Directors (i.e.50%). The details of Composition and Category of Directors,
number of Board Meetings held during the year, Attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and Other
Directorships held by the Directors are as follows:
Name of the Director

Mr. Uday Kumar Reddy

Mr. Gautam Sabharwal

Mr.Satish Kathirisetti
Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal
Mr. Amit Gupta

Mr. Navnit Chachan

Category

Designation

No. of
meetings
held during
his tenure

No .of
meetings
attended
by him

Promoter /
Non- Independent
and Executive
Director
Non-Independent
and Executive
Director

Chairman
& Managing
Director

10

DirectorGlobal
Business
Development
Director &
CTO
DirectorOperations
DirectorReference
Architecture
DirectorR&D
Director

Non- Independent
and Executive Director
Non-Independent
and Executive Director
Non-Independent
and Executive Director

Non-independent
and Executive Director
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan
Non-Executive
and Independent Director
Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal
Non-Executive
and Independent Director
Mr. Sudhanshu Shekhar Jamuar
Non-Executive
and Independent Director
Mr. Subir Mehra
Non-Executive
and Independent Director
Mr. Shrikanth Madan Chitnis
Non-Executive
and Independent Director
Mr. Villadath Harish Kumar
Non-Executive
and Independent Director

His
Attendance
in the
Previous
AGM
Yes

His
Directorships
in other
companies

10

His
Committee
Memberships
in other
Companies
–

10

2

–

No

3

10

10

–

Yes

–

10

10

–

Yes

1

10

5

–

Yes

–

10

10

–

Yes

–

10

1

–

No

–

Director

10

6

–

Yes

1

Director

10

–

–

No

–

Director

10

2

–

Yes

–

Director

10

1

–

Yes

1

Director

10

4

3

Yes

1

3

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held on the following dates:
April 10, 2006, July 8, 2006, July 27, 2006, August 31, 2006, October 12, 2006, November 20, 2006,
December 16, 2006, December 28, 2006, January 31, 2007 and March 15, 2007.
As mandated by the revised Clause 49, the independent Directors on the Company’s Board:
• Apart from receiving a sitting fee for the Meeting attended by them, they do not have any material pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the company, its promoters, its directors, its senior management or its
holding company, its subsidiaries and associates, which may affect the independence of the Director
• Are not related to the promoters or persons occupying management positions at the Board level or at one level
below the Board
• Have not been executives of the Company in the immediately preceding three financial years
• Are not partners or executives or were not partners or executives during the preceding three years of the
• Statutory Audit Firm or the Internal Audit Firm that is associated with the Company
• Legal Firms(s) and Consulting Firms(s) that have a material association with the Company
• Are not material suppliers, service providers or customers or lessors or lessees of the Company, which may
affect their independence
• Are not substantial shareholders of the Company i.e. do not own 2% or more of the block of voting shares.
Information supplied to the Board:
1. Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.
2. Quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the company.
3. Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the board.
4. Information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the board level.
5. Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual property.
6. Sale of material, nature of investments, subsidiaries, assets which is not in normal course of business.
7. Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit the risks of
adverse exchange rate movement, if material.
8. Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders service such as nonpayment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.
The Board also periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company, prepared by the
Company as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances.
Code of Conduct
The Board of Directors of the Company has laid a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management
Personnel. The Code of Conduct is posted on the Company’s web site www.tanlasolutions.com. All directors and
designated personnel in senior management positions of the Company have affirmed compliance with the code
for the year under review. The declaration to this effect, which is signed by Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy, Chairman
& Managing Director, is annexed to this report.
3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
AUDIT COMMITTEE
In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Audit Committee constituted by the Board consists of three
Non-Executive Directors. The committee has met four times during the year under review, April 10, 2006,
July 27, 2006, October 12, 2006, and January 31, 2007.
The members of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2007:
Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal
Mr. Subir Mehra
Mr. Villadath Harish Kumar

Chairman
Member
Member

Audit Committee meeting attendance recorded during the financial year 2006-2007 is as follows:
Committee Members
Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal
Mr. Subir Mehra
Mr. Villadath Harish Kumar

Meeting held
during his tenure
4
4
4

Meeting attended
during his tenure
4
1
4
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The terms of reference as stipulated by the Board to the Audit Committee include:
1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.
2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of
the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.
3. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for approval,
with particular reference to:
a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s
report in terms of clause (2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956
b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.
4. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval.
5. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of internal
control systems.
6. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.
7. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the board.
8. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of the audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.
9. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same exists.
10.Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Board of the Company has constituted a Remuneration Committee of the Board comprising of three NonExecutive and Independent Directors. The Committee has been constituted to recommend/review the remuneration
package of the Whole-time Directors. Apart from deciding other matters such as framing and implementation of
Stock Options Plans to the employees etc.,the remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance
based on review of achievements on a periodic basis.
The Remuneration Policy of the company is in consonance with the existing Industry Practices. As there was no
change in the remuneration paid to the Executive Directors and the ESOPs scheme was not considered, the
Remuneration Committee has not met during the year.
The members of the Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2007 are as follows:
Mr. Villadath Harish Kumar
Mr. Shrikanth Madan Chitnis
Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal

Chairman
Member
Member

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of Remuneration paid to Directors for the year:
The details of the salary and other benefits paid for the year ended March 31, 2007, to the Chairman & Managing
Director and other Whole-time Directors are as follows:
Name of the Director and Designation

Salary and
allowances

Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy- Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. Satish Kathirietti – Director & CTO
Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal – Director-Operations
Mr. Amit Gupta – Director Reference Architecture
Mr. Navnit Chachan – Director- R&D
Total

1,827,840
2,045,388
971,040
913,920
1,016,736
6,774,924

Other Benefits
(including
perquisites
allowances)
92,160
103,128
48,960
46,080
51,264
341,592

( Amount in Rs.)
Total
remuneration
1,920,000
2,148,516
1,020,000
960,000
1,068,000
7,116,516

Besides the above remuneration, the Directors are also eligible for Gratuity and Encashment of Leave.
The Company has paid sitting fees to all the Non-Executive & Independent Directors at the rate of Rs.10,000 per
Board Meeting. The details of aggregate amount of sitting fees paid to each Non-Executive & Independent
Director during the year ended March 31, 2007 is as follows:
(Amount in Rs.)
Sitting Fees
10,000
60,000
–
–
10,000
40,000

Name of the Director and Designation
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan – Director
Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal – Director
Mr. Sudhanshu Shekhar Jamuar – Director
*Mr. Subir Mehra – Director
Mr. S M Chitnis – Director
Mr. V Harish Kumar – Director
*Mr Subir Mehra has volunteered not to accept sitting fees.

Details of shareholding of Independent Directors as on March 31 2007:
Name of the Director and Designation
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan – Director
Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal – Director
Mr. Sudhanshu Shekhar Jamuar – Director
Mr. Subir Mehra – Director
Mr. S M Chitnis – Director
Mr. V Harish Kumar – Director

No. of Shares of Rs.2/- each
–
177
–
–
–
–

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMITTEE:
The members of the Shareholders’ Committee as on March 31, 2007 are as follows:
Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Mr. Villadath Harish Kumar
Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal

Chairman
Member
Member

The Shareholders’ Committee has the mandate to approve all share transfers, issue duplicate Share Certificates,
Demat requests and Remat requests. During the year the Company received 11 cases of 31,005 shares for
transfers, 26 cases of 206,000 shares for Demat request and eight cases of 1,420 shares for Remat. There were
no share transfers/ Demat/Remat requests pending as on March 31, 2007.

31

32

INVESTOR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:
The members of the Investor Grievance Committee as on March 31 2007 are as follows:
Mr. V. Harish Kumar
Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan

Chairman
Member
Member

The Committee inter alia oversees, redresses and reviews shareholders’ grievances and every such matter
connected with servicing of investors. The Committee oversees the performance of the Registrar and Transfer
Agents, and recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services.
The Company has received 2,196 complaints during the year. All the complaints were promptly attended to and
outstanding complaints as on March 31, 2007 were Nil.
The details of the Compliance Officer along with address for Communication are given in the Additional
Information section to the Shareholders.
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE:
In exercise of the powers conferred under Sec 292(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board has constituted an
Investment Committee vesting with it the power to invest the funds of the Company. This Committee is authorized
to invest/renew and withdraw the fixed deposit and other investments in high quality interest bearing liquid
instruments.
This Committee consisting of Executive Directors of the Company chaired by Mr. D Uday Kumar Reddy meets
periodically to take a view on the existing investments and fresh investments within the authority delegated under
Sec 292(2) of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Investment Committee met for six times during the year, February 6, 2007, February 13, 2007, February 20,
2007, March 21, 2007, March 22, 2007 and March 23, 2007.
Members of the Investment Committee as on March 31, 2007:
Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Mr. K. Satish
Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal
Ms. Ch. Seshanuradha

Chairman
Member
Member
Secretary

Mr. Akash Rukhaiyar, CFO, was present in all the meetings of the Investment Committee.
INITIATIVES ON PREVENTING INSIDER TRADING PRACTICES:
In compliance with SEBI Regulations on prevention of insider trading, the Company has instituted a
comprehensive Code of Conduct for its directors and designated employees. The Code lays down guidelines,
which advises the directors and designated employees on the procedure to be followed and disclosures to be
made, while dealing with shares on the Company and cautions them on consequences of violations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2007
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of three Independent Directors. Each member of the
Committee is an Independent Director as defined under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Committee
operates under a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors, and has been vested with all the powers
necessary to effectively discharge its responsibilities. Management is responsible for the Company’s internal
controls and the financial reporting process. Tanla’s management has primary responsibility for the financial
statements and reporting the process, including the systems of internal controls.
During the year, the Committee discussed with the Company’s Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors the overall
quality of the Company’s reporting. In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Committee has reviewed and discussed
the Company’s audited financial statements with the Management. The Statutory Auditors of the Company are
responsible for expressing their opinion on the conformity of the Company’s Audited Financial Statements with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
Relying on the review and discussions with the Management and the Statutory Auditors, the Audit Committee
believes that the Company’s financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in all material aspects.
The Committee has reviewed the internal controls put in place to ensure that the accounts of the Company are
properly maintained and that the accounting transactions are in accordance with prevailing laws and legislations.
In conducting such reviews the Committee found no material discrepancy or weakness in the internal control
systems of the Company.
The Audit Committee has recommended that the Board accept the audited financial statements prepared in
accordance with Indian GAAP as true and fair statements of the state of affairs of the Company.
Further the Committee has recommended that for the year 2007-08 the Board re-appoint Ramasamy Koteswara
Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.
Place: Hyderabad
Date: July 18, 2007

Sd/Ram Narain Agarwal
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INVESTOR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31, 2007:
The Committee expresses satisfaction with the Company’s performance in dealing with investor grievances and its
share transfer system. Since the Company came with a Follow on Public Offer during the year, most of the
complaints were related to non-receipt of refund orders and non-credit of shares.
The Committee noted that the shareholding in dematerialized mode as on March 31, 2007, was 99.98% as
against 99% in the previous year.
Place: Hyderabad
Date: July 18, 2007

Sd/V. Harish Kumar

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
Details of last three Annual General Meetings are given in the below mentioned table:
Date

Venue

June 8, 2006

Registered Office:
12.00 Noon
Tanla Technology
Centre, Hitech City
Road, Madhapur,
Hyderabad 500 081.
Registered Office:
12.30 PM
Plot No: 11,
First Floor, Type A,
Commercial
Complex,
Jubilee Hills,
Hyderabad 500 033.
– do –
9.30 AM

May 27, 2005

July 23, 2004

Time

No. of
Special
Resolutions

Members Present in

2

Person
35

Proxy
8

1

21

8

–

17

6

In the last AGM, there was no resolution required to be passed through postal ballot. The resolutions were passed
by show of hands with the requisite majority.
During the year 2006-2007, One Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held.
Details of Extra Ordinary General Meeting held during the Year are as given in the table below:
Date
November 9, 2006

Venue
Registered Office: Tanla Technology Centre,
Hitech City Road, Madhapur,
Hyderabad 500 081.

Purpose
1. For enhancing the FIIs’ limit for
investment under Portfolio Investment
Scheme from 24% to 49%.
2. For modification to 81(1A) Resolution
passed in the AGM on June 8, 2006,
to specify the number of shares to be
issued through the follow on
public issue.

Materially Significant Related Party Transactions, which may have the potential to be in conflict with
the interests of the Company at large.
The summary of the materially significant Related Party Transactions is given in the Notes under Point 6 to the
Accounts appearing in this Annual Report.
Transactions made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered with related parties and exceeding the
value of Rupees Five Lakhs in respect of each party during the year have been made at prices which are
reasonable with regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time. All transactions mention here in have
been conducted at arm’s length.
Details of non- compliance, penalties, strictures, by Stock Exchange/SEBI/Statutory Authorities on any
matter related to capital markets during the financial year 2006-2007.
There has not been any non-compliance by the company and no penalties or strictures imposed on the Company
by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last
three years.

35

36

Whistle Blower Policy
We have established a mechanism for employees to report to the management concerns about unethical behavior,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of our Code of Conduct policy. The mechanism also provides for adequate
safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.
Secretarial Audit:
A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out secretarial audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the
total issued and listed capital. The secretarial audit report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in
agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held
with NSDL and CDSL.
Means of Communication:
The Company has a website viz http://www.tanlasolutions.com. The Quarterly, Half-Yearly, Nine-Monthly and
Annual Financial Results and Press Releases are posted on the Company’s Website for information of the
Shareholders.
The Quarterly, Half-Yearly, Nine-Monthly and Annual Audited Financial Results are generally published in the
Economic Times, Financial Express, Eenadu (a Vernacular Telugu Daily) and Andhra Jyothi (a Vernacular Telugu
Daily).
Dates of publication of Quarterly Results:
1st Quarter ended June 30, 2006:
2nd Quarter ended September 30, 2006:
3rd Quarter ended December 31, 2006:
4th Quarter ended March 31, 2007:

July 28, 2006
October 13, 2006
February 1, 2007
April 20, 2007

All material information about the Company is promptly sent through facsimile to Stock Exchanges, where the
Company’s shares are listed.
All official news releases are also displayed on the web site.
As required by Sub-clause IV (F) of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Management Discussion and Analysis is
provided elsewhere in the Annual Report.

Certificate of the Company Secretary:
I, Ch. Seshanuradha, Company Secretary of Tanla Solutions Limited, hereby confirm that the Company has:
1. Maintained all the books of account and statutory registers prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956. Filed
all forms and returns and furnished all necessary particulars to the Registrar of Companies and/or Authorities
as required under the Companies Act, 1956.
2. Conducted the Board Meetings and Annual General Meetings as per the Companies Act, 1956 and the
minutes thereof were properly recorded in the minutes books.
3. Effected share transfers and dispatched the certificate within the time limit prescribed by various authorities.
4. Not exceeded the borrowing powers.
5. Paid dividend to the shareholders within the time limit prescribed and transfered the unpaid/unclaimed
dividend to the Investor Education and Protection Fund within the time limit.
6. Complied with the regulations prescribed by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities and
also the statutory requirements under the Companies Act, 1956 and other applicable statutes in force.
The certificate is given by the undersigned according to the best of her knowledge and belief, knowing fully well
that on the faith and strength of what is stated above, the shareholders of the Company will place full reliance on
it.
Place: Hyderabad
Date July 18, 2007

Ch. Seshanuradha
Company Secretary
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ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:
11th Annual General Meeting:
Day: Wednesday
Date: August 29, 2007.
Time: 10.30 AM
Venue: Hydrabad International Convention Centre, Novotel &HICC Complex, Near Hi-tech City, Cyberabad Post
Office, Hyderabad. Tel No: +91-40-66824422
Dates of Book Closure: August 25 2007 to August 29 2007(inclusive of both days)
Financial Calendar:
The tentative Calendar of events for the financial year 2007-2008 is given below:
Results for Quarter ending June 30, 2007Results for Quarter ending September 30, 2007Results for Quarter ending December 31, 2007Results for Quarter ending March 31, 2008-

July 2007
October 2007
January 2008
April 2008

Listing of Equity Shares:
Equity shares are listed on The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE), National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE), Hyderabad Stock Exchange Limited, Madras Stock Exchange Limited, and Ahmedabad Stock Exchange
Limited
Delisting Details:
The Board resolved to delist the Equity Shares of your Company from Hyderabad Stock Exchange, Ahmedabad
Stock Exchange and Madras Stock Exchange in compliance of SEBI (Delisting of Securities) Guidelines, 2003. A
resolution has been placed in the Notice convening the 11th Annual General Meeting for your consideration and
approval. The shares are being infrequently traded in Hyderabad Stock Exchange and Madras Stock Exchange
since listing on BSE & NSE from January 5 2007. There has been no trading in Ahmedabad Stock Exchange since
listing in 1996.
Stock Code:

BSE Code:
NSE Symbol:
HSE Code:
MSE Code:
ASE Code:

532790
TANLA
762
738
45591

ISIN in NSDL and CDSL:
ISIN is a unique identification number of a traded scrip. This number has to be quoted in each transaction relating
to the dematerialized equity shares of the Company. The ISIN number of the equity shares of the company is
INE483C01024.
Market Price Data:
Stock Market Data on HSE
500
445.10
407.25
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400

367.20
407.25
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300

319.35

203.00

200
147.00

161.65
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130.70

135.90

140.04

122.15
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207.05
313.10

145.80
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100

330.40

358.75

162.05

129.00
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JANUARY to MARCH 2007
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The shares were listed on BSE/NSE from January 5, 2007:
The monthly high and low stock quotations during the financial year and performance in comparison to BSE Sensex
and NSE Nifty are given below:
Month & Year

BSE
High
453.65
414.95
328.75

January 07
February 07
March 07

Sensex
High
13,827.77
14,124.36
13,013.74

Low
365.00
316.90
269.80

NSE
High
452.00
414.90
346.90

Low
14,090.92
12,938.09
13,072.10

Nifty
Low
High
Low
379.85 4,167.15 3,833.60
318.20 4,245.30 3,674.85
276.40 3,901.75 3,554.50

Stock Market Data on BSE
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Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2007:
Category (Amount)
1 – 5,000
5,001 – 10,000
10,001 – 20,000
20,001 – 30,000
30,001 – 40,000
40,001 – 50,000
50,001 – 100,000
100,001 & Above
Total

No. of Cases
70,983
170
88
31
25
10
43
97
71,447

% of Cases
99.35
0.24
0.12
0.04
0.03
0.02
0.06
0.14
100

Total Shares
3,619,658
657,183
672,257
377,018
448,455
223,668
1,524,059
42,477,702
50,000,000

Amount
7,239,316
1,314,366
1,344,514
754,036
896,910
447,336
3,048,118
84,955,404
100,000,000

% of Amount
7.25
1.31
1.34
0.75
0.89
0.45
3.06
84.95
100

Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2007:
Category
code

(A)
1
(a)

2

(B)
1
(a)
(b)
(c)

B2
(a)
(b)
I

Category of
Shareholder

Number of Total number
Shareholders
of Shares

Shareholding of
Promoter and
Promoter Group2
Indian
Individuals/
Hindu
Undivided
Family

Number of
Shares held in
dematerialised
form

Total shareholding as a
percentage of total number
of shares
As a
percentage
of(A+B)1

As a percentage
of (A+B+C)

7

17,486,550

17,486,550

34.97

34.97

Sub
Total (A)(1)

7

17,486,550

17,486,550

34.97

34.97

Foreign
Total
Shareholding
of Promoter
and Promoter
Group (A)=
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

0
7

0
17,486,550

0
17,486,550

0.00
34.97

0.00
34.97

33

1,942,227

1,942,227

3.88

3.88

3

338,559

338,559

0.68

0.68

38

13,533,610

13,533,610

27.07

27.07

74

15,814,396

15,814,396

31.63

31.63

746

5,780,216

5,780,216

11.56

11.56

69,892

5,319,100

5,260,130

10.64

10.64

Public Shareholding
Institutions
Mutual
Funds / UTI
Financial
Institutions /
Banks
Foreign
Institutional
Investors
Sub-Total (B)(1)
Non-Institutions
Bodies
Corporate
Individuals
Individuals
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II

(c-i)
(c-ii)
(c-iii)
(c-iv)

(B)

(C)

Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share
capital
up to
Rs 1 lakh
Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share
capital in
excess of
Rs. 1 lakh
Non–
Resident
Indians
Trusts
Foreign
Nationals
Clearing
Members
Sub-Total
(B)(2)

29

4,154,736

4,154,736

8.31

8.31

455

376,648

376,648

0.75

0.75

18
2

7,730
878,700

7,730
878,700

0.02
1.76

0.02
1.76

224

181,924

181,924

0.36

0.36

71,366

16,699,054

16,640,084

33.40

33.40

Total
71,440
Public
Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

32,513,450

32,454,480

65.03

65.03

TOTAL (A)+(B)

71,447

50,000,000

49,941,030

100

100

Shares held
by Custodians
and against
which
Depository
Receipts have
been issued

0

0

0

0

0

GRAND
TOTAL
(A)+(B)+(C)

71,447

50,000,000

49,941,030

100

100

Global Depository Receipts (GDRs): The Company has not issued any GDRs during the year.
Share Transfer System: The share transfers which were received in physical form were processed and the
share certificates returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt, subject to the documents being
found valid and complete in all respects. The Company has appointed M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited
as the Registrar and Transfer Agents for dealing with all the activities connected with both Physical and Demat
segments pertaining to the share transactions of the Company.
Dematerialization of Shares: 99.98% of the outstanding shares are held in dematerialized form as on March
31, 2007. Trading in equity shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form.
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Registrar and Transfer Agents:
KARVY COMPUTERSHARE PRIVATE LIMITED
“Karvy House” 46, Avenue 4, Street No.1,
Banjara Hills Hyderabad – 500 034,
Andhra Pradesh, India
Tel.No.+91-40-23320251/23312454
Fax No. : +91-40-23431551,
E-mail: mailmanager@karvy.com,
Website: www.karvy.com
Address for Shareholder General Correspondence:
Company Secretary
Tanla Solutions Limited
Tanla Technology Centre
Hi-tech City Road
Madhapur
Hyderabad – 500 081
Tel:+91-40-40099999
Fax: +91-40-23122999
Registered Office of the Company:
Tanla Solutions Limited,
Tanla Technology Centre
Hi-tech City Road
Madhapur
Hyderabad – 500 081
Tel:+91-40-40099999
Fax: +91-40-23122999
Stock Options to Non-Executive Directors:
Resolution as required u/s 81(1A) of the Companies Act, 1956, was passed on December 3, 2005, but no
options were granted either to the employees or to non-executive directors during the year 2006-2007 under the
ESOP Scheme 2005.
Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:
In the preparation of financial statements, the accounting standards as prescribed by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India have been followed and the Company has not adopted a treatment different from that
prescribed by any accounting standards.
Risk Management:
The risk management function is integral to the Company and its objectives include ensuring that critical risks are
identified continuously, monitored and managed effectively in order to protect the Company’s businesses. The top
management, being the driver of the Company’s strategy, is well acquainted with the risks inherent to the
development of business and the risks emerging from its strategic decisions. Therefore top management plays
significant role in addressing business risks.
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Proceeds from Public issue:
Funds raised from Follow-on Public Issue were utilized for purposes mentioned in the Prospectus dated
December 26 2006. A statement of utilization of funds is as follows:
Particulars
Funds raised on Follow on Public Offer of equity shares
Less: Utilized upto March 31, 2007
Expansion & Upgradation of Existing Research & Product Development facilities 16.83
For working capital requirements
341.93
For Issue expenses
1,933.49
General Corporate purposes
5,360.73

(Rs. inLakhs)
42,095.25

7,652.98
34,442.27

Funds unutilized as on March 31, 2007
No funds have been utilized for purposes other than those mentioned in the Prospectus.

Compliance with Clause 49
Mandatory Requirements:
The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements of the revised Clause 49.
The Company has fulfilled the following non-mandatory requirements as prescribed in Annexure I (D) of
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges:
(a) The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee, details of which have been given elsewhere in this
Report
(b) The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established mechanism for employees to report
concerns about unethical behavior. No person has been denied access to the Audit Committee.
Declaration
The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on November 11, 2005, has approved the Code of
Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel. As stipulated under the provisions of Sub-clause
I(D)(ii) of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, all Directors and the designated
personnel in the Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code for the financial
year under examination.
For Tanla Solutions Limited,
Place: Hyderabad
Date: July 18, 2007

D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director
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Certificate regarding compliance with Clause 49 by Practicing
Company Secretary
CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY
I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance of Tanla Solutions Limited, for the year
ended March 31, 2007 as stipulated in the revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Company with the
Stock Exchanges. The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. My examination was limited to the procedure and implementation thereof adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
the opinion of the financial statements of the Company. In my opinion and to the best of my information and
according to the explanation given to me, I certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Agreement. I state that no investor grievance is pending for a
period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained by the Investor Grievance
Committee. I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company.
Place: Hyderabad
Date: July 18, 2007

For AGR Reddy & Co.
(A. G. Ravindranath Reddy)
Partner
FCS No. 1997 CP No. 1932

CMD & CFO CERTIFICATION

CMD & CFO Certification
(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:
(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading
(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.
(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and we have disclosed to the auditors and the
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware
and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.
(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee
(i) significant changes in internal control during the year;
(ii) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and
(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system.
Date: April 19, 2007
Place: Hydrabad
D Uday Kumar Reddy,

Akash Rukhaiyar,

Chairman and Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
The Company’s Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 1956, and the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India. Tanla management
accepts responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements and the bases for various
estimates and judgment used therein.
Fiscal year 2007 pertains to the year commenced on April 1, 2006 and ended on March 31, 2007. Fiscal year
2006 pertains to the year commenced on April 1, 2005 and ended on March 31, 2006.

A. Financial Condition
1. Share Capital
The company has only one class of shares. Our authorized share capital at the beginning of the year 2007 was
Rs.12 crores (6,00,00,000 equity shares of par value Rs. 2 each) and paid-up capital was Rs. 6.83 crores
(3,41,15,000 shares of par value Rs. 2 each). During the year the paid up share capital was raised to
Rs.10 crores (5,00,00,000 equity shares of par value Rs. 2 each) with issuance of 1,58,85,000 equity shares of
Rs. 2 each in Follow on Public Offer.
March 31, 2007
March 31, 2006
Number of
(In Rs)
Number of
(In Rs)
Equity Shares
Equity Shares
Par Value Rs. 2
par value Rs. 2
Balance at the
Beginning of the Year
34,115,000
68,230,000
34,115,000
68,230,000
Issued During the Year
(Under Follow on
Public Offer)
15,885,000
31,770,000
–
–
Balance at the End of
Fiscal Year
50,000,000
100,000,000
34,115,000
68,230,000
2. Reserves & Surplus
During the year, we recorded a net profit after tax of Rs. 576,271,224 out of which Rs. 57,627,122 was
transferred to general reserve account and the balance (after providing for dividend Rs.100,000,000 and dividend
tax Rs. 14,025,000) has been retained in the profit and loss account. The total reserves and surplus as at the
balance sheet date is Rs. 4,942,701,717 as compared to Rs. 302,700,493 at the end of fiscal 2006.
3. Fixed Assets
During the year, we added Rs. 81,659,020 to our gross block of assets which included infrastructure related
expenditure at the Madhapur facility which is equipped to accomodate over 300 people and for land development
activities at Vattinagulapalli, Hyderabad .
(In Rs)
March 31, 2007
March 31, 2006
Land & Site Development
46,171,392
8,323,552
Building Developments
22,317,425
0
Building Interiors & Fixtures
22,212,158
18,534,299
Furniture
20,675,068
20,098,623
Computers
39,812,432
25,949,314
Office Equipment
13,813,510
12,102,881
Vehicles
7,844,809
6,728,746
Air-Conditioning
3,857,796
3,348,291
Library Books
126,197
86,061
Total
176,830,786
95,171,767
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
22,437,188
11,857,211
Net Block
154,393,599
83,314,556
Add: Capital Work-in-Progress
211,826,840
5,080,714
Net Fixed Assets
366,220,439
88,395,270
Depreciation for the Year
10,579,976
4,278,633
Depreciation as % of Revenues
1.29%
1.03%
Depreciation as % of Average Gross Block*
8.10%
4.93%
Accumulated Depreciation as % of Gross Block*
17.17%
13.65%
* Excluding Land & Site Development
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4. Investments
During the year the company made an investment in liquid mutual funds of Rs.2,651,096,600 as against previous
year of Rs. Nil. The outstanding investments at the end of the year remain unchanged to the extent of trade
investments at Rs. 32,374,000 which are our long-term investments in wholly owned subsidiary companies, viz.
2,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Smartnet Communication Systems Pvt. Ltd. and 1,000 equity shares of
GBP 1 each in Tanla Solutions (UK) Ltd. The other quoted market securities are stated as net realizable value as
on the balance sheet date.The details of investments are as under:
March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

Non-Trade (Unquoted): At Cost
Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
25,200,000
Smartnet Communication Systems Pvt Limited
7,174,000
Non-Traded Current Investments,
NAV
at the Lower of Cost and Fair Value
as at March 31, 2007
Name of the Liquid Mutual Fund
Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund: Daily Dividend Re-Investment Plan
50,000,000
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund: Daily dividend Re-Investment Plan
403,470,346
Reliance Mutual Fund: Daily dividend Re-Investment Plan
403,380,661
UTI Mutual Fund: Daily dividend Re-Investment Plan
453,654,132
Reliance Mutual Fund: Fixed Investment Plan
100,000,000
Tata Mutual Fund: Daily dividend Re-Investment Plan
555,862,155
Tata Mutual Fund: Fixed Investment Plan
250,630,000
UTI Mutual Fund: Fixed Investment Plan
404,099,307
Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund: Daily dividend Re-Investment Plan
30,000,000
Total
2,683,470,600

25,200,000
7,174,000

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
32,374,000

Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla Solutions Limited achieved in fiscal 2007 a
turnover (consolidated with its wholly owned subsidiary Tanla Mobile Limited) of GBP 16349042 as compared to
GBP 3281068 in fiscal 2006 and profit after tax of GBP 4207883 Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited paid a dividend of
GBP 75000 to the parent Tanla Solutions Limited.
Tanla Mobile Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited achieved in fiscal 2007 a
turnover of GBP 13008899 and profit after tax of GBP 3493551 and paid a dividend of GBP 64993 to Tanla
Solutions (UK) Limited.
Smartnet Communication Systems Private Limited, in fiscal 2007, had nil turnover as the application
development business of Smartnet has been entirely done in Tanla Solutions Limited.
5. Sundry Debtors
Sundry debtors, considered good and realizable as of March 31, 2007 amount to Rs. 230,585,749 as against
Rs.144,096,832 as of March 31, 2006. The period of credit to our debtors ranges from 60 to 90 days. 99.48% of
the outstanding debtors as of March 31, 2007 are on account of the sales in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007.

Period in Days
0-30
31-60
61-90
91-120
21-180
More Than 181
Total

March 31, 2007
(In Rs)
% of Debtors
92,570,806
40.15
84,286,996
36.55
52,522,763
22.78
1,205,184
0.52
0
0.00
0
0.00
230,585,749
100.00

March 31, 2006
(In Rs)
% of Debtors
67,725,140
47.00
47,994,162
33.31
26,437,974
18.35
782,455
0.54
511,854
0.36
645,247
0.45
144,096,832
100.00

6. Cash & Bank Balances
Cash and bank balances have grown by Rs. 1,030,254,364 to Rs. 1,175,824,917 as on March 31, 2007.
Surplus funds have been invested in fixed deposits with banks, which amounted to Rs. 824,507,171 as on
March 31, 2007 (Rs. 84,264,003 as on March 31, 2006)
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Advances for Rendering Services
Rent Deposits and Other Deposits
Loans to Subsidiaries
Advance Income Tax & TDS
Total

March 31, 2007
4,022,211
34,376,001
447,246,250
30,651,398
516,295,860

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006
1,526,975
2,691,151
–
1,730,087
5,948,213

**Includes balance in unclaimed dividend account of Rs. 51,724,011
** Includes balance in share application money refund account Rs. 6,356,694

7. Loans & Advances
Loans and advances have been increased as on March 31, 2007 to Rs. 516,295,860 from Rs. 5,948,213 as on
March 31, 2006.

Advances for Rendering Services
Rent Deposits and Other Deposits
Loans to Subsidiaries
Advance Income Tax & TDS
Total

March 31, 2007
4,022,211
34,376,001
447,246,250
30,651,398
516,295,860

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006
1,526,975
2,691,151
–
1,730,087
5,948,213

8. Current Liabilities & Provisions
Current Liabilities include Sundry creditors, other liabilities and unclaimed dividend. Sundry creditors for services
and expenses include payables for transport services, IP leased line charges, office security charges, rent and
electricity charges and audit fees payables. Provisions include provisions for income tax, proposed dividend,
dividend tax and provision for employee benefits. Current liabilities and provisions have increased by
Rs. 77,123,011 to Rs. 119,764,380 as on March 31, 2007.
Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors for Services and Expenses
Sundry Creditors: Hire Purchase
Other Liabilities
Unclaimed Dividend
Provisions
Provision for Income Tax
Proposed Dividend
Tax on Dividend
Total

March 31, 2007
29,126,144
–
3,342,594
51,724,011

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006
3,908,152
3,098,760
1,121,940
155,805

35,571,631
–
–
119,764,380

14,906,897
17,057,500
2,392,314
42,641,369

9. Miscellaneous Expenditure
Miscellaneous expenditure not written off amounts to Rs. 240,107,015 incurred during the year and comprise the
public issue expenses related to the follow on public offer. The expenses related to the public offer will be written
off in five equal installments commencing from the year of public offer. Of the total expenses of Rs. 240,107,015
incurred towards public offer , Rs. 48,021,403 has been charged to the profit and loss account during the year.

B. Results of Operations
1. Total Income
i) Sales for the fiscal year 2007 was up by Rs. 406,187,979 (98%) to Rs. 820,143,922 for fiscal 2007
(Rs. 413,955,943 for fiscal 2006). The sales were boosted by the strong up take of our revenue-share based
service offerings in UK and APAC regions based on our telecom products and our end-to-end solutions for
our clientele including Aggregator clients, through a wide array of offshore services, like application
development and maintenance, technical infrastructure support and customer support.
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Overseas
Domestic: India

(In Rs)
815,698,047
4,445,875
820,143,922

March 31, 2007
% of Sales
99
1
100

March 31, 2006
(In Rs)
% of Sales
402,998,834
97
10,957,109
3
413,955,943
100

ii) Other income for the fiscal 2007 was up by Rs. 85,682,881 (1547%) to Rs. 91,220,068 as compared to
Rs. 5,537,187 in fiscal 2006. The increase in other income is mainly due to interest on fixed deposit
Rs. 41,655,727, interest on working capital loans to subsidiaries Rs.11,247,696, dividends from mutual
funds Rs. 31,878,729 and dividend of GBP 75,000 (Rs. 6,428,082) received from
Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited.
(In Rs)
Interest Received
52,903,423
842,005
Dividend Received: Domestic
31,878,729
–
Dividend Received: Overseas
6,428,082
4,597,692
Misc. Income
9,834
97,490
Total
91,220,068
5,537,187
2. Expenditure
March 31, 2007
Gross Sales
820,143,922
Cost of Sales
209,057,411
25.49%
Selling & Marketing Expenses
29,030,051
3.54%
Operating & Administrative Expenses
22,589,258
2.75%
Operating Profit Before Depreciation
559,467,202
68.22%
Depreciation & Amortization
58,601,379
7.15%
Operating Profit After Depreciation
500,865,823
61.07%
Other Income
91,220,068
11.12%
Net Profit Before Tax
592,085,891
72.19%
Tax Expense on the Above (Incl FBT & Deferred Tax) 15,814,667
1.93%
Net Profit After Tax
576,271,224
70.26%

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006
413,955,943
106,905,274
25.83%
13,658,058
3.30%
16,815,174
4.06%
276,577,437
66.81%
4,278,633
1.03%
272,298,804
65.78%
5,537,187
1.34%
277,835,992
67.12%
20,497,024
4.95%
257,338,968
62.17%

i) Cost of Sales
Cost of Sales has increased by Rs. 102,152,138 to Rs. 209,057,411 (25.49% of Sales) in fiscal 2007
compared to Rs. 106,905,274 in fiscal 2006 (25.83% of Sales) and includes cost of services, staff costs,
traveling expenses, communication expenses, and operations and delivery infrastructure expenses.
March 31, 2007
Cost of Services
142,803,784
Staff Salaries & Benefits
41,370,466
Travelling Expenses
6,961,700
Communication Expenses
4,619,128
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
1,715,536
Rent Rates & Taxes
6,239,428
Printing & Stationary
304,133
Office Maintenance Expenses
1,056,074
Power & Fuel
2,271,063
General Expenses
1,716,100
Total
209,057,411

%
68.31
19.79
3.33
2.21
0.82
2.98
0.15
0.51
1.09
0.82
100.00

March 31, 2006
66,973,028
21,813,934
4,829,336
3,614,813
964,864
6,090,684
140,510
705,067
1,521,911
251,127
106,905,274

(In Rs)
%
62.65
20.40
4.52
3.38
0.90
5.70
0.13
0.66
1.42
0.23
100.00
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ii) Selling & Marketing Expenses
Selling & Marketing Expenses were Rs. 29,030,051 (3.54% of Sales) for fiscal 2007 as compared to
Rs.13,658,058 (3.30% of Sales) in fiscal 2006. They include employee costs, traveling and communication
expenses, brand building and other promotional expenses, and other advertising department expenses.
March 31, 2007
Staff Salaries & Benefits
12,316,398
Travelling Expenses
1,206,695
Communication Expenses
481,750
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
100,914
Rent, Rates & Taxes
371,395
Printing & Stationary
304,133
Business Promotion and Advertisement
12,348,449
Office Maintenance Expenses
211,215
Power & Fuel
316,224
General Expenses
1372,880
Total
29,030,051

%
42.43
4.16
1.66
0.35
1.28
1.05
42.54
0.73
1.09
5
100.00

March 31, 2006
1,283,173
284,079
212,636
56,757
358,276
140,510
11,176,859
41,475
89,524
14,772
13,658,058

(In Rs)
%
9.39
2.08
1.56
0.42
2.62
1.03
81.83
0.30
0.66
0.11
100.00

iii) General & Administrative Expenses
General & Administrative Expenses were Rs. 22,589,258 (2.75% of Sales) in fiscal 2007 as compared to
Rs. 16,815,174 (4.06% of Sales) in fiscal 2006. There has been significant increase in the advertisement
expenses, due to our focus on corporate brand building and recruitment related advertisement.

Staff Salaries & Benefits
Travelling Expenses
Communication Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Printing & Stationary
Advertisement Expenses
Office Maintenance Expenses
Power & Fuel
General Expenses
Professional Charges
Quality & ISO Expenses
Auditors Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Finance & Bank Charges
Bad Debts Written-Off
Exchange Fluctuation
Total

March 31, 2007
9,474,152
1,113,872
566,764
201,828
817,068
608,265
2,352,085
140,810
287,476
343,220
3,390,237
1,489,818

%
41.94
4.93
2.51
0.89
3.62
2.69
10.41
0.62
1.27
1.52
15.01
6.60

March 31, 2006
2,566,345
568,157
425,272
113,513
716,551
281,019
3,558,953
82,949
179,048
29,544
2,603,426
–

(In Rs.)
%
15.26
3.38
2.53
0.68
4.26
1.67
21.17
0.49
1.06
0.18
15.48
0.00

500,000
100,000
689,818
244,233
269,611
22,589,258

2.21
0.44
3.05
1.08
1.19
100.00

250,000
100,000
519,384
3,990,095
830,917
16,815,174

1.49
0.59
3.09
23.73
4.94
100.00

3. Operating Profit
Operating profits (EBIDTA) of Rs.55,94,67,202 (68.22% of sales) were earned in the fiscal 2007 as compared to
Rs. 27,65,77,437 (66.81% of sales) in the fiscal 2006.
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4. Depreciation & Amortisation
Depreciation in fiscal 2007 was Rs.5,86,01,379 ( 7.15% of sales) as compared to Rs.42,78,633 ( 1.03 % of
sales) in fiscal 2006.
March 31, 2006 March 31, 2005
Depreciation as % of sales
1.03
3.25
Depreciation as % of average gross block *
4.93
9.13
Accumulated depreciation as % of gross block *
13.65
30.36
* Excluding land & site development

5. Provision for Taxation
Current income tax has been provided on income not exempt under the tax holiday and other income. For the
fiscal 2007, 99.46% of sales are from exports; the profits derived from export sales are exempt under tax holiday
being part of Software Technology Parks of India.
Provision for tax in fiscal 2007 was Rs.1,58,14,667 ( 1.93% of sales) as compared to Rs.2,04,97,024 (4.95 % of
sales) in fiscal 2006..
6. Profit after Tax
Profit after Tax in fiscal 2007 was up by Rs.31,89,32,256 to Rs.57,62,71,224 (63.23% of total income) as
compared to Rs. 25,73,38,968 (61.36% of total income) in fiscal 2006.
7. Related party transactions
These has bee discussed in detailed notes to the Indian GAAP financial statements
Particulars

Tanla Solutions
(UK) Limited

a

Relationship Between the Parties

Wholly-Owned
Subsidiary

b

Nature of Transactions

c
d
e
f

Value of Transactions
Amount Outstanding
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Amount Written-Off

Outstanding
Amounts Received,
Dividends Received,
interest Recieved
& Working Capital
Loan Given
464,922,028
447,246,250
0
0

Smartnet
Communication
Systems Private
Limited
Wholly-Owned
Subsidiary
Advance Received

3,526,075
3,521,075
0
0

Tanla Mobile Limited

Wholly-Owned
Subsidiary of
Tanla (UK)
Outstanding Amounts
Received

14,740,627
0
0
0

8. Cash Flow Comparison
During fiscal year 2007, the Company experienced a significant improvement in its liquidity position. Cash and
cash equivalents grew to Rs. 1,175,824,915 at the end of fiscal year 2007, as compared to Rs. 145,570,553 at
the end of fiscal year 2006.
Cash Flow
Net Cash Flow from Operations
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

Fiscal 2007
38,412,870
(2,843,781,677)
3,835,623,171
1,030,254,364
145,570,553
1,175,824,917

(In Rs)
Fiscal 2006
179,475,349
(66,122,073)
(16,391,765)
96,961,511
48,609,042
145,570,553
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Net Fash Flow From Operations
Our net cash flow from operations was substantially higher in fiscal 2007 principally due to the increase in sales,
partially offset by an increase in depreciation. Net Working Capital (herein defined as current assets minus current
liabilities) grew to Rs. 1,802,942,145 at the end of fiscal year 2007, as compared to Rs. 252,974,229 at the end
of fiscal year 2006. Working capital movements included an increase in trade receivables from fiscal year 2006
to fiscal year 2007 to Rs. 230,585,749 and an increase in trade payables to Rs. 119,764,380. Both our
receivables and payables increased as a result of the increase in our sales and consequent increases in our
general business activities.
The company has never borrowed funds for its working capital requirements.
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities
We had a substantial net cash outflow from investing activities in fiscal 2007, compared to net outflow in fiscal
2006, principally due to investments in liquid mutual funds of Rs. 2,651,096,600, advance for capital works of
Rs. 207,326,840 and Rs. 81,659,020 towards purchase of IT infrastructure, furniture, fixtures and other assets for
our new head office and delivery centre at Hyderabad.
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities
In fiscal 2007, the company has issued 15,885,000 equity shares of Rs.2 each to public in follow on public offer
at Rs. 265 each with a premium of Rs. 263 each and realised an amount of Rs. 4,209,525,000.
9. Statement of FPO Proceeds & Utilisation
Particulars
Amounts raised through FPO
Share issue expenses paid
Net proceeds
Deployment
General corporate purposes
R & D expenses
Working capital requirements
Investments in fixed deposites with banks pending utilisation
Short term investments in mutual funds pending utilisation
Balance in bacnk account (unutilised)

Amount Rs.
4209525000
193348658
4016176342
536073090
1682546
34192956
771441395
2621096600
51689755
4016176342

Industry Outlook, Issues and Risks
India is increasingly regarded as the main hub for global IT solutions development, and as such there is
tremendous growth potential within this market that India is well placed to exploit. In addition there is a huge
market within India itself to transform traditional brick and mortar companies using IT solutions. Predicted
economic and industrial growth combined with a large consumer base are additional, significant growth drivers
for India’s IT industry – one of fastest growing sectors within the country’s economy. Driven primarily by software
exports, the industry had an impressive year-on-year growth with CAGR exceeding 50% over the past 5 years. The
Government of India forecasts software exports of US $50 billion by 2008. India has emerged as the fastest
growing and fourth largest IT market in the Asia Pacific, according to a recent IDC study.[source: IBEF]
Global growth in the Telecom Industry and specifically within the Value Added Services sector promise exciting
opportunities for Tanla. Over the last few years Tanla has developed strong technology experience and indepth
understanding of customer needs. Tanla has the confidence and framework to grasp the opportunities afforded
from the global market place, and mirror its success in the UK and Asia Pacific regions. Tanla will continue to
forge close working relationships with both clients and partners, expanding their business development
capabilities.
To date Tanla has concentrated on working with Telecom software and services companies. As part of our end-toend solution offering, the Services Management Group delivered product development outsourcing, enterprise
solution development and integration, IT and IT enabled support services across our client base. However, the
biggest opportunities will come through Tanla’s ability to embrace changes within the telecom landscape. We
aim to continually offer clients in the telecom and signalling arena a fast time-to-market with new, relevant
products and services, as well as advanced downstream telecom applications within other industry sectors. Tanla
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recognizes and manages the risks inherent within the Telecom/IT products and services business. Notable issues
for the company are the lack of corporate branding, and insufficient scale required to be significant player in the
global market. This year we have made continual investment in both these areas. Firstly, by strengthening our
corporate image to become a credible, recognized brand, and secondly, by ramping up our delivery capability
through the attraction and retention of increased numbers of high calibre employees. The other challenge facing
Tanla is keeping abreast with changing telecom technologies and telecom product lifecycle related issues. We
have renewed our focus on research and development, and created a platform enabling us to develop patentable
technologies that will generate new revenue streams over the next few years. Historically, our core business has
been primarily focused on the Telecom sector in the UK and APAC regions, and therefore our client base is
relatively limited in size. This year we expanded our service offerings to include not only telecom products and
services but related offshore services as well, positioning Tanla as an end-to-end solutions provider. We intend to
enter into new geographic markets, such as the US, EMEA, Australia and the rest of APAC. These initiatives will
reduce the risks involved in concentrating on what can be seen as a a niche market.
Inadequate business continuity and disaster recovery plans can lead to loss of business and clients if there are
any major operational disruptions. Over the next 12 months Tanla plans to create an fully-functioning back-up
facility to mitigate this risk.
As our international operations grow, the company is exposed to the risk of compliance, with an array of differing
local laws, taxes and restrictions in each geographic region. We may also face the challenge of hiring appropriate
personnel required for sales and other business functions, and integrating these new concerns into our core
Indian operations in order to become competitive in these markets. Tanla will utilise the services of local firms in
each geographic region, as well as global consultants with good experience and knowledge of local laws,
regulations, markets and other business issues.
We may engage in acquisitions and strategic partnerships in India and abroad. These activities will result in risks
related to financing alternatives, which may lead to dilution of shareholders’ ownership or incur debt or contingent
liabilities. Other risks associated with merger and acquisition activities can be related to operational and cultural
integration of entities which may decrease our operational efficiency and profitability. Our ability to make
acquisitions will also be subject to approvals from various regulatory authorities in India and overseas and we
may not be successful in completing our targetted acquisitions. Tanla will rely on its experience of successfully
aquiring and integrating three companies over the last 2 years, as well as sourcing knowledge of current global
best practices related to mergers and acquisitions.
The company’s ability to sustain its growth and profitability also hinges on the its ability to raise financial
resources in the form of equity, debt or through other combinations. The company’s efforts to raise such financial
resources as needed from time to time may not result in raising sufficent resources in time or may not be
successful at all due to a variety of factors inside or outside its control. This poses a risk of expenses related to
the resource raising efforts going waste and also to the company’s ability to grow or maintain its operations and
preserve its revenues and profitability. The company will always have contingency plans in place and be ready to
make adjustments to business plans in line with the available alternatives.
Adequacy of Internal Control Systems
The company has in place adequate internal control systems commensurate with its size and operations covering
the financial and operational activities of the company. These have been designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition.
Transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorisation and properly recorded. The accounting
records are adequate for preparation of accurate and reliable financial statements and other financial information.
The audit committee of the Board of Directors periodically reviews the internal control systems for its adequacy
and effectiveness.
The underpinning of company’s internal control systems is the Internal Audit function. The Internal Audit is a
continuous process and the scope covers verification and vouching of Cash Payments and Bank Payments,
verification of Journal Vouchers, scrutiny of General Ledger, Risk Coverage, compliance with applicable laws and
regulations including Secretarial issues, compliance with company’s policies and procedures related to Human
Resources, Code of Ethics, Customer Contracts, Quality Processes, Information and Physical Security
requirements of the company’s operations.
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Consolidated Financials
Stand Alone
Financial Performance
March 31, 2003
Turnover
15,657,772
Operating Profit (EBIDTA)
2,414,412
Operating Profit (EBIDTA)
15%
Depreciation & Amortisation
1,931,239
Provision for Taxation (Incl Deferred Tax) (110,282)
Profit After Tax
583,455
Dividend
–
Return on Networth
1.60%
Other Income
44,468
Total Revenue
15,702,240
Balance Sheet
Share Capital
50,043,000
Reserves & Surplus
–
Misc Expenses Not Written-off/Goodwill 13,648,901
Net Worth
36,394,099
Debt
–
Debt-Equity Ratio
–
Gross Block
21,528,184
Capital Expenditure: Advances
–
Cash & Cash Equivalents
2,485,853
Net Current Assets
15,384,506
Total Assets
50,043,000
Return On Equity
1%
Per Share Data
Basic/Diluted EPS (Par Value Rs. 2)
0.02
Dividend (Par Value Rs. 2)
–
Book Value (Par Value Rs. 2)
1.45
Other Information (As of March 31, Sept 30)
Number of Shareholders
233
Market Capitalisation
36,030,960

(In Rs., except where stated )
Consolidated
Consolidated
March 31, 2006
March 31, 2007
630,208,162
2,218,477,484
350,904,334
1,104,915,771
56%
50%
2,594,086
80,362,350
41,534,050
170,314,007
302,466,404
927,907,185
17,057,500
114,025,000
74.11%
17.71%
1,014,591
73,667,771
631,222,753
2,292,145,255

Stand Alone
March 31, 2004
57,250,389
32,299,908
56%
2,127,387
(246,443)
30,418,964
5,004,300
50.42%
1,403,444
58,653,833

Consolidated
March 31, 2005
223,863,135
76,499,030
34%
7,918,471
8,902,927
68,410,982
10,824,833
55.09%
3,408,965
227,272,100

50,043,000
11,993,460
1,706,837
60,329,623
–
–
27,545,237
–
25,899,089
34,587,923
62,036,460
61%

68,230,000
85,747,899
29,791,920
124,185,979
–
–
35,509,405
–
64,592,789
97,631,493
153,977,899
100%

68,230,000
373,873,694
33,971,920
408,131,774
–
–
109,701,636
5,080,714
180,800,370
308,928,553
442,103,694
443%

100,000,000
5,361,983,579
221,877,532
5,240,106,047
–
–
528,918,880
211,826,840
1,260,185,383
1,918,703,626
5,484,077,115
928%

1.22
0.2
2.41

2.56
0.4
3.64

8.87
0.5
11.96

24.31
2.00
104.80

240
36,030,960

584
377,525,460

1052
4,641,345,750

1007
17,367,500,000

RATIO ANALYSIS

Ratio Analysis Consolidated Financials
March 31, 2005
Financial Performance
Overseas Revenue/Total Turnover (%)
95.66
Domestic Revenue/Total Turnover (%)
4.34
Cost of Sales/Total Turnover (%)
58.77
Gross Profit/Total Turnover (%)
41.23
Selling & Marketing Expenses/Total Turnover (%)
3.76
General & Administrative Expenses/Total Turnover (%)
3.31
Aggregate Employee Costs/Total Turnover (%)
5.61
Operation Profit/Total Turnover (%)
34.17
Depreciation & Amortisation/Total Turnover (%)
1.16
Operating Profit After Depreciation & Amortisation/
Total Turnover (%)
34.17
Other Income/Total Revenue (%)
1.50
Profit Before Tax/Total Revenue (%)
34.02
Tax/Total Revenue (%)
3.92
Tax/PBT (%)
11.52
PAT/Total Revenue (%)
30.10
Balance Sheet
Debt-Equity Ratio
0.00
Current Ratio
4.25
Day’s Sales Outstanding (DSO)
72.02
Cash & Cash Equivalents/Total Assets (%)
41.95
Cash & Cash Equivalents/Total Revenue (%)
28.42
Capital Expenditure/Total Revenue (%)
15.62
Deprecation & Amortisation/Gross Block (%)
7.31
Return
PAT/Average Net Worth (%)
55.09
ROCE (PBIT/Average Capital Employed) (%)
50.21
Growth
Overseas Turnover (%)
528.07
Total Turnover (%)
291.02
Operating Profit (%)
149.93
Net Profit (%)
126.73
Basic/Diluted EPS (%)
109.73
Data: Per Share (Adjusted to Par Value Rs. 2)
Basic/Diluted EPS (Rs)
2.56
Price/Earnings, End of Year/Period
21.59
EPS/PE
0.12
Book Value (Rs)
3.64
Price/Book Value, End of Year/Period
15.18
Dividend Per Share (Rs)
0.4
Dividend (%)
20
Market Capitalisation/Total Revenue,
End of Year (Rs Crore)
37.75

March 31, 2006

March 31, 2007

98.26
1.74
34.00
66.00
5.73
4.59
5.89
55.68
1.26

99.80
0.20
44.46
55.54
3.25
2.48
4.54
49.81
3.62

55.68
0.16
54.50
6.58
12.07
47.92

46.18
3.21
47.91
7.43
15.51
40.48

0.00
3.59
136.98
40.90
28.64
17.38
7.22

0.00
7.75
129.92
22.98
54.98
23.08
15.19

113.64
129.25

32.86
38.89

189.16
181.51
358.70
342.13
246.50

257.53
252.02
214.88
206.78
174.24

8.87
15.34
0.58
11.96
11.37
0.5
25

24.31
14.29
1.70
104.82
3.31
2.00
100

464.13

1,736.75
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of
TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED,
1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, as at March 31, 2007, and also the
related Profit and Loss account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.
2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 as amended ('the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 ('the Act'), we enclose
in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.
4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph (3) above, we report that:
(i) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;
(ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as appears
from our examination of those books;
(iii) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account;
(iv) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report
comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act.
(v) On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2007 and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2007 from being
appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Act.
(vi) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said
accounts together with the notes thereon give the information required by the Act, in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2007;
(b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit for the year ended on that date; and
(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Place : Hyderabad
Date : April 19, 2007

(C.V KOTESWARA RAO)
Partner
Membership No.28353

FINANCIALS-STAND ALONE

Annexure to the Auditors’ Report (referred to in paragraph 3 of our Report of
even date to the Members of Tanla Solutions Limited for the year ended March
31, 2007)
1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.
(b) Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management and, in our opinion, the verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.
(c) No substantial part of fixed assets has been disposed off during the year.
2.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not hold
any physical inventories. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

3. As informed the Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured to and from
companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956. Accordingly, clause 4(III) (b) to (d) of the Order are not applicable.
4. On the basis of checks carried out during the course of audit and as per explanations given to us, we are of
the opinion that there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the company
and the nature of its business; for the purchases of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods.
During the course of our audit, no major weakness has been noticed in the internal controls.
5. a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that
the transactions that need to entered into the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 have been so entered.
b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, transactions made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of Rupees five lakhs in respect of each party during the
year have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the
relevant time.
6. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
any deposits with in the meaning of Sections 58A and 58AA of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public.
7. In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.
8. To the best our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost
records under Section 209 (i) (d) of the of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the Company’s nature of
business.
9. (a) According to the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable at the end of the year for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no income tax, wealth tax, sales tax,
customs duty and excise duty, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. There were no
dues on account of cess under 441A of the Companies Act 1956, since the date from which the
aforesaid section comes into force has not yet been notified by the Central Government.
10. The company does not have the accumulated losses as at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred
any cash losses during the current financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding
financial year.
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11. Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the management, we are of
the opinion that the company did not have any outstanding dues to financial Institutions, Banks or Debenture
holders.
12. According to the information and expiations given to us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on
the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.
13. In our opinion, the Company is not a chit or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund /
provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

society. Therefore, the

14. The company is not in the business of dealing or trading in shares, securities, debenture and other
instruments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
15. The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.
16. The company has not taken term loans from banks.
17. Based on our examination of the balance sheet of the company as at 31.03.2007, since there is no loans
availed by the company, the utilization of funds does not arise.
18. The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.
19. During the year covered by our audit report, the Company does not have any outstanding debentures during
the year.
20. We have verified that the end use of funds raised from the Follow on Public Issue as is disclosed in note 9
schedule 15 to the financial statements is as per SEBI (Disclosure and Invester Protection) Guidlines 2000.
21. Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Place : Hyderabad
Date : April 19, 2007

(C.V KOTESWARA RAO)
Partner
Membership No.28353
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Balance Sheet As At
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholder’s funds
Share Capital
Reserves & Surplus
Deferred Tax Liability

(In Rs)
Schedule March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

1
2

100,000,000
4,942,701,717

68,230,000
302,700,493

3

2,017,079
5,044,718,796

6,993,006
377,923,499

176,830,786
22,437,188
154,393,599
211,826,840

95,171,767
11,857,211
83,314,556
5,080,714

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets
Gross Block
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Block
Capital Work-in-Progress

4

Investments

5

2,683,470,600

32,374,000

Current Assets, Loans & Advances:
Sundry Debtors
Cash & Bank Balances
Loans & Advances

6
7
8

230,585,749
1,175,824,917
516,295,860
1,922,706,525
119,764,380
1,802,942,146
192,085,612
5,044,718,796

144,096,832
145,570,553
594,8213
295,615,597
42,641,369
252,974,229
4,180,000
377,923,499

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions
Net Current Assets
Miscellaneous Expenditure

9
10

Significant Accounting Polices and Notes on
Accounts

15

The schedules referred to above form an intergral part of the Balance Sheet
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Satish Kathirisetti
Chairman & Managing Director Director & CTO
(C.V. Koteswara Rao)
Partner
Membership No. 28353
Akash Rukhaiyar
Ch. Seshanuradha
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 19, 2007
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Profit & Loss Account for the Year Ended
Schedule
INCOME
Sale of Software Products and Services
Overseas
Domestic: India

EXPENDITURE
Cost of Sales
Selling & Marketing Expenses
General & Administrative Expenses
Operating Profit Before Depreciation
Depreciation & Amortisation
Operating Profit After Depreciation
Other Income
Net Profit Before Tax
Tax Expense on the Above (Incl FBT & Deferred Tax)
Net Profit After Tax
Profit Brought Forward from Last Year
Amount Available for Appropriations
Transfer to General Reserve
Interim/Proposed Dividend
Corporate Dividend Tax
Net Profit Transferred to Balance Sheet
Earning per Share Basic/Diluted
Weighted Average Number of Shares
Significant Accounting Polices and Notes on
Accounts

11
12
13

4
14

March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

815,698,047
4,445,875

402,998,834
10,957,109

820,143,922

413,955,943

209,057,411
29,030,051
22,589,258

106,905,274
13,658,058
16,815,174

260,676,720
559,467,202
58,601,379
500,865,823
91,220,068
592,085,891
15,814,667
576,271,224
253,379,597
829,650,820
57,627,122
100,000,000
14,025,000
657,998,698
15.10
38,162,411

137,378,506
276,577,437
4,278,633
272,298,804
5,537,187
277,835,992
20,497,024
257,338,968
41,224,340
298,563,308
25,733,897
17,057,500
2,392,314
253,379,597
7.54
34,115,000

15

The schedules referred to above form an intergral part of the profit and loss account
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

(C.V. Koteswara Rao)
Partner
Membership No. 28353
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 19, 2007

D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director

Satish Kathirisetti
Director & CTO

Akash Rukhaiyar
Chief Financial Officer

Ch. Seshanuradha
Company Secretary

FINANCIALS-STAND ALONE

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit Before Taxation, and Extraordinary Items
Adjusted for:
Depreciation
Interest & Dividend Received
Provisions Written Back
Bad Debts Written-off
Loss on Sale of Assets
Public Issue Expenses w/o
Operating Profits Before Working Capital Charges
Changes in Current Assets and Liabilities
Sundry Debtors
Loans and Advances
Current Liabilities and Provisions
Cash Generated from operations
Income Tax Paid
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Fixed Assets and Change in Capital
Work-in-Progress
Proceeds on Sale of Fixed Assets
Investments
Interest Received
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Follow on Public Offer: Equity Capital
Proceeds from follow on public Offer: Equity Premium
Public Issue Expenses Paid
Dividends and Dividend Tax Paid During the Year
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities
D. Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash and Cash
Equivalents
E. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of
the Year
F. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the
Year
Significant Accounting Polices and
Notes on Accounts
As per our report of even date attached
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

(C.V. Koteswara Rao)
Partner
Membership No. 28353
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 19, 2007

March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

592,085,891

277,835,992

10,579,976
(91,220,068)
–
244,233
–
48,021,403
559,711,436

4,278,633
(842,005)
(97,490)
3,990,095
278,790
–
285,444,014

(86,733,151)
(510,347,645)
75,908,092
38,538,732
125,862
38,412,870

(110,858,367)
1,715,447
4,447,754
180,748,849
1,273,500
179,475,349

(288,405,145)
–
(2,651,096,600)
91,220,068
(2,848,281,677)

(67,317,649)
353,571
–
842,005
(66,122,073)

31,770,000
4,177,755,000
(235,927,015)
(133,474,814)
3,840,123,171

–
–
(4,180,000)
(12,211,765)
(16,391,765)

1,030,254,364

96,961,511

145,570,553

48,609,042

1,175,824,917

145,570,553

15

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director

Satish Kathirisetti
Director & CTO

Akash Rukhaiyar
Chief Financial Officer

Ch. Seshanuradha
Company Secretary
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedules to the Balance Sheet As At:
March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

120,000,000

120,000,000

100,000,000

68,230,000

100,000,000

68,230,000

Balance in Profit and Loss Account

18,187,000
4,177,755,000
4,195,942,000
400,000
30,733,897
57,627,122
88,361,019
657,998,698

18,187,000
–
18,187,000
400,000
5,000,000
25,733,897
30,733,897
253,379,597

Total

4,942,701,717

302,700,493

Deferred Tax Liability – On Depreciation

18,230,012

7,497,302

Deferred Tax Asset
on Preliminary & Public Issue Expenses w/o
on Unabsorbed Losses

16,212,934
–

402,008
102,288

16,212,934

504,296

2,017,079

6,993,006

SCHEDULE: 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
60,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 Each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
(50,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 Each Fully Paid)
(Of the above 15,885,000 equity shares are allotted
to the shareholders for cash under follow on public
offer with the premium of Rs. 263 per share,
in fiscal 2007) (Previous year 3,415,000 equity shares
of Rs. 2 each fully paid)
Total
SCHEDULE: 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Share Premium
Add: Additions During the Year
Investment Subsidy
General Reserve
Add: Transfer from the Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE: 3
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Net Deferred Tax Liability

FINANCIALS-STAND ALONE

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedules to the Balance Sheet As At
March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

7,174,000

7,174,000

25,200,000

25,200,000

50,000,000

–

403,470,346

–

403,380,661

–

453,654,132

–

100,000,000

–

555,862,155

–

250,630,000

–

404,099,307

–

Total

30,000,000
2,683,470,600

–
32,374,000

Total

–
230,585,749
230,585,749

645,246
143,451,586
144,096,832

41,054

43,336

351,276,692
824,507,171
1,175,824,917

61,263,214
84,264,003
145,570,553

SCHEDULE: 5
INVESTMENTS
In Equity Shares (Un-Quoted, At Cost):
Long-Term Investment (In Subsidiary Companies)
Smartnet Communication Systems Pvt Ltd.,
(2,50,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid-up)
Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
(1,000 equity shares of GBP 1 each, fully paid-up)
Non-Trade (Unquoted) – Mutual Funds
Birla Sun Life Cash Manager – IP – Daily Dividend
Reinvestment, 4,999,000.20 units of Rs. 10.0020 each
ICICI Prudential Institutional Liquid Plan Super
Institutaional Daily Dividend, 40,347,034.595 units
of Rs. 10 each
Reliance Liquidity Fund – Daily Dividend
Reinvestment Option, 40,325,565.141 units of
Rs. 10.0031 each
UTI Liquid Cash Plan Institutional – Daily Income
Option – Re-Investment, 4533639.787 units of
Rs. 100.064 each
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund II – Quarterly Plan –
Series II – Institutional Dividend Plan,
10,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
TATA Liquid Super High Investment Fund – Daily
Dividend, 498,745.787 units of Rs. 1,114.52 each
TATA Fixed Horizon Fund Series 7 – Scheme B –
Growth-Institutional Plan, 25,000,000 units of
Rs. 10.0252 each
UTI Fixed Maturity Plan Quarterly Series
QFMP/02071/I – Dividend Plan, 40,409,930.686 units
of Rs. 10 each
Birla Sun Life Cash Manager – IP – Daily Dividend
Reinvestment, 2,999,400.120 units of
Rs. 10.0020 each
SCHEDULE: 6
SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecured considered good)
Debts Outstanding for More Than Six Months
Other Debts
SCHEDULE: 7
CASH & BANK BALANCES
Cash on Hand
With Scheduled Banks:
In Current Accounts**
In Deposit Accounts
Total
** Includes balance in unclaimed dividend account is Rs. 51,724,011
** Includes balance in share application money refund account Rs. 6,356,694
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedules to the Balance Sheet As At
SCHEDULE: 8
LOANS & ADVANCES
(Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value
to be received)
Advances for Rendering Services
Rent Deposits and Other Deposits
Loans to Subsidiaries
Advance Income Tax & TDS
Total
SCHEDULE: 9
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities:
Sundry Creditors for Services and Expenses
Dues to SSI Units
Dues to Others**
Sundry Creditors – Hire Purchase
Other Liabilities
Unclaimed Dividend
Provisions:
Provision for Income Tax
Proposed Dividend
Tax on Dividend
Total

March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

4,022,211
34,376,002
447,246,250
30,651,398

1,526,975
2,691,151
–
1,730,087

516,295,860

5,948,213

–
29,126,144
–
3,342,594
51,724,011

–
3,908,152
3,098,760
1,121,940
155,805

84,192,749

8,284,657

35,571,631
–
–
35,571,631
119,764,380

14,906,897
17,057,500
2,392,314
34,356,711
42,641,369

4,180,000
235,927,015
240,107,015
48,021,403

4,180,000
–
4,180,000
–

192,085,612

4,180,000

** Includes amount due to subsidiary company Rs. 3,521,075

SCHEDULE: 10
MISCELLENEOUS EXPENSES
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
Public issue expenses Opening Balance
Add: Incurred During the Year
Less: Written-off During the Year
Total

FINANCIALS-STAND ALONE

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedules to Profit & Loss Account for the Year Ended
SCHEDULE: 11
COST OF SALES
Cost of Services
Staff Salaries & Benefits
Travelling Expenses
Communication Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Printing & Stationary
Office Maintenance Expenses
Power & Fuel
General Expenses
Total
SCHEDULE: 12
SELLING & MARKETING EXPENSES
Staff Salaries & Benefits
Travelling Expenses
Communication Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Printing & Stationary
Business Promotion & Advertisement
Office Maintennce Expenses
Power & Fuel
General Expenses
Total

March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

1,428,037,84
41,370,466
6,961,700
4,619,128
1,715,536
6,239,428
304,133
1,056,074
2,271,063
1,716,100

66,973,028
21,813,934
4,829,336
3,614,813
964,864
6,090,684
140,510
705,067
1,521,911
251,127

209,057,411

106,905,274

12,316,398
1,206,695
481,750
100,914
371,395
304,133
12,348,449
211,215
316,224
1,372,880

1,283,173
284,079
212,636
56,757
358,276
140,510
11,176,859
41,475
89,524
14,772

29,030,051

13,658,058
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedules to Profit & Loss Account for the Year Ended
March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

9,474,152
1,113,872
566,764
201,828
817,068
608,265
2,352,085
140,810
287,476
343,220
3,390,237
1,489,818

2,566,345
568,157
425,272
113,513
716,551
281,019
3,558,953
82,949
179,048
29,544
2,603,426
–

500,000
100,000
689,818
244,233
269,611

250,000
100,000
519,384
3,990,095
830,917

22,589,258

16,815,174

52,903,423
31,878,729
6,428,082
9,834

842,005
–
4,597,692
97,490

91,220,068

5,537,187

SCHEDULE: 13
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Staff Salaries & Benefits
Travelling Expenses
Communication Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Printing & Stationary
Advertisement Expenses
Office Maintennce Expenses
Power & Fuel
General Expenses
Professional Charges
Quality & ISO Expenses
Auditors Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Finance & Bank Charges
Bad Debts Written-Off
Exchange Fluctuation
Total
SCHEDULE: 14
OTHER INCOME
Interest Received
Dividend Received: Domestic
Dividend Received: Overseas
Misc. Income
Total

FINANCIALS-STAND ALONE
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedule 4: FIXED ASSETS & DEPRECIATION
GROSS BLOCK
PARTICULARS
April 1,
Additions
March 31,
2006
2007
Land & Site
Development
8,323,552
37,847,840
46,171,392
Building
Developments
–
22,317,425
22,317,425
Building
Interiors
& Fixtures
18,534,299
3,677,859
2,221,258
Furniture
20,098,623
576,445
20,675,068
Computers
25,949,314
13,863,118
39,812,432
Office Equipment
12,102,881
1,710,629
13,813,510
Vehicles
6,728,746
1,116,063
7,844,809
Air-Conditioning
3,348,291
509,505
3,857,796
Library Books
86,061
40,136
126,197
95,171,767
81,659,020 176,830,786

April 1,
2006

DEPRECIATION
For the
year

March 31,
2007

(In Rs)
NET BLOCK
March 31,
March 31,
2007
2006

–

–

–

46,171,392

8,323,552

–

439,033

439,033

21,878,392

–

2,525,229
905,473
6,462,217
462,742
1,116,540
305,198
79,812
11,857,211

1,347,579
1,300,259
5,614,474
903,195
665,374
263,677
46,385
10,579,976

3,872,808
2,205,732
12,076,691
1,365,937
1,781,914
568,875
126,197
22,437,188

18,339,349
18,469,336
27,735,741
12,447,573
6,062,895
3,288,921
–
154,393,599

16,009,070
19,193,150
19,487,097
11,640,139
5,612,206
3,043,093
6,249
83,314,556
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SCHEDULE: 15
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:
I.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), under the historical cost convention, on the basis of a going concern
basis, while revenue, expenses, assets and Liabilities are accounted/recognized on accrual basis.
GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI), the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI). Accounting policies are consistently applied, except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The Management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounting standards on an ongoing basis.
2. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires Management to make
estimates and assumptions that effect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent assets and liabilities, as at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of income and expenses during the period. Examples of such estimates include provisions for
doubtful debts, future obligations under retirement benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer
support and the useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets.
Management periodically assessed, using external and internal sources, whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. Contingencies are recorded when it is probable that a liability will be
incurred, and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
3. Revenue Recognition
Revenue from software development on fixed-price, fixed-time frame contracts, where there is no
uncertainty as to measurement or collectability, has been recognized. On time and material contracts,
revenue is recognized as the related services are rendered. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on
uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the
current contract estimates. Annual Technical Services revenue and revenue from fixed-price maintenance
contracts are recognized proportionately over the period in which services are rendered. Revenue from
the sale of products for software applications, is recognized on transfer of the products to the users.
4. Fixed Assets, Intangible Assets and Capital Work-in-Progress
Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. All direct costs are capitalized
until fixed assets are ready for use including taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses
relating to acquisition and installation. Capital work-in-progress comprises outstanding advances paid
to acquire fixed assets, and the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the
balance sheet date. Intangible assets are recorded as the consideration paid for acquisition.
5. Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation on fixed assets is applied on straight-line method, pro-rata for the period of usage,
in accordance with the rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.
6. Retirement Benefits
a. Gratuity
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Tanla provides for gratuity, a defined
retirement plan (the “Gratuity Plan”), covering the eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure
of employment. Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan is determined by actuarial valuation as of
the balance sheet date, based upon which, the company contributes the ascertained liabilities to the
Tanla Solutions Limited Employees Gratuity Scheme Trust (the “Trust”), managed by the
Life Insurance Corporation of India.

FINANCIALS-STAND ALONE

b. Provident Fund
Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan.
Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon is paid at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment. Both the employee and the company make monthly contributions to the
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner equal to a specified percentage of the covered
employee’s salary.
c. Employee State Insurance Fund
Eligible employees receive benefits from employee state insurance scheme, which is a gross salary
of less than Rs.10000 per month are entitled to receive benefit under employee state insurance fund
scheme. The employer makes contribution to the scheme at a predetermined rate (presently 4.75%)
of employee’s gross salary. Tanla has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly
contributions. These contributions are made to a fund administered and managed by the
Government of India. Tanla’s monthly contributions are charges to income in the year it is incurred.
7. Research and Development
Revenue expenditure incurred on research and development is expensed as incurred. Capital expenditure
incurred on research and development is depreciated on straight-line method, pro-rata for the period of
usage, in accordance with the rates prescribed under schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.
8. Foreign Currency Transactions
The company translates all foreign currency transactions at Exchange Rates prevailing on the date of
transactions. Exchange Rate differences resulting from foreign exchange transactions settled during the
year are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.
Monetary current assets and monetary current liabilities that are denominated in foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the balance sheet. The resulting difference is also
recorded in the profit and loss account.
9. Forward Contract in Foreign Contracts
The company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its exposure to movements in
foreign exchange rates. The use of these foreign exchange forward contracts reduces the risk or cost to
the company and the company does use the foreign exchange forward contracts for trading or
speculation purposes.
The company records the gain or loss on effective hedges in the foreign currency fluctuation reserve
until the transactions are complete. On the completion the gain or loss is transferred to the profit and
loss account of that period.
10. Income Tax
Income taxes are computed using the tax effect accounting method, in accordance with the
Accounting Standard (AS 22) “Accounting for Taxes on Income” which includes current taxes and
deferred taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact if current year timing differences between
taxable income and accounting income for the year and the relevant of timing difference of earlier years.
Deferred tax asset and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset/liability is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred Tax assets are recognized and carried forward
only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
11. Earnings Per Share
In determining earnings per share, the company considers the net profit after tax expense. The number of
shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average shares used in outstanding
during the period.
12. Investments
Trade investments are the investments made to enhance the company’s business interests.
All other investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value.
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13. Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
company are segregated.
14. Public Issue Expenses
The expenses incurred for follow on public issue have been written off in five equal installments
from the year of completion of public issue.
II. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:
All amounts in the financial statements are presented in Rupees and as otherwise stated.
1.
S. No.
1.
2.
3.
4.

Contingent Liabilities
Particulars
Outstanding Guarantees Given by the Company
Claims Against Company, Not Acknowledged as Debts
Claims Made by Company, not Acknowledged as Debts
Corporate Guarantee Given to Subsidiary Companies

March 31, 2007
61,250
–
–
4,30,45,000

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006
61,250
–
–
–

For the Year
2006-2007
142,803,784
63,161,016
9,282,267
5,667,642
2,018,278
7,427,890
1,216,531
14,700,534
1,408,099
2,874,763
3,432,200
3,390,237
1,489,818

(In Rs)
For the Year
2005-2006
66,973,028
25,663,452
5,681,571
4,252,722
1,135,134
7,165,510
562,038
14,735,812
829,491
1,790,484
295,444
2,603,426
–

500,000
100,000
689,818
244,233
269,611
260,676,719

250,000
100,000
519,384
3,990,095
830,917
137,378,506

2. Aggregate Expenses
The Aggregate Amounts Incurred on Certain Specific Expenses:
Particulars
Cost of Services
Staff Salaries and Benefits
Travelling Expenses
Communication Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Printing and Stationary
Advertisement Expenses
Office Maintenance Expenses
Power and Fuel
General Expenses
Professional Charges
Quality & ISO Expenses
Auditors Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Bank Charges
Bad Debts Written-Off
Exchange Fluctuation
Total

3. Quantitative Details
The Company is engaged in the business of development & maintenance of Computer Software,
offshore development and other related services. The production and sale of such software services
cannot be expressed in any generic unit and hence it is not possible to give such quantitative details of
sales and certain information as required under paragraph 3,4C and 4D of Part II of Schedule VI to the
Companies Act, 1956. The details of Conversation of Energy, Technology absorption are given in the
Directors Report. R&D expenditure is not separately accounted for.
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4. Foreign Exchange Earned and Outgo
a. Imports (Valued on the Cost, Insurance and Freight Basis)
Particulars
Import of Capital Goods
b. Activity in Foreign Currency
Particulars
Earnings in Foreign Exchange (On Accrual Basis)
Income from Software Products and Offshore Development Services
Dividends Received
Interest Received
Expenditure in Foreign Exchange (on accrual basis)
Cost of Services
Foreign Travel Expenses
Professional Charges
Net Earnings in Foreign Exchange

For the Year
2006-2007
11,916,304

(In Rs)
For the Year
2005-2006
14,978,817

For the Year
2006-2007

For the Year
2005-2006

815,698,047
6,428,082
11,247,696

404,819,724
4,797,692
–

134,743,879
1,596,559
6,797,950
678,319,133

62,890,606
832,030
998,114
329,917,849

Year Ended
March 31, 2007
1,698,377

(In Rs)
Year Ended
March 31, 2006
785,138

5,111,877
42,682
9,314,539
3,235,412
19,402,887

1,863,683
24,174
798,219
2,215,084
5,686,298

5. Research and Development Expenditure
Particulars
Capital Expenditure
Revenue Expenditure
Staff Salaries and Benefits
Staff Welfare Expenses
R&D Software & Consumables
Overheads
Total

1
2
3

6. Related Party Transactions
a. List of Related Parties:
Name of the Related Party
Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
Smartnet Communication Systems Private Limited
Tanla Mobile Limited (Formerly Known as Mobizar Limited)

Country
UK
India
UK

Nature of relationship
Wholly-Owned Subsidiary
Wholly-Owned Subsidiary
Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of
Tanla (UK)

The details of the related party transactions entered into by the company for the period ended
March 31, 2007:
(Amount in Rs)
Tanla Solutions
Smartnet
Tanla Mobile Ltd
(UK) Limited
Communication (Formerly known as
Particulars
Systems Pvt Ltd
Mobizar Limited)
a Relationship Between the Parties
Wholly-Owned
Wholly-Owned
Wholly-Owned
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary of
Tanla (UK)
B Nature of Transactions
Outstanding Amounts Advance Received
Outstanding
received, Dividends
Amounts
Received, Interest
Received
Received & Working
Capital Loan given
c Value of Transactions
464,922,028
3,526,075
14,740,627
d Amount Outstanding
447,246,250
3,521,075
–
e Provision for Doubtful Debts
–
–
–
f Amount Written-Off
–
–
–
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b. Transactions with Key Management Personnel
Particulars of remuneration and other benefits paid to key management personnel during the period
ended March 31, 2007: (Executive Directors)
(In Rs.)
Salary and
Contributions to
Total
Allowances
Provident Fund
Remuneration
Name
and Others
D. Uday Kumar Reddy-Chairman & Managing Director
1,827,840
92,160
1,920,000
Satish Kathirisetti-Director–CTO
2,045,388
103,128
2,148,516
Anoop Roy Kundal-Director–Operations
971,040
48,960
1,020,000
Amit Gupta-Director–Reference Architecture
913,920
46,080
960,000
Navnit Chachan-Director–R&D
1,016,736
51,264
1,068,000
Total
6,774,924
341,592
7,116,516
Particulars of remuneration and other benefits paid to key management personnel during the period ended
March 31, 2007: (Non-Executive Directors)
(Amount in Rs)
Name
Sitting Fees
Reimbursement
Total
of Expenses
Abhishek Khaitan
10,000
–
10,000
Sudhanshu Shekhar Jamuar
–
–
–
Ram Narain Agarwal
60,000
–
60,000
Subir Mehra
–
–
–
Villadath Harish Kumar
40,000
–
40,000
Srikanth Madan Chitnis
10,000
–
10,000
Total
120,000
–
120,000
The aggregate of managerial remuneration under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the
Directors (Including Managing Director) is:
Particulars
Whole-Time Directors
Salary
Contributions to Provident Fund and others
Total
Non Executive Directors
Sitting Fees
Reimbursement of Expenses
Total
Grand Total

Year ended
March 31, 2007

(In Rs.)
Year ended
March 31, 2006

6,774,924
341,592
7,116,516

6,021,516
150,576
6,172,092

120,000
–
120,000
7,236,516

66,000
76,700
142,700
6,314,792

No commission has been paid to whole time Directors and non whole time Directors during the year
2006-2007.
7. Dues to Small-Scale Industrial Undertakings
As at March 31, 2007 as per available information with the company, there are no dues to small scale
Industrial Undertakings.
8. Income Taxes
The provision for taxation includes tax liabilities in India on the company’s global income as reduced by
exempt incomes and any tax liabilities arising overseas on income sourced from those countries.
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Most of Tanlas’ operations are conducted through Software Technology Parks (STPs).
Income from STPs are tax exempt for the earlier of 10 years commencing from fiscal year in which the
unit commences software development, on March 31, 2009.
The detail of deferred tax liability comprises the following:
Particulars
i
ii

Deferred Tax Liability
On Account of Depreciation (A)
Deferred Tax Asset
On Account of Misc. Expenses w/o
On Account of Unabsorbed Losses
Total (B)
Net Deferred tax Liability (A–B)

March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

18,230,012

7,497,302

16,212,934
–
16,212,934
2,017,079

402,008
102,288
504,296
6,993,006

9. Details of Funds Received From Follow on Public Offer
During the year, the company has raised an amount of Rs. 420.95 crores from the follow on public offer
(FPO) of equity shares. The details of utilization of funds received and utilization is as follows:

Statement of Utilization of FPO Funds As of March 31, 2007
Particulars
Amount Raised through FPO
Share Issue Expenses Paid
Net Proceeds
Deployment
General Corporate Purposes
R&D Expenses
Working Capital Requirements
Investments in Fixed Deposits with Banks Pending Utilization
Short-Term Investments in Mutual Funds Pending Utilization
Balance in Bank Account (Unutilized)

(In Rs)
4,209,525,000
193,348,658
4,016,176,342
536,073,090
1,682,546
34,192,956
771,441,395
2,621,096,600
51,689,755
4,016,176,342

10. Cash and Bank Balances
Details of balances as at balance sheet dates during the year with non-scheduled banks:
Particulars
Citibank N.A

March 31, 2007
9,603

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006
13,192

11. Segment Reporting
As required by the Accounting Standard (AS 17) “Segment Reporting”, the Company is mainly engaged
in the area of Software Development and related services. Hence segment reporting is not applicable to
the Company and to the nature of its business.
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12. Earnings Per Share
Particulars
Net Profit After Tax
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 2 Each
Nominal Value of Shares
Earnings Per Share (Basic/Diluted)

For the Year
2006-2007
576,271,224
38,162,411
Rs. 2
15.10

(In Rs)
For the Year
2005-2006
257,338,968
34,115,000
Rs. 2
7.54

13. The previous year figures have been recast / restated, wherever necessary, to the current period’s
classification.
14. Financial figures have been rounded off to nearest rupee.
15. Schedules 1 to 15 form part of Balance Sheet and have been authenticated.
As per our report of even date attached
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director
(C.V. Koteswara Rao)
Partner
Membership No. 28353
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 19, 2007

Akash Rukhaiyar
Chief Financial Officer

Satish Kathirisetti
Director–CTO

Ch. Seshanuradha
Company Secretary
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Information Pursuant to the Provisions of Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956
Statement on Balance Sheet Abstract and General Business Profile of the Company:
I. Registration Details
Registration No
State Code
Balance Sheet Date
II. Capital Raised during the year
Public Issue
Rights Issue
Bonus Issue
Private Placement (Preferential Offer)
III.Position of Mobilization and Deployment of Funds
Total Liabilities
Total Assets
SOURCES OF FUNDS :
Paid-up Capital
Reserves & Surplus
Deferred Tax Liability

21262
01
31-03-2007
420,95,25,000
Nil
Nil
Nil
504,47,18,796
504,47,18,796
:

10,00,00,000
494,27,01,717

:
20,17,079
APPLICATION OF FUNDS:
Net Fixed Assets
36,62,20,439
Investments
268,34,70,600
Net Current Assets
180,29,42,146
Misc. Expenditure
19,20,85,612
IV. Performance of Company
Turnover/Income
:
82,01,43,922
Total Expenditure
31,92,78,099
Profit Before Tax
59,20,85,891
Profit After Tax
576,271,224
Earning per Share (face value Rs.2 each) in Rs.
15.10
Dividend Rate %
100%
V. Generic Names of three principal Products/services of Company (As per monetary terms)
Item Code No. (IIC Code)
85249009.10
Product Description
Software Development and related services

As per our report of even date attached
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director
(C.V. Koteswara Rao)
Partner
Membership No. 28353
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 19, 2007

Akash Rukhaiyar
Chief Financial Officer

Satish Kathirisetti
Director–CTO

Ch. Seshanuradha
Company Secretary
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Auditors’ Report to the Board of Directors of Tanla Solutions Limited on the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Tanla Solutions Limited and it’s
Subsidiaries.
To
The Board of Directors of Tanla Solutions Limited
1. We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Tanla Solutions Limited and its subsidiaries
namely Smartnet Communication Systems (P) Ltd., and Tanla Solutions (UK) Ltd. (collectively referred to as
‘the Group’), as at March 31, 2007, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement for the year ended on the date annexed thereto prepared in accordance with accounting
priciples generally accepted in India. These Consolidated Financial Statements are the responsibility of
Group’s management and has been prepared by the management on the basis of separate financial
statements and financial information regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with an identified financial reporting
framework and are free of material mis-statement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Group’s management in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS 21) “Consolidated Financial Statements”,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the basis of separate financial statements of
Tanla Solutions Limited and its afore said subsidiaries, included in the consolidated financial statements.
4. On the basis of the information and explanations given to us and on consideration of the separate reports on
individual audited financial statements of Tanla Solutions Limited and its afore said subsidiarries, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:
(a) In the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2007;
(b) In the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the Consolidated Profit of Group for the year
ended on that date; and
(c) In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statements, of the Consolidated Cash Flows of Group for the
year ended on that date.
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Place : Hyderabad
Date : April 19, 2007

(C.V KOTESWARA RAO)
Partner
Membership No.28353

FINANCIALS CONSOLIDATED

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Consolidated Balance Sheet As At
SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Shareholder’s Funds
Share Capital
Reserves & Surplus
Deferred Tax Liability

Schedule

March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

1
2
3

100,000,000
5,361,983,579
22,093,536

68,230,000
366,880,689
6,993,006

5,484,077,115

442,103,694

528,918,880
48,346,363
480,572,517
211,826,840

109,701,636
15,579,128
94,122,507
5,080,714

APPLICATION OF FUNDS:
Fixed Assets:
Gross Block
Less: Depreciation
Net Block
Capital Work-in-Progress (Incl Advances)

4

Goodwill
Investments
Current Assets, Loans & Advances:
Sundry Debtors
Cash & Bank Balances
Loans & Advances

5
6

29,791,920
2,651,096,600

29,791,920
–

7
8
9

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions

10

Miscellaneous Expenditure

11

789,651,995
1,260,185,383
153,005,943
2202,843,322
284,139,696
1,918,703,626
192,085,612
5,484,077,115

236,512,529
180,800,370
11,085,688
428,398,586
119,470,034
308,928,553
4,180,000
442,103,694

Significant Accounting Polices and
Notes on Accounts

16

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Satish Kathirisetti
Chairman & Managing Director Director & CTO
(C.V. Koteswara Rao)
Partner
Membership No. 28353
Akash Rukhaiyar
Ch. Seshanuradha
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 19, 2007
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Consolidated Profit & Loss Account for the Year Ended
Schedule
INCOME
Sale of Software Products and Services
Overseas
Domestic: India
EXPENDITURE
Cost of Sales
Sales & Marketing Expenses
General & Administrative Expenses
Operating Profit Before Interest, Depreciation
Depreciation & Amortisation
Operating Profit After Interest, Depreciation
Other Income
Net Profit Before Tax
Tax Expense on the Above (Incl FBT & Deferred Tax)
Net Profit After Tax
Profit Brought Forward from Last Year
Amount Available for Appropriations
Transfer to General Reserve
Interim/Proposed Dividend
Corporate Dividend Tax
Net Profit Transferred to Balance Sheet
Earning Per Share Basic/Diluted
Weighted Average Number of Shares
Significant Accounting Polices and
Notes on Accounts

12
13
14

4
15

March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

2,214,031,609
4,445,875

619,251,053
10,957,109

2,218,477,484

630,208,162

986,424,998
72,072,584
55,064,131

214,277,397
36,114,474
28,911,956

1,113,561,714
1,104,915,771
80,362,350
1,024,553,421
73,667,771
1,098,221,192
170,314,007
927,907,185
308,397,558
1,236,304,743
57,627,122
106,414,750
14,025,000
1,058,237,871
24.31
38,162,411

279,303,828
350,904,334
7,918,470
342,985,864
1,014,591
344,000,455
41,534,050
302,466,405
48,333,697
350,800,102
25,274,128
17,057,500
2,392,314
30,607,6160
8.87
34,115,000

16

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the profit and loss account
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Satish Kathirisetti
Chairman & Managing Director Director & CTO
(C.V. Koteswara Rao)
Partner
Membership No. 28353
Akash Rukhaiyar
Ch. Seshanuradha
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 19, 2007

FINANCIALS CONSOLIDATED

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit Before Taxation and Extraodinary Items
Adjusted for:
Depreciation
Interest Received
Bad Debts Written-Off
Other Income
Public Issue Expenses w/o
Operating Profits Before Working Capital Charges
Changes in Current Assets and Liabilities
Product Under Development
Sundry Debtors
Loans and Advances
Current Liabilities and Provisions
Cash Generated from Operations
Income Taxes Paid
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Fixed Assets & Change in Capital
Work-in-Progress
Proceeds on Sale of Fixed Assets
Purchase of Investments
Proceeds from Sale of Shares (Investments)
Interest Received
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Follow on Public Offer: Equity Capital
Proceeds from Follow on Public Offer:
Equity Premium
Dividends & Dividend Tax Paid During the Year
Decrease in Un-Secured Loans
Public Issue Expenses Paid
Un-Realised Exchange Gain/(Loss) on Conversion
Net Cash generated from Financing Activities
D. Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents
E. Cash and Cash Equivalents At the Beginning of
the Year
F. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year
Significant Accounting Polices & Notes on Accounts
As per our report of even date attached
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

(C.V. Koteswara Rao)
Partner
Membership No: 28353
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 19, 2007

March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

1,098,221,192

344,000,455

32,340,947
(73,667,771)
522,105
–
48,021,403
1,105,437,876

7,918,470
(917,101)
(4,526,492)
(97,490)
–
346,377,842

–
(553,139,467)
(141,920,256)
55,775,039
466,153,192
23,217,507
442,935,685

2,979,125
(188,453,819)
4,881,393
56,005,350
221,789,891
8,273,500
213,516,391

(625,963,371)
–
(2,651,096,600)

(81,597,994)
353,571
–

73,667,771
(3,203,392,199)

917,101
(80,327,322)

31,770,000

–

4,177,755,000
(133,474,814)
–
(235927015)
(281,644)
3,839,841,527

–
(12,211,765)
–
(4,180,000)
(589,723)
(16,981,487)

1,079,385,013

116 207 582

180,800,370
1,260,185,383

64,592,789
180,800,370

16

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director

Satish Kathirisetti
Director & CTO

Akash Rukhaiyar
Chief Financial Officer

Ch. Seshanuradha
Company Secretary
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedules to Consolidated Balance Sheet As At
March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

120,000,000

120,000,000

100,000,000

68,230,000

Total

100,000,000

68,230,000

Total

30,707,908
4,177,755,000
4,208,462,908
400,000
30,733,897
115,254,245
88,361,019
1,065,041,296
(281,644)
5,361,983,579

30,720,124
–
30,720,124
400,000
5,000,000
25,274,128
30,274,128
306,076,160
(589,723)
366,880,689

Deferred Tax Liability – On Depreciation

38,306,469

7,497,302

Deferred Tax Asset
On Preliminary & Public Issue Expenses w/o
On Unabsorbed Losses

16,212,934
–

402,008
102,288

16,212,934

504,296

22,093,536

6,993,006

SCHEDULE: 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
60,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 Each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
(50,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid)
(Of the above 15,885,000 equity shares were allotted
to the shareholders by way cash under follow on public
offer for a premium of Rs. 263 per share,
in fiscal 2007).(Previous year 34,115,000 equity
shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid)

SCHEDULE: 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Share Premium
Add: Additions During the Year
Investment Subsidy
General Reserve
Add: Transfer from the Profit and Loss Account
Balance in Profit & Loss Account
Currency Translation Reserve
SCHEDULE: 3
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Net Deferred Tax Liability
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedules to Consolidated Balance Sheet As At
March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

4,674,000
25,117,920

4,674,000
25,117,920

29,791,920

29,791,920

50,000,000

–

403,470,346

–

403,380,661

–

453,654,132

–

100,000,000

–

555,862,155

–

250,630,000

–

404,099,307

–

Total

30,000,000
2,651,096,600

–
–

Total

–
789,651,995
789,651,995

645,246
235,867,283
236,512,529

41,054

43,336

435,637,158
824,507,171

96,493,031
84,264,003

1,260,185,383

180,800,370

SCHEDULE: 5
GOODWILL
On Acquisition of Smartnet Communication
Systems Pvt. Ltd.
On Acquisition of Tanla Solutions (UK) Ltd.
TOTAL
SCHEDULE: 6
INVESTMENTS
Non-Traded - Mutual Funds
Birla Sun Life Cash Manager – IP – Daily Dividend
Reinvestment, 4,999,000.20 units of Rs. 10.0020 each
ICICI Prudential Institutional Liquid Plan Super
Institutaional Daily Dividend, 40,347,034.595
units of Rs. 10 each
Reliance Liquidity Fund – Daily Dividend Reinvestment
Option, 40,325,565.141 units of Rs. 10.0031 each
UTI Liquid Cash Plan Institutional – Daily Incom
Option – Re-Investment, 4,533,639.787 units of
Rs. 100.064 each
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund II – Quarterly Plan –
Series II – Institutional Dividend Plan, 10,000,000 units
of Rs. 10 each
TATA Liquid Super High Investment Fund – Daily
Dividend, 498,745.787 units of Rs. 1,114.52 each
TATA Fixed Horizon Fund Series 7 – Scheme B –
Growth-Institutional Plan, 25,000,000 units of
Rs. 10.0252 each
UTI Fixed Maturity Plan Quarterly Series
QFMP/02071/I – Dividend Plan, 40,409,930.686 units of
Rs. 10 each
Birla Sun Life Cash Manager – IP – Daily Dividend
Reinvestment, 2,999,400.120 units of Rs. 10.0020 each
SCHEDULE: 7
SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecured Considered Good)
Debts Due for More Than Six Months
Other Debts
SCHEDULE: 8
CASH & BANK BALANCES
Cash on Hand
With Scheduled Banks:
In Current Accounts**
In Deposit Accounts
Total
**Includes balance in unclaimed dividend account Rs. 51,724,011
**Includes balance in share application money refund account Rs. 6,356,694

83

84

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedules to Consolidated Balance Sheet As At
March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

87,978,544
34,376,002
30,651,398

6,664,450
2,691,151
1,730,087

153,005,943

11,085,688

–
49,400,114
–
12,368,976
51,724,011

–
54,706,737
3098760
5,681,420
155,805

113,493,102

63,642,722

Total

170,646,594
–
–
170,646,594
284,139,696

36,377497
17,057,500
2,392,314
55,827,311
119,470,034

Total

4,180,000
235,927,015
240,107,015
48,021,403
192,085,612

4,180,000
–
4,180,000
–
4,180,000

SCHEDULE: 9
LOANS & ADVANCES
(Advances Recoverable in Cash or Kind or For
Value to be Received)
Advances for Rendering Services
Rent Deposits
Advance Income Tax & TDS
Total
SCHEDULE: 10
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities:
Sundry Creditors for Expenses
Dues to SSI Units
Dues to Others
Sundry Creditors – Hire Purchase
Other Liabilities
Unclaimed Dividend
Provisions:
Provision for Income Tax
Proposed Dividend
Provision for Dividend Tax

SCHEDULE: 11
MISCELLENEOUS EXPENSES
(To the Extent Not Written-Off or Adjusted)
Public Issue & Preliminary Expenses
Add: Additions During the Year
Less: Written-Off During the Year
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedules to Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended
SCHEDULE: 12
COST OF SALES
Cost of Services
Staff Salaries & Benefits
Travelling Expenses
Communication Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Printing & Stationary
Office Maintennce Expenses
Power & Fuel
General Expenses
Total
SCHEDULE: 13
SELLING & MARKETING EXPENSES
Staff Salaries & Benefits
Travelling Expenses
Communication Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Printing & Stationary
Business Promotion and Advertisement
Office Maintennce Expenses
Power & Fuel
General Expenses
Total

March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

920,171,371
41,370,466
6,961,700
4,619,128
1,715,536
6,239,428
304,133
1,056,074
2,271,063
1,716,100

172,924,925
23,234,160
4,829,336
3,614,813
964,864
6,090,684
140,510
705,067
1,521,911
251,127

986,424,998

214,277,397

47,090,317
1,206,695
481,750
100,914
371,395
304,133
20,617,064
211,215
316,224
1,372,880

11,348,816
284,079
212,636
56,757
358,276
140,510
23,567,630
41,475
89,524
14,772

72,072,584

3,611,4474
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedules to Consolidated Profit & Loss Account for the Year Ended
SCHEDULE: 14
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Staff Salaries & Benefits
Travelling Expenses
Communication Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Printing & Stationary
Advertisement Expenses
Office Maintenance Expenses
Power & Fuel
General Expenses
Professional Charges
Quality & ISO Expenses
Auditors Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Finance & Bank Charges
Bad Debts Written-Off
Exchange Fluctuation
Total
SCHEDULE: 15
OTHER INCOME
Interest Received
Misc Income
Dividend Received
Total

March 31, 2007

(In Rs)
March 31, 2006

12,255,442
1,113,872
3,890,684
1,978,082
6,351,877
7,459,923
2,855,117
2,100,740
976,756
380,590
11,542,287
1,489,818

2,566,345
2,188,919
1,227,416
241,099
3,364,513
317,801
4,348,223
221,033
368,204
5,166,921
2,603,426
–

1,073,186
100,000
704,043
522,105
269,611

250,000
100,000
590,648
4,526,492
830,917

55,064,131

28,911,956

41,779,208
9,834
31,878,729

917,101
97,490
–

73,667,771

1,014,591
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
HYDERABAD
Schedule 4: FIXED ASSETS & DEPRECIATION
GROSS BLOCK
PARTICULARS
April 1,
Additions
March 31,
2006
2007
Land & Site
Development
8,323,552
37,847,840
46,171,392
Building
Developments
–
22,317,425
22,317,425
Interiors & Fixtures
18,534,299
3,677,859
22,212,158
Furniture
36,297,919
2,963,245
39,261,165
Computers
25,949,314 347,365,115 373,314,430
Office Equipment
12,102,881
1,710,629
13,813,510
Vehicles
6,728,746
1,116,063
7,844,809
Air-Conditioning
3,348,291
509,505
3,857,796
Library
86,061
40,136
126,197
111,371,063

417,547,817

528,918,880

April 1,
2006

DEPRECIATION
For the
year

March 31,
2007

(In Rs)
NET BLOCK
March 31,
March 31,
2007
2006

–

–

–

46,171,392

8,323,552

–
2,525,229
5,053,678
6,462,217
462,742
1,116,540
305,198
79,812

439,033
1,347,579
4,757,125
23,918,578
903,195
665,374
263,677
46,385

439,033
3,872,808
9,810,803
30,380,795
1,365,937
1,781,914
568,875
126,197

21,878,392
18,339,349
29,450,361
342,933,634
12,447,573
6,062,895
3,288,921
–

–
16,009,070
31,244,241
19,487,097
11,640,139
5,612,206
3,043,093
–

16,005,416

32,340,947

48,346,363

480,572,517

95,359,398
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SCHEDULE: 16
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:
I.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Company Overview
Tanla Solutions Limited, and its wholly consolidated subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as “Tanla Group”)
are engaged in providing global technology services and solutions in the wireless communications industry.
Tanla Solutions Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Tanla”), was incorporated on July 28th, 1995 in
Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh. Tanla has its headquarters and development centres and facilities in India and
serves a global customer base through its subsidiaries in the United Kingdom (UK). Tanla’s range of services
are product development and implementations in the wireless industry, aggregator services and offshore
development services.
Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited, formerly Techserv Teleservices (UK) Limited, UK (hereinafter referred to as
“Tanla UK”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla based at London, UK, provides aggregator and offshore
development services to clients in telecommunications and offshore service sectors.
Smartnet Communication Systems Private Limited, India (hereinafter referred to as “Smartnet”), is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Tanla with its registerd office in Hyderabad, India and is engaged in the development of
products and services.
Tanla Mobile Limited, formerly Mobizar Limited, UK (hereinafter referred to as “Tanla Mobile”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Tanla UK based at London, UK, provides aggregator services to clients in the
telecommunications field.
1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), under the historical cost convention, on the basis of a going concern
basis, while revenue, expenses, assets and Liabilities are accounted/recognized on accrual basis.
GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI), the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI). Accounting policies are consistently applied, except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The Management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounting standards on an ongoing basis.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared based on a line-by-line
consolidation of the financial statements of Tanla Solutions Limited and its Subsidiaries. All material
inter-Company balances and transactions are eliminated on consolidation.
Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing
as at the Balance Sheet date. Revenues and Expenses are translated into Indian Rupees as the average of
the opening and closing rates.
2. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with GAAP, requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions that effect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of income and expenses during the period. Examples of such estimates include provisions for
doubtful debts, future obligations under retirement benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer
support and the useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets.
Management periodically assessed, using external and internal sources, whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. Contingencies are recorded when it is probable that a liability will be
incurred, and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
3. Revenue Recognition
Revenue from software development on fixed-price, fixed-time frame contracts, where there is no
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uncertainty as to measurement or collectability has been recognized. On time-and-material contracts,
revenue is recognized as the related services are rendered. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on
uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the
current contract estimates. Annual Technical Services revenue and revenue from fixed-price maintenance
contracts are recognized proportionately over the period in which services are rendered. Revenue from
the sale of products for software applications, is recognized on transfer of the products to the users.
4. Fixed Assets, Intangible Assets and Capital Work-in-Progress
Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. All direct costs are capitalized until fixed
assets are ready for use including taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses relating to
acquisition and installation. Capital work-in-progress comprises outstanding advances paid to acquire
fixed assets, and the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the balance sheet
date. Intangible assets are recorded as the consideration paid for acquisition.
5. Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation on fixed assets is applied on straight-line method, pro-rata for the period of usage,
in accordance with the rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.
6. Retirement Benefits
a. Gratuity
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Tanla provides for gratuity, a defined
retirement plan (the “Gratuity Plan”), covering the eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee salary and the tenure of employment.
Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan, are determined by actuarial valuation as of the balance
sheet date, based upon which, the company contributes the ascertained liabilities to the Tanla
Solutions Limited Employees Gratuity Scheme Trust (the “Trust”), managed by the Life Insurance
Corporation of India.
b. Provident Fund
Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan.
Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon is paid at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment. Both the employee and the company make monthly contributions to
the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, equal to a specified percentage of the covered
employee’s salary.
c. Employee State Insurance Fund:
Eligible employees receive benefits from theemployee state insurance scheme, which is those with
a gross salary of less than Rs.10,000 per month are entitled to receive benefit under employee
state insurance fund scheme. The employer makes contribution to the scheme at a predetermined
rate (presently 4.75%) of the employee’s gross salary. Tanla has no further obligations under the
plan beyond its monthly contributions. These contributions are made to funds administered and
managed by the Government of India. Tanla’s monthly contributions are charges to income in the
year it is incurred.
7. Research and Development
Revenue expenditure incurred on research and development is expensed as incurred. Capital expenditure
incurred on research and development is depreciated on straight-line method, pro-rata for the period of
usage, in accordance with the rates prescribed under schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.
8. Foreign Currency Transactions
The company translates all foreign currency transactions at Exchange Rates prevailing on the date of
transactions. Exchange rate differences resulting from foreign exchange transactions settled during the
year are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.
Monetary current assets and monetary current liabilities that are denominated in foreign currency, are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the balance sheet. The resulting difference is also
recorded in the profit and loss account.
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9. Forward Contract in Foreign Contracts
The Company translates all foreign currency transactions at Exchange Rates prevailing on the date of
transactions. Exchange rate differences resulting from foreign exchange transactions settled during the
year are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.
Monetary current assets and monetary current liabilities that are denominated in foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the balance sheet. The resulting difference is also
recorded in the profit and loss account.
10. Income Tax
Income taxe is computed using the tax effect accounting method, in accordance with the Accounting
Standard (AS 22) “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, which includes current taxes and deferred taxes.
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact if current year timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income for the year and the relevance of timing difference of earlier years. Deferred tax asset
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset/liability is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred Tax assets are recognized and carried forward only to the
extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
11. Earnings Per Share
In determining earnings per share, the company considers the net profit after tax expense.
The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share, is the weighted average of shares
used outstanding during the period.
12. Investments
Trade investments are the investments made to enhance the company’s business interests.
All other investments are carried at lower cost or fair value.
13. Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effect
of transactions of a non-cash nature, and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
company are segregated.
14. Public Issue Expenses
The expenses incurred for follow on public issue, has been written off in five equal installments
from the year of completion the of public issue.
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II. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:
All amounts in the financial statements are presented in Rupees and as otherwise stated.
1.
Sr No.
1.
2.
3.
4.

Contingent Liabilities
Particulars
Outstanding Guarantees Given by the Company
Claims Against Company, Not Acknowledged as Debts
Claims made by Company, Not Acknowledged as Debts
Corporate Guarantee Given to subsidiary Cos

March 31, 2007
61,250
–
–
43,045,000

(Amount in Rs)
March 31, 2006
61,250
–
–
–

For the Year
2006-2007
920,171,371
100,716,224
9,282,267
8,991,561
3,794,532
12,962,699
8,068,188
23,472,181
3,368,030
3,564,043
3,469,569
11,542,287
1,489,818

(Amount in Rs)
For the Year
2005-2006
172,924,925
37,149,322
7,302,333
5,054,865
1,262,720
9,813,473
598,820
27,915,853
967,575
1,979,640
5,432,820
2,603,426
–

1,073,186
100,000
704,043
522,105
269,611
1,113,561,714

250,000
100,000
590,648
4,526,492
830,917
279,303,828

2. Aggregate Expenses
The Aggregate Amounts Incurred on Certain Specific Expenses:
Particulars
Cost of Services
Staff Salaries and Benefits
Travelling Expenses
Communication Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Printing and Stationary
Advertisement Expenses
Office Maintenance Expenses
Power and Fuel
General Expenses
Professional Charges
Quality & ISO Expenses
Auditors Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Bank Charges
Bad Debts Written-Off
Exchange Fluctuation
Total

3. Quantitative Details
The Company is engaged in the business of development & maintenance of Computer Software,
offshore development and other related services. The production and sale of such software services
cannot be expressed in any generic unit and hence it is not possible to give such quantitative details of
sales and certain information as required under paragraph 3,4C and 4D of Part II of Schedule VI of the
Companies Act, 1956. The details of Conversation of Energy, Technology absorption are given in the
Directors Report. R&D expenditure is not separately accounted for.

91

92

4. Foreign Exchange Earned and Outgoing
a. Imports (Valued on the Cost, Insurance and Freight Basis)
a. Imports (Valued on the Cost, Insurance and Freight Basis)
Particulars
Import of capital goods
b. Activity in Foreign Currency
Particulars
Earnings in Foreign Exchange (On Accrual Basis)
Income from Software Products and Offshore
Development Services
Dividends Received
Interest Received
Expenditure in Foreign Exchange (On Accrual Basis)
Cost of Services
Foreign Travel Expenses
Professional Charges
Net Earnings in Foreign Exchange

For the Year
2006-2007
11,916,304

(Amount in Rs)
For the Year
2005-2006
14,978,817

For the Year
2006-2007

For the Year
2005-2006

815,698,047
6,428,082
11,247,696

404,819,724
4,797,692
–

134,743,879
1,596,559
6,797,950
678,319,133

62,890,606
832,030
998,114
329,917,849

Year Ended
March 31, 2007
1,698,377

(Amount in Rs)
Year Ended
March 31, 2006
785,138

5,111,877
42,682
9,314,539
3,235,412
19,402,887

1,863,683
24,174
798,219
2,215,084
5,686,298

5. Research and Development Expenditure
Particulars
Capital Expenditure
Revenue Expenditure
Staff Salaries and Benefits
Staff Welfare Expenses
R&D Software & Consumables
Overheads
Total

6. Dues to Small-Scale Industrial Undertakings
As of March 31, 2007, as per available information with the company, there are no dues to small-scale
Industrial Undertakings.
7. Income Taxes
The provision for taxation includes tax liabilities in India on the company’s global income, as reduced by
exempt incomes and any tax liabilities arising overseas on income sourced from those countries.
Most of Tanlas’ operations are conducted through Software Technology Parks (STPs). Income from
STPs are tax exempt for the earlier of 10 years commencing from the fiscal year in which the unit
commences software development, as of March 31, 2009.
The detail of deferred tax liability comprises the following:
Particulars
i
ii

Deferred Tax Liability
On Account of Depreciation ( A )
Deferred Tax Asset
On Account of Misc. Expenses w/o
On Account of Unabsorbed Losses
Total ( B )
Net Deferred Tax liability (A-B)

March 31, 2007

(Amount in Rs)
March 31, 2006

38,306,469

7,497,302

16,212,934
–
16,212,934
22,093,536

402,008
102,288
504,296
6,993,006
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8. Details of Funds Received From Follow on Public Offer
During the year, the company has raised an amount of Rs. 420.95 crores from the follow on public offer of equity shares. The
details of utilization of funds received and utilization as follows:
Statement of Utilization of FPO Funds As of March 31, 2007
Particulars
Amount Raised through FPO
Share Issue Expenses Paid
Net Proceeds
Deployment
General Corporate Purposes
R&D Expenses
Working Capital Requirements
Investments in Fixed Deposits with Banks
Pending Utilization
Short-Term Investments in Mutual Funds
Pending Utilization
Balance in Bank Account (Unutilized)

(Amount in Rs)
4,209,525,000
193,348,658
4,016,176,342
536,073,090
1,682,546
34,192,956
771,441,395
2,621,096,600
51,689,755
4,016,176,342

9. Cash and Bank Balances
Details of balances as at balance sheet dates during the year with non-scheduled banks:
Particulars
Citibank N.A

March 31, 2007
9,603

(Amount in Rs)
March 31, 2006
13,192

10. Segment Reporting
As required by the Accounting Standard (AS 17) “Segment Reporting”, the Company is mainly engaged in the area of
Software Development and related services. Hence segment reporting is not applicable to the Company and to the nature of
its business.
11. Earnings Per Share
Particulars
Net Profit After Tax
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 2 Each
Nominal Value of Shares
Earnings per Share (Basic/Diluted)

For the Year
2006-2007
927,907,185
38,162,411
Rs. 2
24.31

(Amount in Rs)
For the Year
2005-2006
302,466,405
34,115,000
Rs. 2
8.87

12. The previous year figures have been recast/restated, wherever necessary, to the current period’s classification.
13. Financial figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
14. Schedules 1 to 16 form part of the Balance Sheet and have been authenticated.
As per our report of even date attached
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

(C.V. Koteswara Rao)
Partner
Membership No. 28353
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 19, 2007

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director

Satish Kathirisetti
Director & CTO

Akash Rukhaiyar
Chief Financial Officer

Ch. Seshanuradha
Company Secretary
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Statement Pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956,
Relating to Subsidiary Companies
Sr No. Particulars
1
Name of the Subsidiary

2
3
a.

Financial Year Ending of the Subsidiary
Holding Company’s Interest
Number and Face Value

b.
4

Extent of Holding
Net Aggregate Amount of Profit/(Losses)
for the Above Financial Year of the Subsidiary
So Far As It Concerns the Members of the
Holding Company
Dealt With or Provided For in the Accounts
of the Holding Company
Not Dealt With or Provided for in the
Accounts of the Holding Company
Net Aggregate Amount of Profits/(Losses)
for Previous Financial Years of the
Subsidiary So Far As It May Concern the
Members of the Holding Company
Dealt with or Provided For in the Accounts
of the Holding Company
Not Dealt with or Provided for in the
Accounts of the Holding Company

a.
b.
5

a.
b.

Details of Subsidiary Companies
Smartnet
Tanla Solutions
Communication (UK) Limited
Systems
Pvt. Limited
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2007

Tanla Mobile
Limited (Formerly
known as Mobizar
Limited)
March 31, 2007

2,50,000 Shares
of Rs.10/- Each
Fully Paid-Up
100%

1000 Shares of
GBP 1 Each
Fully Paid-Up
100%

103 Shares of GBP
1 Each Fully
Paid-Up
100%*

–

–

–

Rs. (21,725)

GBP 4,132,883

GBP 3,428,558

–

–

–

Rs. 15,989

GBP 588,706

GBP 322,037

* Held by Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 19, 2007

D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director

Satish Kathirisetti
Director-CTO
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SMARTNET COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Members,
Your Directors take great pleasure in presenting their report on the business and operations of your Company for
the year ended March 31, 2007.
Results of Operations:
During the year under consideration, there have been no operations as all the activities of the company have been
taken over the parent company i.e. Tanla Solutions Limited.
Fixed Deposits
The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from public as on March 31, 2007 so as to attract the
provisions of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 1975 as amended from time to time. There is no amount outstanding or due to any deposit holder.
Auditors
M/s. R. Khattar & Associates., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company who retire at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, have submitted their resignation. M/s. Ramasamy Koteswara Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants have expressed their willingness and eligibility for appointment as Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the financial year 2007-2008, if appointed in the Annual General Meeting.
Particulars of Employees
As required under the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
(Particulars of employees) Rules, 1975, as amended, none of the employees of the Company was drawing a
remuneration exceeding Rs. 2,400,000 per annum or Rs. 200,000 per month or part thereof.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, with respect to the Directors’
Responsibility Statement, Your Directors wish to confirm that: In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material
departures, if any; Such Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and
estimates are made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period.
Proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting any
fraud or other irregularities has been taken. Accounts for the financial year ended on 31st March 2007 are
prepared on a going-concern basis.
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Particulars of Energy, Research and Development, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo.
The Particulars as prescribed under 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act 1956, read with the Companies (Disclosure
of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, are not applicable to the company.
Foreign exchange earnings and outgo are Nil
Certificate from Practising Company Secretary:
Certificate from a Practising Company Secretary as required under section 383A(1) is enclosed.
Acknowledgements:
Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their sincere appreciation and wish to express their thanks
for the guidance and assistance received from State & Central government agencies, Company’s clients, Bankers,
Shareholders for their continued support and faith Company.
On behalf of the Board Directors
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Director
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 15, 2007

Anoop Roy Kundal
Director
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A.G.R.REDDY & Co.
Hyderabad
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
Authorized Capital: Rs. 25 Lakhs
Company Number: 21-88259
To
The Members
SMARTNET COMUNICATION SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
Hyderabad.
I have examined the registers, records, books and papers of SMARTNET COMUNICATION SYSTEMS PRIVATE
LIMITED as required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 1956, and the rules made there under and also
the provisions contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2007. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations
carried out by me and explanations furnished to me by the company, its officers, and agents, I certify that in
respect of the aforesaid financial year:
The Company has kept and maintained all registers as per the provisions and the rules made there under and all
entries therein have been duly recorded. The Company has filed the forms and returns with the Registrar of
Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or other authorities as required under the
Act and the rules made there under.
The Company being private limited company has the minimum prescribed paid-up capital and its maximum
number of members during the said financial year was 2 excluding its present and past employees and
The company during the year under scrutiny:
Has not invited public to subscribe for its shares or debentures; and
Has not invited or accepted any deposits from persons other than its members, directors or their relatives.
The Board of Directors duly met 4 times on April 10, 2006, July 27, 2006, October 12, 2006, January 31, 2007
in respect of which meetings, proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed
including the circular resolutions passed, in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.
The Company did not close its Register of Members.
The annual general meeting for the financial year ended on 31.03.2006 was held on June 8, 2006 after giving
due notice to the members of the company and the resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in Minutes
Book maintained for the purpose.
The Company has not advanced any loan to its directors and/or persons or firms or companies referred in the
Section 295 of the Act after complying with the provisions of the Act.
The Company has no interested contracts so as to attract the provisions of Section 297 of the Act.
There were no entries, which had to be made in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act.
There were no activities in the Company so as to attract the provisions of Section 314 of the
Companies Act, 1956.
There was no issue of duplicate share certificates.
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The Company confirms that:
There was neither allotment of nor transfer/transmission of securities during the year;
No dividend was declared during the year.
No dividend warrants were posted.
No amount was transferred to unpaid dividend account.
Duly complied with the requirements of Section 217 of the Act.
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 3 Directors.
There were no vacancies in the Board during the year.
Since the paid up capital of the Company is less than Rs. 5 Crores no Managing Director/Whole-time
Director/Manager were appointed.
No Sole selling agents were appointed during the year.
No approvals from Central Government, Company Law Board, Regional Director, Registrar and such other
authorities were necessary for the Company during the year.
The directors have disclosed their interest in other firms/companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the
provisions of the Act and the rules made there under.
The Company has not issued any equity shares during the year under review.
The Company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.
The Company has not redeemed any preference shares/debentures during the year.
No applications for transfer of shares were received during the year.
The Company has not accepted any deposits so as to attract the provisions of sections 58A and 58AA
read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 1975/the applicable directions issued by the
Reserve Bank of India/any other authority in respect of deposits accepted including unsecured loans.
The Company being a Private Limited Company, provisions of Section 293(1)(d) are not applicable.
The Company being a Private Limited Company, provisions of Section 372A are not applicable.
The company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to the objects of the company
during the year under scrutiny.
The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to name of the company during
the year under scrutiny.
The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to share capital of the company
during the year under scrutiny.
The Company has not altered its articles of association of the Company during the year under scrutiny.
No prosecution was initiated against the Company and no show cause notices were received by the
Company for alleged offences under the Act and no fines and penalties or any other punishment was imposed
on the Company.
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The Company did not receive any amount as security from its employees during the year under certification so as
to attract the provisions of Section 417(1) of the Act.
The Company did not constitute any Provident Fund pursuant to Section 418 of the Ac.
The Company has filed the Annual Return and Compliance Certificate for the year 2004-05 as identified in the
Certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary for the year 2005-06.
Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 15, 2007

For A.G.R. Reddy & Co.
A.G. Ravindranath Reddy
Partner
(FCS No.1997, CP No.1932)
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of
SMART NET COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED,
1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of SMARTNET COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED,
as at March 31, 2007, and also the related Profit and Loss account for the year ended on that date annexed
thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’), we enclose in
the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.
4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph (3) above, we report that:
(i) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
(ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;
(iii) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account;
(iv) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act.
(v) On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2007 and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2007
from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Act.
(vi) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said
accounts together with the notes thereon give the information required by the Act, in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2007; and
(b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss for the year ended on that date.
For R. Khattar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place : New Delhi
Date: April 15, 2007

(Ranjit Khattar)
Partner
Membership No.82488
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report (referred to in paragraph 3 of our Report of even date to the
Members of Smart Net Communication Systems Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2007)
1. (a) The Company does not have any fixed assets, the clause i(a) & i(b) of the CARO, 2003 are not
applicable.
2. The company does not have any stock of raw materials, stores and spares and finished goods and therefore,
the clause ii(a), ii(b) and ii(c) of the CARO, 2003 are not applicable.
3. The Company has not taken / granted any loans from / to the parties covered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the companies Act 1956.
4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal
control procedures commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business for the purpose
of inventory, fixed assets and also for sale of goods. During the course of our audit, we have not observed
any major weaknesses in the internal controls.
5. a) As per information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the transactions that need to be
entered into the register maintained under section 301 of the companies Act, 1956 have been so entered.
b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions
made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of Rupees five lakhs in respect of each party during the year.
6. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
any deposits from the public.
7. In our opinion, the internal audit system of the company is commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.
8. The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 209 (1) (d) of the
companies Act, 1956.
9. In respect of statutory dues:
(a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, Income Tax, sales tax, service Tax and other statutory dues have been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no disputed amounts payables in
respect of the aforesaid dues.
10. In our opinion the company does not have the accumulated losses and has incurred cash losses during the
current financial year covered by our audit and not incurred immediately preceding financial year.
11. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted
in repayment of dues to bank.
12. In our opinion and according to the information and expiations given to us, no loans and advances have been
granted by the company on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.
13. In our opinion, the Company is not a chit or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund /
provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

society. Therefore, the

14. In our opinion, the company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debenture and other instruments.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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15. In our opinion, the company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial
institutions.
16. In our opinion, the company has not raised any term loan from Banks.
17. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for
long term investment. No long term funds have been used to finance short assets except permanent working
capital.
18. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made preferential allotment
of shares to parties and companies covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956.
19. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year covered by our audit the
Company has not issued any debentures.
20. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
any money by way of public issue during the year.
21. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

For R. Khattar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place : New Delhi
Date: April 15, 2007

(Ranjit Khattar)
Partner
Membership No.82488
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SMARTNET COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET

PARTICULARS
SOURCE OF FUNDS:
A. SHAREHOLDER’S FUND
a) Share Capital
b) Reserve & Surplus

Schedule

AS AT
March 31, 2007
(Amount in Rs)

AS AT
March 31, 2006
(Amount in Rs)

1
2

2,500,000
1,016,486

2,500,000
1,038,211

–

–

3,516,486

3,538,211

–
–

–
–
–

–

–

2,912
–
3,521,074
3,523,986
7,500
3,516,486

3,538,211
–
–
3,538,211
–
3,538,211

3,516,486

3,538,211

B. DEFERRED TAX: LIABILITY
Total
APPLICATIONS OF FUNDS:
A. FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block
Less: Depreciation
Net Block
B. Product Under Development
C. CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
Cash & Bank Balances
Sundry Debtors
Loans & Advances

3

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions

5

Accounting Polices and Notes on Accounts

7

4

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For R. Khattar & Associates.,
Chartered Accountants
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Director
(Ranjit Khattar)
Partner
Membership No. 82488
Anoop Roy Kundal
Place: New Delhi
Director
Date: April 15, 2007
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SMARTNET COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
Schedule
PARTICULARS
INCOME
Software Consultancy Fees
Software Development
Software Website Fees

AS AT
March 31, 2007
(Amount in Rs)

AS AT
March 31, 2006
(Amount in Rs)

–
–
–

–
–
–

–

–

–
21,725

–
19,726

21,725

19,726

-21,725
–
-21,725
–
–
–
-21,725
-0.09

-19,726
–
-19,726
–
40,974
76,689
15,989
0.06

EXPENSES
Staff Costs
Administration & Other Expenditures

Profit Before Depreciation & Tax
Depreciation
Profit Before Tax
Provision for Tax for Current Year
Income Tax for Earlier Years
Deferred Tax Asset/Liability
Profit After Tax
Earning Per Share
Accounting Polices and Notes on Accounts

6

7

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the board of Directors
For R. Khattar & Associates.,
Chartered Accountants
D.Uday Kumar Reddy
Director
(Ranjit Khattar)
Partner
Membership No. 82488
Anoop Roy Kundal
Place: New Delhi
Director
Date: April 15, 2007
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SMARTNET COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO THE ACCOUNTS

Schedule 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
2,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each (See Note 1 below)
(Previous Year 1,00,000 Equity Share of Rs 10 each)
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up :
250000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
(Previous Year 250000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
fully Paid-Up)
Schedule 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Profit & Loss A/c:
As Per Last Year’s Balance Sheet
Profit (Loss) During the Year
Schedule 3
CASH & BANK BALANCES
Cash at Bank
Cash In Hand
Schedule 4
LOANS & ADVANCES
Advance Tax & TDS
Other Advances
Schedule 5
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
Sundry Creditors for Expenses
Expenses Payable
Provision For Income Tax

AS AT
March 31, 2007
(Amount in Rs)

AS AT
March 31, 2006
(Amount in Rs)

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

1,038,211
-21,725
1,016,486

1,022,222
15,989
1,038,211

2,912
–
2,912

3,538,211
–
3,538,211

–
3,521,074
3,521,074

–
–
–

–
7,500
–
7,500

–
–
–
–
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Schedule 6
ADMINISTRATION & OTHER EXPENDITURE
Accounting Charges
Audit Fees
Bank Charges
Business Promotion
Conveyance & Travelling
Consultancy & Professional Charges
Electricity & Water Charges
Hire Charges
Misc Expenses
Office Maintenance
Printing & Stationery
Rent
Repair & Maintenance
Security Charges
Staff Welfare
Telephone Expenses
Total

–
7,500
14,225
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
21,725

(In Rs.)
–
–
8,313
–
–
–
–
–
11,413
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
19,726

Schedule: 7
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.
a. Accounting Conventions:
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis and in accordance
with applicable accounting standards and relevant presentational requirements of the companies Act, 1956.
During the year the company has disposed off the all fixed assets, which effects on the going concern of the
business of the company.
b. Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost of acquisition is inclusive of freight,
duties, taxes and other incidental expenses relating to acquisition and installation of assets.
c. Depreciation:
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the written down method on a pro-rata basis at the rates specified
in the schedule XIV to the employees is required.
d. Retirement Benefits:
None of the employees have completed five years of the service hence no provision in respect of the future
payment of gratuity to employees is required.
e. Foreign Currency Transactions:
Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the rates prevailing at the transaction dates.
f.

Taxes on Income:
Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax resulting from timing difference between book and taxable profit is accounted for using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date.

107

108

II. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:
1. Contingent Liabilities

:

Nil

2. Dues to small scale Industrial undertakings are Nil
4. Information pursuant to paragraph 3 and 4 of Part II of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 195.6
a) Auditors Remuneration:
Particulars
Audit Fee

Year Ended
31-03-2007
7,500

Year Ended
31-03-2006
Nil

b) Details of Remuneration paid to Directors:
Particulars
Salary and Other Benefits

Year Ended
31-03-2007
Nil

Year Ended
31-03-2006
Nil

c) Earnings in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis):
Particulars
Revenue from Services

Year Ended
31-03-2007
Nil

Year Ended
31-03-2006
Nil

d) Quantitative details
The company is engaged in the business of software Development and related services. The production and sale
of such is not capable of being expressed in any generic unit. Hence, other information pursuant to the provisions of the paragraph 3, 4C and 4D of the part II Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956 are not applicable
to the company.
5. Previous years figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable with
those of the current year:

As per our report of even date attached
For R. Khattar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. Khattar
Partner
Membership No: 82488
Place: New Delhi.
Date: April 15, 2007

D.Uday Kumar Reddy
Director
Anoop Roy Kundal
Director

TANLA SOLUTIONS (UK)

Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
Registration number 5024009
Directors' Report and Financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007

CONTENTS
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Profit and Loss Account
Balance Sheet
Cash Flow Statement
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited

Registered office

Business address

COMPANY INFORMATION

23A Lyttelton Road
Hampstead Garden Suburb
London
N2 0DN

5th Floor
39 Charing Cross Road
London
WC2H 0AR
WC2H 0AR

Directors
Gautam Sabharwal
D. Uday Kumar Reddy

Auditors
Secretary
Gautam Sabharwal

VSP Limited
23A Lyttelton Road
Hampstead Garden Suburb
London
N2 0DN

Company number
5024009

Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
Director's report
for the year ended 31 March 2007
The director presents this report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007.
Principal activity and review of the business
The principal activity of the company continues to be that of providing integrated telecommunication services on
a revenue sharing/pay for use revenue, aggregator services and offshore outsourcing services.
Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 5.
Financial risk management objectives and policies
The company's principal financial instruments comprise bank balances, trade creditors,trade debtors, loans to
the company and finance lease agreements. The main purpose of these instruments is to raise funds for the
company's operations and to finance the company's operations. Due to the nature of the financial instruments
used by the company, there is no exposure to price risk. The company's approach to managing other risks
applicable to the financial instruments concerned is shown below:
- In respect of loan from the parent company, the company manages the liquidity risk by ensuring there are
sufficient funds to meet the payments.
- The company is a lessee in respect of finance leased assets. The liquidity risk in respect of these is managed
in the same way as loans above.
- Trade debtors are managed in respect of credit and cash flow risk by policies concerning the credit offered
to customers and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time and credit limits.
- Trade creditors liquidity risk is managed by ensuring sufficient funds are available to meet amounts due.
Directors and their interests
The directors who served during the year and their interests in the company are as stated below:
Gautam Sabharwal
D. Uday Kumar Reddy

Class of share
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

31/03/07
_
_

01/04/06
_
_

TANLA SOLUTIONS (UK)

Director's responsibilities
The director is responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that year.
In preparing these the director is required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.
The director is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 1985. They is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The directors of a company must, in determining how amounts are presented within items in the profit and
loss account and balance sheet, have regard to the substance of the reported transaction or arrangement, in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practice.
In so far as the directors is aware:
-there is no relevant audit information (information needed by the company's auditors in connection with
preparing their report) of which the company's auditors are unaware, and
-the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information.
Auditors
In accordance with Section 385 of the Companies Act 1985, a resolution proposing that VSP Limited be
reappointed as auditors of the company will be put to the Annual General Meeting.
This report was approved by the Board on 12 April 2007 and signed on its behalf by

Gautam Sabharwal
Secretary
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Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
Independent auditors' report to the shareholders of
Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
We have audited the financial statements of Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited for the year ended 31 March 2007
which comprise the profit and loss account, the balance sheet, the cash flow statement and the related notes.
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller
Entities (effective January 2005), under the historical cost convention and the accounting policies set out therein.
This report is made solely to the company's shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of director and auditors
As described in the statement of director's responsibilities the company's director is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the director's
report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the company has not kept proper accounting records,
if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified
by law regarding director's remuneration and transactions with the company is not disclosed.
We read the director's report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements within it.
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the director in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the f
inancial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United KingdomGenerally
Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities, of the state of the company's affairs as at
31 March 2007 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended;
the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2007
VSP Limited
Chartered Accountants and
Registered Auditors
April 12, 2007

23A Lyttelton Road
Hampstead Garden Suburb
London
N2 0DN
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Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
Profit and loss account for the year ended 31st March 2007
2007
£

2007
INR

2006
£

2006
INR

3 ,340,233

281,619,049

1 ,757,540

135,783,553

(1,960,681)

(165,307,366)

(983,599)

(75,990,627)

Gross Profit

1,379,552

116,311,683

773,941

59,792,926

Administrative Expenses

(338,012)

(28,498,197)

(384,901)

(29,736,578)

1,041,540
6 4,993
103,024

87,813,486
5,479,638
8,686,077

389,040
56,650
9 80

30,056,348
4,376,650
75,713

Interest payable and
similar charges

(130,773)

(11,025,628)

-

-

Profit on ordinary activities
before taxation

1,078,784

90,953,573

446,670

34,508,711

(299,460)

(25,247,832)

(120,000)

(9,270,928)

Profit on ordinary
activities after taxation

779,324

65,705,741

326,670

25,237,783

Dividends

(75,000)

(6,323,340)

(60,000)

(4,635,464)

Retained profit for the year 17
Retained profit
brought forward

704,324
340,831

59,382,401
28,735,870

266,670
74,161

20,602,319
5,729,511

1,045,155

88,118,271

340,831

26,331,830

Turnover
Sales

2

Cost of Sales
Payouts to Service Providers
and others

Operating profit
Investment incme
Other interest receivable
and similar income

Tax on profit on
ordinary activities

Retained profit
carried forward

3
4
5

7

The notes on pages 8 to 14 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2007
2007
£

2007
INR

2006
£

2006
INR

9
10

941,570
103
941,673

79,384,896
8,684
79,393,580

35,040
103
35,143

2,707,111
7 ,958
2,715,068

11

5,299,171
461,723
5,760,894

446,779,461
38,928,420
485,707,880

816,190
322,551
1,138,741

63,056,987
24,919,558
87,976,546

(276,440)
5,484,454
6,426,127

(23,306,988)
462,400,893
541,794,472

(679,359)
459,382
494,525

(52,485,735)
35,490,811
38,205,879

(5,170,908)
(56,370)

(435,965,453)
(4,752,622)

-

-

1,198,849

101,076,397

494,525

38,205,879

1,000
152,694
1,045,155

84,311
12,873,814
88,118,271

1,000
152,694
340,831

77,258
11,796,792
26,331,830

1,198,849

101,076,397

494,525

38,205,879

Notes
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets
Investments
Current Assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year
12
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilites
Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year
13
Provisions
14
Net Assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account
Shareholder's funds

16
17
17

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 12 April 2007 and signed on its behalf by

Gautam Sabharwal
Director
The notes on pages 8 to 14 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2007
2007
£

2007
INR

2006
£

2006
INR

1,041,540

87,813,486

389,040

30,056,348

67,318
(852,924)
(3,529,355)
(516,567)
(13,842)
(3,803,830)

5,675,661
(71,911,045)
(297,564,152)
(43,552,383)
(1,167,036)
(320,705,468)

12,000
(701,459)
52,710
519,889
5,605
277,785

927,093
(54,193,131)
4,072,255
40,165,445
433,030
21,461,039

2,322
64,993
5,170,908
5,238,223
(130,773)
(115,600)
(75,000)
(973,848)

195,771
5,479,638
435,965,453
441,640,862
(11,025,628)
(9,746,375)
(6,323,340)
(82,106,293)

9 80
56,650
57,630
(97,960)
(60,000)
(45,000)

75,713
4,376,650
4,452,363
(7,568,167)
(4,635,464)
(3,476,598)

(1,295,221)
139,172

(109,201,635)
11,733,758

(103)
(203,063)
132,352

(7,958)
(15,688,187)
10,225,215

322,551

27,194,662

190,199

14,694,343

461,723

38,928,420

322,551

24,919,558

461,723

38,928,420

322,551

24,919,558

Cash generated from operations
Operating profit
Reconciliation to cash generated
from operations
Depreciation
(Increase) in trade debtors
(Increase) in other debtors
(Decrease)in trade creditors
(Decrease) in other creditors
Cash from other sources
Interest received
Dividends received
Issue of shares for cash
Other new long term borrowings
Interest paid
Tax paid
Dividends paid
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Payments on acquisition of
group interests
Net increase in cash in the year
Cash at bank and in hand less
overdrafts at beginning
Cash at bank and in hand less
overdrafts at end of year
Consisting of:
Cash at bank and in hand
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Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended as at 31st March 2007
1 Accounting polices
1.1 Accounting convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.
1.2 Turnover
Turnover represents the total invoice value, excluding value added tax, of sales made during the
year.
1.3 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost less residual value of each asset
over its expected useful life, as follows:
Computers - 25% straight line
Fixtures, fittings and equipment - 25% straight line
Investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value.
1.5 Deferred taxation
Provision is made for deferred taxation using the liability method to take account of timing differences between the incidence of income and expenditure for taxation and accounting purposes
except to the extent that the director considers that a liability to taxation is unlikely to materialise.
1.6 Group accounts the company is entitled to the exemption under Section 248 of the Companies Act
1985 from the obligation to prepare group accounts.
2 Turnover
The total turnover of the company for the year has been derived from its principal activity wholly
undertaken in the UK.
3 Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging:

Operating profit is stated after charging:
Depreciaiton and other
amounts written off tangible ass est
Auditors remuneration
4 Income from investments
Income from subsidiary undertakings
5 Interest receivable and
similar income
Bank interest
Group interest
6 Employees
Number of employees
The average monthly number
of employees
(including the director) during the year
Marketing
Administration

2007
£

2007
INR

2006
£

2006
INR

67,318
2,600

5,675,661
219,209

12,000
1,000

927,093
77,258

2007
£
64,993

2007
INR
5,479,638

2006
£
56,650

2006
INR
4,376,650

2007
£
2,322
100,702
103,024

2007
INR
195771
8490306
8,686,077

2006
£
939
41
980

2006
INR
72545
3168
75,713

2007

2006

2
1
3

2
1
3

TANLA SOLUTIONS (UK)

2007
£
77,958
4,543
82,501

2007
INR
6,572,732
383,026
6,955,758

2006
£
114,534
13,160
127,694

2006
INR
8,848,637
1,016,712
9,865,349

2007
£
37,000

2007
INR
3,119,514

2006
£
96,000

2006
INR
7,416,742

2007

2007

2006

2006

Analysis of charge in period
£
Current tax
UK corporation tax
249,530
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (6,440)
243,090
Total current tax charge
243,090
Deferred tax
Timing differences,
56,370
origination and reversal
Total deferred tax
56,370
Tax on profit on ordinary activities
299,460

INR

£

INR

21,038,173
(542,964)
20,495,209
20,495,209

120,000
120,000
120,000

9,270,928
9,270,928
9,270,928

4,752,622

-

-

4,752,622
25,247,832

120,000

9,270,928

2007
£

2007
INR

2006
£

2006
INR

75,000

6,323,340

60,000

4,635,464

Employment costs
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
6.1 Directors' emoluments
Remuneration and other emoluments
7 Tax on profit on or
dinary activities

8 Dividends
Paid during the year:
Equity dividends on Ordinary shares
9 Tangible fixed assets

Cost
At 1st April 2006
Add: Additions
At 31st March 2007
Depreciation
At 1st April 2006
Charge for the year
At 31st March 2007
Net book values
At 31st March 2007
At 31st March 2006

computers
£
970,510
970,510

Fixtures,
fittings and
equipment
£
48,040
3338
51,378

Total
£
48,040
973,848
1,021,888

Total
INR
4,050,310
82,106,293
86,156,603

57,371
57,371

13,000
9947
22,947

13,000
67,318
80,318

1,096,046
5,675,661
6,771,707

913,139
-

28,431
35,040

941,570
35,040

79,384,896
2,954,264

Subsidiary
undertakings
shares
£
103
103

Total
£
103
103

Total
INR
8,684
8,684

103
103

103
103

8,684
8,684

10 Fixed asset investments

Cost
At 1 April 2006
At 31st March 2007
Net book values
At 31st March 2007
At 31st March 2006
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10.1 Holdings of 20% or more
the company holds 20% or more of the share capital of the following compannies:
Country of
Nature of
Shares held
Company
registration
business
class
or incorporation
Subsidiary undertaking
Tanla Mobile Limited
UK Aggregation of
Ordinary
premium SMS

Proportion
of shares
held
100%

11 Debtors
31.03.2007
£
Trade Debtors
1,621,824
Amounts owned by group undertakings 3,604,344
Other debtors
46,620
Prepayments and accrued income
26,383
5,299,171

31.03.2007
INR
136,737,926
303,886,564
3,930,588
2,224,382
446,779,461

31.03.2006
£
768,900
3,290
44,000
816,190

31.03.2006
INR
59,403,469
254,178
3,399,340
63,056,987

31.03.2007
£
3,322
249,530
6,399
6,006
103
11,080
276,440

31.03.2007
INR
2 80,082
21,038,173
539,507
5 06,373
8 ,684
9 34,168
23,306,988

31.03.2006
£
519,889
122,040
21,377
6,006
103
9,944
679,359

31.03.2006
INR
40,165,445
9,428,533
1,651,539
4 64,010
7 ,958
768,251
52,485,735

amounts falling due
31.03.2007
after more than one year
£
Amounts owned to group undertakings 5,170,908
5,170,908
14 Provision for liabilites

31.03.2007
INR
435,965,453
435,965,453

31.03.2006
£
-

31.03.2006
INR
-

12 Creditors:
amounts falling due
within one year
Trade Creditors
Corportion Tax
Other Taxes and social security costs
Directors accounts
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income
13 Creditors:

Total
31.03.2007
INR

Deferred
taxation
(Note 15)
31.03.2006
£

Total
31.03.2006
INR

56,370

4,752,622

-

-

31.03.2007
£
Accelerated capital allowances
56,370
Deferred tax charge in profit and loss account 56,370
Provision at 31 March 2007
56,370

31.03.2007
INR
4,752,622
4,752,622
4,752,622

31.03.2006
£
-

31.03.2006
INR
-

Movements in the year
At 31 March 2007

Deferred
taxation
(Note 15)
31.03.2007
£

15 Provision for liabilites

TANLA SOLUTIONS (UK)

16 Share Capital

Authorised
1000 Ordinary
shares of £1 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1000 Ordinary shares of £1 each
Equity Shares
1000 Ordinary shares of £1 each

31.03.2007
£

31.03.2007
INR

31.03.2006
£

31.03.2006
INR

1,000

84,311

1,000

77,258

1,000

84,311

1,000

77,258

1,000

84,311

1,000

77,258

Share
premium
account
£
152,694
152,694

Profit
and loss
account
£
340,831
779,324
(75,000)
1,045,155

Total
£
493,525
779,324
(75,000)
1,197,849

Total
INR
41,609,684
65,705,741
(6,323,340)
100,992,085

17 Reserves

At 01.04.2006
Retained profit for the year
Equity dividends
At 31.03.2007

18 Ultimate parent undertaking
The ultimate parent company is Tanla Solutions Limited, a company incorporated in India.
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Tanla Mobile Limited
Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 March 2007
The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2007.
On 1st September 2006, the name of the company was changed by special resolution, from Mobizar Limited to
Tanla Mobile Limited.
Principal Activity and Review of the Business
The principal activity of the company is that of connecting to UK mobile networks to aggregate premium SMS.
Results and Dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 5.
Financial Instruments
The company’s principal financial instruments comprise bank balances, trade creditors,trade debtors, and loans
to the company. The main purpose of these instruments is to raise funds for the company’s operations and to
finance the company’s operations. Due to the nature of the financial instruments used by the company, there is no
exposure to price risk. The company’s approach to managing other risks applicable to the financial instruments
concerned is shown below:
• In respect of loan from the parent company, the company manages the liquidity risk by ensuring there are
sufficient funds to meet the payments.
• Trade debtors are managed in respect of credit and cash flow risk by policies concerning the credit offered to
customers and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time and credit limits.
• Trade creditors liquidity risk is managed by ensuring sufficient funds are available to meet amounts due.
Directors and Their Interests
The directors who served during the year and their interests in the company are as stated below:

Gautam Sabharwal
D. Uday Kumar Reddy

Class of Share

31/03/07

Ordinary Shares
Ordinary Shares

–
–

01/04/06
or Date of
Appointment
–
–

Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of the affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that year. In
preparing these the directors are required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The directors of a company must, in determining how amounts are presented within items in the profit and loss
account and balance sheet, have regard to the substance of the reported transaction or arrangement, in

TANLA MOBILE

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practice.
In so far as the directors are aware:
• there is no relevant audit information (information needed by the company’s auditors in connection with
preparing their report) of which the company’s auditors are unaware, and
• the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information.
Auditors
In accordance with Section 385 of the Companies Act 1985, a resolution proposing that VSP Limited be
reappointed as auditors of the company will be put to the Annual General Meeting.
This report was approved by the Board on 12 April 2007 and signed on its behalf by
Gautam Sabharwal
Secretary
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Tanla Mobile Limited
We have audited the financial statements of Tanla Mobile Limited for the year ended 31 March 2007 which
comprise the profit and loss account, the balance sheet, the cash flow statement and the related notes. These
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities
(effective January 2005), under the historical cost convention and the accounting policies set out therein.
This report is made solely to the company’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s shareholders
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
As described in the statement of directors’ responsibilities the company’s directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’
report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the company has not kept proper accounting records, if
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by
law regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the company is not disclosed.
We read the directors’ report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements within it.
Basis of Audit Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities, of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March
2007 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended;
the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and the
information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2007.
VSP Limited
Chartered Accountants and
Registered Auditors
April 12, 2007

23A Lyttelton Road,
Hampstead Garden Suburb,
London N2 0DN.
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Tanla Mobile Limited
Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended March 31, 2007
31.03.2007
£

31.03.2007
INR

31.03.2006
£

31.03.2006
INR

13,008,809

1,096,788,284

1,523,528

117,704,316

(7,109,061)

(599,373,457)

(858,046)

(66,290,687)

Gross Profit

5,899,748

497,414,828

665,482

51,413,629

Administrative Expenses
Depreciaiton

(797,241)
187,107

(67,216,345)
15,775,216

(131,795)
35,500

(10,182,183)
2,742,649

5,102,507
(102,040)
5,000,467
(1,506,916)
3,493,551
(64,993)
3,428,558
322,037
3,750,595

430,198,483
(8,603,115)
421,595,368
(127,049,895)
294,545,474
(5,479,638)
289,065,836
27,151,326
316,217,161

533,687
–
533,687
(155,000)
378,687
(56,650)
322,037
–
322,037

41,231,447
–
41,231,447
(11,974,948)
29,256,498
(4,376,650)
24,879,848
–
24,879,848

Notes
Turnover
Sales

2

Cost of Sales
Purchases

Operating Profit
3
Interest Payable and Similar Charges
Profit on Ordinary Activities Before Taxation
Tax on Profit on Ordinary Activities
5
Profit on Ordinary Activities after Taxation
Dividends
Retained Profit for the Year
14
Retained Profit Brought Forward
Retained Profit Carried Forward
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Tanla Mobile Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007
Year
Ended
31.03.2007
£

Year
Ended
31.03.2007
INR

Period
Ended
31.03.2006
£

Period
Ended
31.03.2006
INR

7

2,872,050
2,872,050

242,145,979
242,145,979

105,859
105,859

8,178,426
8,178,426

Current Assets
Debtors
Cash At Bank and in Hand

8

6,000,778
524,569
6,525,347

505,932,788
44,227,041
550,159,829

725,574
85,699
811,273

56,056,201
6,620,910
62,677,111

Creditors: Amounts Falling
Due Within One Year
Net Current Assets

9

(1,686,587)
4,838,760

(142,198,172)
407,961,657

(594,992)
216,281

(45,967,732)
16,709,379

7,710,810

650,107,636

322,140

24,887,805

Notes
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets

Total Assets Less Current Liabilites
Creditors: Amounts Falling
Due after more than One Year

10

(3,781,752)

(318,844,045)

–

–

Provisions

11

(178,360)

(15,037,745)

–

–

3,750,698

316,225,845

322,140

24,887,805

103
–
3,750,595
3,750,698

8,684
–
316,217,161
316,225,845

103
–
322,037
322,140

7,958
–
24,879,848
24,887,805

Net Assets
Capital and Reserves
Called Up Share Capital
Share Premium Account
Profit and Loss Account
Shareholder’s Funds

13
14

The financial statements were approved by the Board on April 12, 2007 and signed on its behalf by
Gautam Sabharwal
Director
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Tanla Mobile Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2007

Cash Generated from Operations
Operating Profit
Reconciliation to Cash Generated from
Operations Depreciation
(Increase) in Trade Debtors
Decrease in Other Debtors
(Decrease)in Trade Creditors
Increase in Other Creditors
Cash from Other Sources
Issue of Shares for Cash
Other New Long-Term Borrowings
Interest Paid
Tax Paid
Dividends Paid
Purchase of Tangible Fixed Assets
Net Increase In Cash in the Year
Cash at Bank and in Hand
less Overdrafts at Beginning
Cash at Bank and in Hand
Less Overdrafts at End of Year
Consisting of:
Cash at Bank and in Hand

31.03.2007
£

31.03.2007
INR

31.03.2006
£

31.03.2006
INR

5,102,507

430,198,483

533,687

41,231,447

187,107
(5,538,849)
13,985
(143,602)
310,117
(68,735)

15,775,216
(466,987,000)
1,179,092
(12,107,257)
26,146,336
(5,795,130)

35,500
(706,471)
(19,103)
418,487
21,505
283,605

2,742,649
(54,580,346)
(1,475,854)
32,331,356
1,661,428
21,910,679

–
3,781,752
3,781,752
(102,040)
(153,816)
(64,993)
(2,953,298)
(3,274,147)
438,870

–
318,844,045
318,844,045
(8,603,115)
(12,968,411)
(5,479,638)
(248,996,095)
(276,047,259)
37,001,656

103
–
103
–
–
(56,650)
(141,359)
(198,009)
85,699

7,958
–
7,958
–
–
(4,376,650)
(10,921,076)
(15,297,726)
6,620,910

85,699

7,225,385

–

–

524,569

44,227,041

85,699

6,620,910

524,569

44,227,041

85,699

6,620,910

127

128

Tanla Mobile Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended As At March 31, 2007
1

Accounting Polices
1.1 Accounting Convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.
1.2 Turnover
Turnover represents the total invoice value, excluding value added tax, of sales made during the year.
1.3 Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost less residual value of each asset over its
expected useful life, as follows:
Computers
Fixtures, Fittings and Equipment

– 25% Straight Line
– 25% Straight Line

1.4 Deferred Taxation
Provision is made for deferred taxation using the liability method to take account of timing differences
between the incidence of income and expenditure for taxation and accounting purposes except to the
extent that the director considers that a liability to taxation is unlikely to materialise.
2

Turnover
The total turnover of the company for the year has been derived from its principal activity wholly undertaken
in the UK.

3

Operating Profit

Operating Profit is Stated After Charging:
Depreciaiton and Other Amounts Written
off Tangible as
Auditors Remuneration

31.03.2007
£

31.03.2007
INR

31.03.2006
£

31.03.2006
INR

187,107
4,000

15,775,216
337,245

35,500
750

2,742,649
57,943

TANLA MOBILE

4

Employees

Number of employees
The average monthly number of employees
(including the director) during the year
Marketing
Sales
Administration

Employment costs
Wages and salaries
Social security costs

31.03.2007

31.03.2006

4
4
2
10

1
3
1
5

31.03.2007
£

31.03.2007
INR

31.03.2006
£

31.03.2006
INR

288,734
33,281
322,015

24,343,510
2,805,961
27,149,471

16,342
2,454
18,796

1,262,546
189,590
1,452,136

2007
£
86,333

2007
INR
7,278,839

2006
£
14,000

2006
INR
1,081,608

4.1 Directors’ emoluments
Remuneration and other emoluments
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5

Tax on Profit on Ordinary Activities
31.03.2007
£

31.03.2007
INR

31.03.2006
£

31.03.2006
INR

Total Current Tax Charge

1,329,740
(1,184)
1,328,556
1,328,556

112,111,974
(99,824)
112,012,149
112,012,149

155,000
–
155,000
155,000

11,974,948
–
11,974,948
11,974,948

Deferred Tax
Timing Differences, Origination and Reversal
Total Deferred Tax
Tax on Profit on Ordinary Activities

178,360
178,360
1,506,916

15,037,745
15,037,745
127,049,895

–
–
155,000

–
–
11,974,948

31.03.2007
INR

31.03.2006
£

31.03.2006
INR

5,479,638

56,650

4,376,650

Analysis of Charge in Period
Current Tax
UK Corporation Tax
Adjustments in Respect of Previous Periods

6 Dividends
Dividends Paid and Proposed on Equity Shares 31.03.2007
£
Paid During the Year:
Equity Dividends on Ordinary Shares
64,993

TANLA MOBILE

7

Tangible Fixed Assets

Cost
At 1st April 2006
Add: Addtions
At 31st March 2007

Computers
£
–
2,928,730
2,928,730

Fixtures,
Fittings and
Equipment
£
141,359
24568
165,927

Depreciation
At 1st April 2006
Charge for the year
At 31st March 2007

–
156,637
156,637

35,500
30470
65,970

35,500
187,107
222,607

2,993,048
15,775,216
18,768,263

Net book values
At 31st March 2007
At 31st March 2006

2,772,093
–

99,957
105,859

2,872,050
105,859

242,145,979
8,925,099

Cost
Additions
At 31st March 2007

Subsidiary
Undertakings
Shares
£
0
0

Total
£
0
0

Net Book Values
At 31st March 2007

0

0

31.03.2007
£
4,914,669
179,408
375
103
906,223
6,000,778

31.03.2007
INR
414,361,636
15,126,104
31,617
8,684
76,404,748
505,932,788

31.03.2006
£
706,471
–
–
103
19,000
725,574

31.03.2006
INR
54,580,346
–
–
7,958
1,467,897
56,056,201

Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year
31.03.2007
£
Trade Creditors
274,885
Corportion Tax
1,329,740
Other Taxes and Social Security Costs
47,820
Directors Accounts
0
Other Creditors
0
Accruals and Deferred Income
34,142
1,686,587

31.03.2007
INR
23,175,884
112,111,974
4,031,762
0
0
2,878,553
142,198,172

31.03.2006
£
418,487
155,000
20,465
0
0
1,040
594,992

31.03.2006
INR
32,331,356
11,974,948
1,581,079
0
0
80,348
45,967,732

Fixed Asset Investments

8

Total
£
141,359
2,953,298
3,094,657

Total
INR
11,918,147
248,996,095
260,914,242

Debtors

Trade Debtors
Amounts Owned by Group Undertakings
Other Debtors
Called Up Share Capital Not Paid
Prepayments and Accrued Income
9
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10 Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year
31.03.2007
31.03.2007
£
INR
Amounts Owned to Group Undertakings
3,781,752
318,844,045

31.03.2006
£
–

31.03.2006
INR
–

Total
31.03.2006
INR

11 Provision for Liabilites
Deferred
Taxation
(Note 12)
31.03.2007
£

Total
31.03.2007
INR

Deferred
Taxation
(Note 12)
31.03.2006
£

178,360

15,037,745

–

–

31.03.2007
£
178,360

31.03.2007
INR
15,037,745

31.03.2006
£
–

31.03.2006
INR
–

Deferred Tax Charge in Profit and Loss Account

178,360

15,037,745

–

–

Provision at 31 March 2007

178,360

15,037,745

–

–

Movements in the Year
At 31 March 2007
12 Provision for Deferred Taxation
Accelerated Capital Allowances

TANLA MOBILE

13 Share Capital
31.03.2007
£

31.03.2007
INR

31.03.2006
£

31.03.2006
INR

1,000

84,311

1,000

77,258

Allotted, Called Up and Fully Paid
103 Ordinary Shares of £1 each

103

8,684

103

7,958

Equity Shares
103 Ordinary shares of £1 each

103

8,684

103

7,958

At 01.04.2006
Retained Profit for the Period

Profit
and loss
account
£
322,037
3,428,558

Total
£
322,037
3,428,558

Total
INR
27,151,326
289,065,836

At 31.03.2007

3,750,595

3,750,595

316,217,161

Authorised
1000 Ordinary Shares of £1 each

14 Reserves

15 Ultimate Parent Undertaking
The ultimate parent company is Tanla Solutions Limited, a company incorporated in India.
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Tanla Solutions Limited
Group financial statements 2006-2007
Under
US GAAP
Un-Audited – Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In Rupees, Except Amounts per Common Stock and as Stated Otherwise)
As of
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2006 March 31, 2007 March 31, 2007
INR
INR
INR
$
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
60,448,150
Investments & Bank Deposits
4,144,639
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowances
for Doubtful Debtors
44,170,076
Product Under Development
2,979,125
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets
15,967,081
Total Current Assets
127,709,071
Premises Developments and Equipment, net 26,554,486
Advance for Premises Developments
and Equipment
–
Goodwill, Net
29,791,920
Other Non-Current Assets
–
Deferred Taxes on Income
1,119,183
Total Assets
185,174,660

96,536,367
84,264,003

435,678,212
3,475,603,771

10,108,543
80,640,459

236,512,529
–
11,085,688
428,398,586
94,122,507

789,651,995
–
153,005,943
4,853,939,922
480,572,517

18,321,392
–
3,550,022
112,620,416
11,150,174

5,080,714
29,791,920
4,180,000
504,296
562,078,024

211,826,840
29,791,920
192,085,612
16,212,934
5,784,429,745

4,914,776
691,228
4,456,743
376,170
134,209,507

2,727,059
3,216,362
24,134,157
30,077,578
–
2,298,751
–
32,376,329

3,098,760
54,706,737
61,664,536
119,470,033
–
7,497,302
–
126,967,336

–
113,493,102
170,646,594
284,139,696
–
38,306,469
–
322,446,165

–
2,633,251
3,959,318
6,592,568
–
888,781
–
7,481,350

Shareholder’s equity
Common stock – par value Rs. 2 ($ 0.0464)
per share (6,000,000 and 60,000,000 equity
shares authorized and 34,115,000 equity
shares issued as of March 31, 2005 and 2006
and 50,000,000 equity shares issued as of
March 31, 2007 )
68,230,000
Additional Paid-In Capital
–
Share Premium
–
Retained Earnings
84,568,331
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
–
Total Shareholder’s Equity
152,798,331
Total Liabilities and Shareholder’s Equity
185,174,660

68,230,000
–
–
367,584,921
(704,233)
435,110,688
562,078,024

100,000,000
–
4,177,755,000
1,185,214,456
(985,877)
5,461,983,580
5,784,429,744

2,320,186
–
96,931,671
27,499,175
-22,874
126,728,157
134,209,507

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Debts
Accounts Payable
Other Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Debts
Deferred Taxes on Income
Other Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Un-Audited – Consolidated Statements of Income
(In Rupees, Except Amounts per Common Stock and as Stated Otherwise)

Revenues
Cost of Revenues
Gross Profit

Year ended
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2006 March 31, 2007 March 31, 2007
INR
INR
INR
$
223,863,135
630,208,162 2,218,477,484
51,472,795
131,554,404
214,277,397
986,424,998
22,886,891
92,308,731

415,930,765

1,232,052,486

28,585,905

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 18,403,787
Impairment of Goodwill (Refer Note …)
–
Provision for Diminution in Value of Investment
(Refer Note ..)
–
Total operating expenses
18,403,787

72,944,901
–

207,499,065
–

4,814,363
–

–
72,944,901

–
207,499,065

–
4,814,363

Operating Income
73,904,944
342,985,864 1,024,553,421
Interest/Other income
3,408,965
1,014,591
73,667,771
Interest Expense
–
–
–
Other Income/(expense), Net
3,408,965
1,014,591
73,667,771
Income Before Income Taxes
77,313,909
344,000,455 1,098,221,192
Income Taxes
8,902,927
41,534,050
170,314,007
Net income
68,410,982
302,466,404
927,907,185
Earnings per Share
Basic
2.56
8.87
24.31
Weighted Average Shares Used in Computing Earnings per Share (On Adjusted Basis):
Basic (Rs. 2 each)
26,736,320
34,115,000
38,162,411

23,771,541
1,709,229
–
1,709,229
25,480,770
3,951,601
21,529,169

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Un-Audited – Consolidated Statement of Shareholder’s Equity and
Comprehensive Income
(In Rupees, Except Amounts per Common Stock and as Stated Otherwise)
Common Stock
Shares
Par Value
Balance of March 31, 2004 34,115,000
Net Income
–
Other Comprehensive Income
Gain (loss) on Foreign
Currency Translation
–
Total Comprehensive Income
–
Cash Dividends Paid
(incl. dividend tax)
–
Balance of
March 31, 2005
34,115,000
Net Income
–
Other Comprehensive Income
Gain (loss) on Foreign
currency Translation
–
Total Comprehensive
Income
–
Cash Dividends Paid at
the Rate of Rs.0.50 Per Share
–
Balance of March 31, 2006 34,115,000
Net Income
–
Other comprehensive income
Gain (loss) on Foreign
Currency Translation
–
Total Comprehensive
Income
–
Issuance of Common Stock 15,885,000
Share Premium
–
Cash Dividends Paid at
the Rate of Rs. 2 Per Share
–
Balance of March 31, 2007 50,000,000

Other
Retained Comprehensive
Earnings Income/(Loss)

Total
Shareholders
Equity

68,230,000
–

42,404,793
68,410,982

–
–

110,634,793
68,410,982

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

(26,247,445)

–

(26,247,445)

68,230,000

84,568,331

–

152,798,331

–

302,466,404

–

302,466,404

–

–

(704,233)

(704,233)

–

–

(704,233)

(704,233)

–
68,230,000

(19,449,814)
371,332,271

(704,233)

(19,449,814)
435,110,688

–

927,907,185

–

927,907,185

–

–

(281,644)

(281,644)

–
31,770,000
4,177,755,000

–
–
–

(281,644)
–
–

(281,644)
31,770,000
4,177,755,000

–
4,277,755,000

(114,025,000)
1,185,214,456

(985,877)

(114,025,000)
5,461,983,580
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Un-Audited – Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In Rupees, Except Amounts per Common Stock and as Stated Otherwise)
Year ended
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2006 March 31, 2007 March 31, 2007
INR
INR
INR
$
Cash flows from Operating Activities
Net Income
77,313,909
344,000,455 1,098,221,192
25,480,770
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Pprovided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
2,594,086
7,918,471
32,340,947
750,370
Impairment of Goodwill
–
–
–
–
Other Income/(Expense), Net
(1,741,679)
(5,541,083)
(25,124,263)
(582,930)
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable, Net
(37,421,299) (188,453,819) (553,139,467)
(12,833,862)
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets
(2,809,425)
4,881,393 (141,920,256)
(3,292,813)
Other Non-Current Assets
–
2,979,125
–
–
Other Liabilities
2,800,224
56,005,350
55,775,039
1,294,084
Other Non-Current Liabilities
(144,162)
(8,273,500)
(23,217,507)
(538,689)
40,591,654
213,516,391
442,935,685 10,276,930
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investments & Bank Deposits
(4,144,639)
(80,119,365) (3,391,339,768)
(78,685,377)
Purchase of Premises and Equipments
(6,410,807)
(81,597,994) (625,963,371)
(14,523,512)
Proceeds from Sales Equipments
10,000
353,571
–
–
Other Income/(Expense), net
1,581,219
917,101
73,667,771
1,709,229
Proceeds from Sales of Investments
5,559,701
–
–
–
Cash Used in Investing Activities
(3,404,526) (160,446,687) (3,943,635,368)
(91,499,660)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Issuance of Common Stock
16,615,204
– 4,209,525,000 97,668,793.50
Investment Subsidy Received
400,000
–
–
–
Cash Dividends Paid
(19,681,156)
(12,211,765) (133,474,814) (3,096,863.44)
Un-Secured Loans Repaid
-151,684
–
–
Public Issue Expenses Paid
–
(4,180,000) (235,927,015) (5,473,944.66)
Net Cash Provided by/(Used In)
financing Activities
(2,817,636)
(16,391,765) 3,840,123,171
89,097,985
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes
on Cash and Cash Equivalents
(589,723)
(281,644)
(6,535)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
34,369,492
36,088,217
339,141,845
7,868,720
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning
of the Year
26,078,658
60,448,150
96,536,367
2,239,823
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End
of the Year
60,448,150
96,536,367
435,678,212
10,108,543
Supplementary Information:
Cash Paid During the Year for
Income Taxes
144,162
8,273,500
23,217,507
538,689
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Description of Business
Tanla Solutions Limited, its wholly consolidated subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as “Tanla Group”) are
engaged in providing global technology services and solutions in wireless communications industry.
Tanla Solutions Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Tanla”) was incorporated on July 28th, 1995 in
Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh. Tanla has its headquarters and development centres facilities in India and serves
a global customer base through its subsidiaries in United Kingdom (UK). Tanla’s range of services are
product developments and implementations in wireless industry, aggregator services and offshore
development services.
Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited, formerly Techserv Teleservices (UK) Limited, UK (hereinafter referred to as
“Tanla UK”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla based at London, UK, provides aggregator and offshore
development services to clients in telecommunications and offshore service sectors.
Smartnet Communication Systems Privated Limited, India (hereinafter referred to as “Smartnet”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Tanla based at Kolkata and Corporate Office at New Delhi, India, is engaged in
development of products and services.
Tanla Mobile Limited, formerly Mobizar Limited, UK (hereinafter referred to as “Tanla UK”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Tanla UK based at London, UK, provides aggregator services to clients in the
telecommunications.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation:
The consolidation of financial statements on Tanla and its subsidiaries are prepared in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”) in Indian Rupees
(Rs.), the National Currency of India. All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been
eliminated. Tanla has acquired Tanla UK and Smartnet in December 2004 and Tanla Mobile, subsidiary of
Tanla UK has acquired in September 2005. The consolidated financial statements of Tanla Group for the
years ended March 2005, 2006 and 2007 are not comparable due to the above. Solely for the
convenience to the reader, the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2007 have
been translated into United States dollars at the noon buying rate in New York City on
March 31, 2007 for cable transfers in India Rupees, as certified for customs purposes by the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York of US$1=Rs.43.10. No representation is made that or could be converted in to
United States dollars as such a rate or at any other certain rate on March 31, 2007 or at any other date.
b. Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires Management to make estimates
and assumptions that effect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to
contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
income and expenses during the period. Examples of such estimates include provisions for doubtful
debts, future obligations under retirement benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support and
the useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets.
c. Foreign Currency Translation:
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are reported in India Rupees, the reporting as well
as functional currency of Tanla. However, Pound sterling is the functional currency for the foreign
subsidiaries in U.K. the translation of functional currencies into Indian Rupees (reporting currency) is
performed for assets and liabilities using the current exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date
and for revenues, costs and expenses using average exchange rates prevailing during the reporting
periods. Adjustments resulting from the translation of functional currency financial statements to
reporting currency are accumulated and reported as other comprehensive income/(loss), a separate
component of shareholders’ equity.
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Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in the functional
currency at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses resulting from foreign
currency transactions are included in the statement of income.
d. Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from software development on fixed-price, fixed-time frame contracts where there is no
uncertainty as to measurement or collectability has been recognized. On time-and-material contracts,
revenue is recognized as the related services are rendered. Provision for estimated losses, if any on
uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the
current contract estimates. Annual Technical Services revenue and revenue from fixed-price maintenance
contracts are recognized proportionately over the period in which services are rendered. Revenue from
the sale of products for software applications is recognized on transfer of the products to the users.
e. Cost of Revenue and Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:
Cost of revenues primarily include the comprehensive cost of services received from service providers,
technical staff, depreciation, application software costs, travel costs, date communication expenses and
other expenses incurred that are related to the generation of revenue.
Selling, general and administrative expenses generally include the comprehensive costs of sales,
management and administrative personnel, research and development costs, travel costs, advertising,
business promotion, depreciation on assets, rents, repairs, electricity and other general expenses not
attributable to cost of revenues.
f.

Research and Development:
Research expenditure is written off to the profit and loss account in the year in which it is incurred.
Development expenditure is written off in the same year unless the directors are satisfied as to the
technical, commercial and financial viability of individual projects. In this situation, the expenditure is
deferred and but not amortized over the period from which the company is expected to benefit.

g. Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Tanla Group considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents.
h. Premises Development, Equipment and Depreciation:
Premises development and equipment are stated at actual cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation on fixed assets is applied on straight-line method, pro-rata for the period of usage, in
accordance with the rates prescribed under schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.
Advances paid towards the development of premises and acquisitions of equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.
i.

Goodwill:
Goodwill may arise on the acquisition of subsidiary and associated undertaking and interests in joint
ventures. It represents the excess of the cost over fair value of the group share of tangible assets
acquired. In accordance with Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) 10 such goodwill is capitalized as an
intangible asset. Goodwill has not been amortized.

j.

Income Tax:
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statements carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the year in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered of settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in the statement of income in the period of change.

k. Earning per Share:
In determining earnings per share, the company considers the net profit after tax expense.
The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average shares used
in outstanding during the period.
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l.

Employment Benefits:
i) Provident Fund: In accordance with Indian law, all employees in India are entitled to receive benefits
under Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer
make monthly contributions to the plan at a predetermined rate (presently 12.0%) of the employee’s
basis salary. Tanla has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. These
contributions are made to a fund administered and managed by the Government of India. Tanla’s
monthly contributions are charges to income in the year it is incurred.
ii) Employee State Insurance Fund: In addition to the above benefit, all employees in India are drawing
gross salary of less than Rs.10,000 (US $ 232) per month are entitled to receive benefit under
employee state insurance fund scheme. The employer makes contribution to the scheme at a
predetermined rate (presently 4.75%) of employee’s gross salary. Tanla has no further obligations
under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. These contributions are made to fund administered
and managed by the Government of India. Tanla’s monthly contributions are charges to income in
the year it is incurred.
iii) Gratuity Plan: In addition to the above benefits, Tanla provides for a gratuity obligation, a defined
benefit retirement plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering all employees in India. The gratuity plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment.
This has been accounted for under the provisions of FAS 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions”.
Tanla provides for the gratuity plan on the basis of actuarial valuations.

3. Premises Development and Equipment, Net
Premises Development and Equipment at Cost Less Accumulated Depreciation Consist of:

Land Incl. Development
Building Developments
Interiors & Fixtures
Furniture
Computers
Office Equipment
Vehicles
Air-conditioning
Library
Total
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Premises Development and Equipment, Net

2005
INR
8,323,552
6,410,188
2,418,738
9,039,906
856,149
5,880,994
937,100
73,923
35,509,405
8,954,919
26,554,486

2006
INR
8,323,552
18,534,299
34,628,492
25,949,314
12,102,881
6,728,746
3,348,291
86,061
109,701,636
15,579,129
94,122,507

2007
INR
46,171,392
22,317,425
22,212,158
39,261,165
373,314,430
13,813,510
7,844,809
3,857,796
126,197
528,918,880
48,346,363
480,572,517

As of March 31
2007
$
1,071,262
517,806
515,363
910,932
8,661,588
320,499
182,014
89,508
2,928
12,271,900
1,121,725
11,150,174

Depreciation expense amounted to Rs. 2,594,086, Rs. 7,818,471 and Rs. 32,340,947 (US$ 750,370) for the
years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 respectively.
4. Goodwill, Net
Goodwill Consists of:

Goodwill
Acquisition of Tanla (UK)
Acquisition of Smartnet
Total
Less: Accumulated Amortization
Less: Impairment
Goodwill, Net

2005
INR

2006
INR

2007
INR

As of March 31
2007
$

4,674,000
25,117,920
29,791,920
–
–
29,791,920

4,674,000
25,117,920
29,791,920
–
–
29,791,920

4,674,000
25,117,920
29,791,920
–
–
29,791,920

108,445
582,782
691,228
–
–
691,228

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration allotted over the fair value of assets acquired. Goodwill has
not been amortized/impaired during the year.
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5. Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of shares outstanding at
the balance sheet date.

Net Profit after Tax and Extraordinary Items
Weighted Average number of equity shares
of Rs. 2 each
Nominal Value of Shares
Earnings per Share (Basic/Diluted)

2005
INR
68,410,982

2006
INR
302,466,404

2007
INR
927,907,185

As of March 31
2007
$
21,529,169

26,736,320
2
2.56

34,115,000
2
8.87

38,162,411
2
24.31

38,162,411
2
0.56

6. Segment Reporting
Company is mainly engaged in the area of Software Development and related services. Hence segment
reporting is not applicable to the Company and to the nature of its business.
7. Related Party Transactions
List of related parties:
Name of the Related Party
1 Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
2 Smartnet Communication Systems Private Limited
3 Tanla Mobile Limited

Country
UK
India
UK

Nature of relationship
Wholly-Owned Subsidiary
Wholly-Owned Subsidiary
Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Tanla (UK)

The details of the related party transactions entered into by the company for the year ended March 31, 2007:
Particulars
a

Relationship Between the Parties

B

Nature of Transactions

c
d
e
f

Value of Transactions
Amount Outstanding
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Amount Written Off

Tanla Solutions Smartnet Communication
(UK) Limited
Systems Pvt Ltd
Wholly-Owned
Wholly-Owned
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Outstanding Amounts
Received, Dividends
Received, Interest
Received & Working
Capital Loan Given
464,922,028
447,246,250
–
–

Advance received

3,526,075
3,521,075
–
–

(Amount in Rs.)
Tanla Mobile Ltd
Wholly-Owned
Subsidiary of
Tanla (UK)
Outstanding Amounts
Received

14,740,627
–
–
–

8. Shareholder’s Equity and Dividends
Stock-Split
At the extraordinary general meeting held on December 3, 2005, the shareholders approved the splitting of
equity shares for Rs. 10 each to Rs. 2 each. The record date for share split was December 21, 2005.
Dividends
Interim dividends declared by the Board of Directors on March 15, 2007 and paid on March 18, 2007 to the
shareholders and the same shall be considered as final dividend in the forth coming Annual General Meeting
by the shareholders.
Dividends paid to equity shareholders are based on the net income available for distribution as reported in
Tanlas unconsolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the Indian GAAP.
Under the companies Act, dividends may be paid out of the profits of a company in the year in which the
dividend is declared or out of the undistributed profits of previous fiscal years. Before declaring a dividend
greater than 10% of the par value of its equity shares, a company is required to transfer its reserves to a
minimum percentage of its profits for that year, ranging from 2.5% to 10%, depending upon the dividend
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percentage to be declared in such year, Dividends declared, distributed or paid by an Indian corporation are
subject to a dividend tax of 14.025% including the presently applicable surcharge, of the total dividend
declared, distributed or paid. This tax is not paid by the shareholders nor is it a withholding requirement, but
rather a direct tax payable by the corporation.
9. Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets Consist of:

Advances for Rendering Services
Rent Seposits
Advance Income Tax & TDS
Total

2005
INR
11,612,675
2,696,147
1,658,259
15,967,081

2006
INR
6,664,450
2,691,151
1,730,087
11,085,688

2007
INR
87,978,544
34,376,002
30,651,398
153,005,943

As of March 31
2007
INR
2,041,266
797,587
711,169
3,550,022

Prepaid expenses and other assets include rent for office premises, prepaid insurance, advances for services,
other deposits, staff/travel advances and advance income taxes paid.
10. Other Liabilities
Other Liabilities Consist of:

Sundry Creditors for Expenses
Sundry Creditors – Hire Purchase
Other Liabilities
Unclaimed Dividend
Provision for Income Tax
Proposed Dividend
Tax on Dividend
Total

2005
INR
3,216,362
2,727,059
1,615,951
78,000
9,781,000
12,211,765
447,441
30,077,578

2006
INR
54,706,737
3,098,760
5,681,420
155,805
36,377,497
17,057,500
2,392,314
119,470,033

2007
INR
49,400,114
–
12,368,976
51,724,011
170,646,594
–
–
284,139,696

As of March 31
2007
INR
1,146,174
–
286,983
1,200,093
3,959,318
–
–
6,592,568
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Tanla Solutions Limited
Group Financial Statements 2006-2007
Under
UK GAAP
Group Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended March 31, 2007
Particulars

Notes

Turnover
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating & Administrative expenses
Other operating income
Group operating profit
Interest receivable and similar income
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on profit on ordinary activities
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation
Dividends
Retained profit for the group

Continuing Continuing Operations
Operations 2006
2007
in £
in £
8,224,238
25,883,531
(2,796,327)
(11,508,867)
5,427,911
14,374,664
(1,178,409)
(3,719,559)
0
0
4,249,502
10,655,105
11,968
859,500
4,261,470
11,514,605
(535,923)
(1,987,096)
3,725,547
9,527,509
(250,965)
(1,405,201)
3,474,582
8,122,309

2

3
4
7

There are no unrecognized gains or losses other than the profit or loss for the above financial years.
The continuing operations reflect all turnover and results of the group.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Group Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2007
Particulars

Notes

2006
£

Fixed Assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Current Assets
Debtors
Investments
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net Current Assets
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities
Provision for Liabilities and Charges
Deferred taxation
Net Assets
Capital and Reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Other reserves
Profit and loss account
Shareholders' Funds

9
10
12
13
13

2007
£

£

456,890
880,348
1,337,238
3,194,816
0
2,332,908
5,527,724
(1,541,549)

£
2,702,717
6,562,134
9,264,851

11,021,372
30,996,102
14,733,841
56,751,314
(3,063,792)
3,986,175
5,323,413

53,687,522
62,952,373

(90,232)
5,233,181

(258,313)
62,694,059

831,161
221,550
397,832
3,782,638
5,233,181

1,169,180
49,067,043
1,226,654
11,231,182
62,694,059

14

15
16
16
16
17

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2007
1. Accounting Policies
1.1 Accounting convention
The financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include the
revaluation of certain fixed assets.
1.2 Basis of Consolidation
The group financial statements consolidate the accounts of Tanla Solutions Limited and all its subsidiary
undertakings made up to 31 March 2007 each year; the group profit and loss account includes the
results of all subsidiary undertakings.
Turnover and profits arising on trading between group companies are excluded.
1.3 Turnover
Turnover represents the total invoice value added tax, of sales made during the year.
1.4 Goodwill
Goodwill may arise on the acquisition of subsidiary and associated undertaking and interests in joint
ventures. It represents the excess of the cost over fair value of the group share of tangible assets
acquired. In accordance with Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) 10 such goodwill is capitalized as an
intangible asset. Goodwill has not been amortized.
1.5 Research and development
Research expenditure is written off to the profit and loss account in the year in which it is incurred.
Development expenditure is written off in the same year unless the directors are satisfied as to the
technical, commercial and financial viability of individual projects. In this situation, the expenditure is
deferred and but not amortized over the period from which the company is expected to benefit.
1.6 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Depreciation is provided at the rate calculated to written off the cost or valuation less residual value of
each asset over its expected useful life, as follows:
Fixtures, fittings and equipment - 25% straight Line.
1.7 Deferred taxation
Provision is made for deferred taxation using the liability method to take account of timing differences
between the incidence of income and expenditure for taxation and accounting purposes except to the
extent that the directors consider that a liability to taxation is unlikely to materialize.
1.8 Foreign currency
Company
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the date
of the transactions. All differences are taken to the Profit and Loss account.
Group
The financial statements of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated at the rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. The exchange differences arising on the re- translation of opening net assets is
taken directly to reserves.
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2. Turnover
Turnover represents the net invoiced amount of goods sold and services provided and excludes value added
tax and other sales taxes.

3. Operating Profit
Operating Profit
Operating profit is stated after charging:
Depreciation of tangible assets
Loss on foreign currencies
Auditors' remuneration

2006
£

2007
£

96,143
10,843
4,568

85,955
3,146
13,688

2006
£
11,968

2007
£
859,500

2006
£
47,667

2007
£
206363

2006
£
535,923

2007
£
1,987,096

4. Interest receivable and similar income group
Interest receivable and similar income
Interest and similar income group
5. Directors emoluments
Directors emoluments
Remuneration and other benefits
6. Taxation
Taxation
UK and other current year taxation

7. Profit for the year attributable to share holders
As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 the Profit and Loss Account of Tanla Solutions
Limited has not been presented with the financial statements.
8. Intangible fixed assets
Intangible Fixed Assets
Group Cost
At 1 April 2006
Additions
At 31 March 2007

Development Costs
£

Goodwill
£

Total
£

246,667
2,245,827
2,492,494

210,223
–
210,223

456,890
2,245,827
2,702,717

The goodwill of £ 210,223 in the group balance sheet consist of £ 153,286 on the acquisition of the trade
and assets of the Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited and £ 56,937 on the acquisition of the trade and assets of the
Smartnet Communication Systems Private Limited
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9. Tangible Fixed Assets
Tangible Fixed Assets

Fixtures, Fittings & Equipment
£

Total
£

1,319,246
7,358,525
8,677,771

1,319,246
7,358,525
8,677,771

438,897
1,676,740
2,115,637

438,897
1,676,740
2,115,637

6,562,134
880,348

6,562,134
880,348

2005
£
394,372

2006
£
394,372

Group Cost
At 1 April 2006
Additions
Disposals
At 31 March 2007
Depreciation
At 1 April 2006
Charge for the year
At 31 March 2007
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2007
At 31 March 2006
10. Fixed Assets Investments
Company
Subsidiary undertakings

Holding of 20% or More
The group of the company holds 20% or more of the nominal value of the share capital of the following
companies:
Company Subsidiary Undertaking

Country of Incorporation
or Operation
Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
UK
Smartnet Communication Systems Private Limited
India

Holding
Ord. Shares
Ord. Shares

Proportion
Held
100%
100%

The principal activity of all the above companies is telecommunication services and provision of offshore
outsourcing services.
11. Other Investments
Company
In mutual funds

2006
£
-

2007
£
30,996,102

2006
£
3,051,775
84,389
58,652
3,194,816

2007
£
9,232,456
1,386,998
401,917
11,021,372

12. Debtors
Debtors
Trade Debtors
Other Debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
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13. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade Creditors
Corporate tax
Other taxes and social security costs
Directors' accounts
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income
Proposed dividend

2006
£
745,877
500,256
21,377
6,006
37,992
9,944
220,097
1,541,549

2007
£
577,576
1,736,853
54,219
6,006
643,916
45,222
–
3,063,792

2006
£

2007
£

90,232

258,313

2006
£

2007
£

797,732

1,169,180

14. Provision for Liabilities and charges
Deferred tax is analyzed over the following timing differences:
Provision for Liabilities and charges
Group
Accelerated capital allowances
15. Share capital
Share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid equity shares
5,00,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.2 each
(3,41,15,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.2 each)
16. Equity Reserves
Equity Reserves
Group
At April 1, 2006
Transfer to other reserves
Retained profit
Other recognized gains or losses
At March 31, 2007
Company
At April 1, 2006
Transfer to other reserves
Retained profit
At March 31, 2007

Share premium
account
£

Profit and loss
account
£

Other reserves

Total

£

£

221550
48,845,493

3,782,638
(673,765)
8,122,309
–
11,231,182

397,832
673,765

4,402,020
48,845,493
8,122,309
155,057
61,524,879

49,067,043
221550
48,845,493
49,067,043

3,239,672
(673,765)
5,404,492
7,970,399

155,057
1,226,654
397,832
673,765
1,071,597

3,859,054
48,845,493
5,404,492
58,109,040
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17. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders' fund
Group
Profit for the year
Dividends
Other recognized gains or losses
Net proceeds of equity share issue
Net addition to shareholders' funds
Opening shareholders' funds
Company
Profit for the year
Dividends
Net proceeds of equity share issue
Net addition to shareholders' funds
Opening shareholders' funds

2006
£

2007
£

3,725,547
(250,965)
3,474,582
51,308
1,707,291
5,233,181

9,527,509
(1,408,158)
8,119,351
155,057
371,449
48,845,493
5,233,181
62,724,531

2,737,487
(250,965)
2,486,522
1,005,814
3,492,336

6,737,650
(1,333,158)
5,404,492
371,449
48,845,493
3,492,336
58,113,770

2006
£
250,965

2007
£
1,408,158

18. Dividends
Dividends
Dividends on equity shares:
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11th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the 11th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF M/s. TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED will be
held on Wednesday, the 29th of August 2007, at10.30 A.M at Hyderabad International Convention Centre,
Novotel & HICC Complex, Near Hi-tech City, Cyberabad Post Office, Hyderabad -500081 to transact the
following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31 2007, Profit & Loss Account for
the year ended on that date together with the Reports of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.
2. To re-appoint a Director in place of Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for reappointment.
To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 256 and other applicable provisions if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956, Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal, Director, who retires by rotation, be and is hereby
re-appointed as a Director, liable to retire by rotation.”
3. To re-appoint a Director in place of Mr. Shrikanth Madan Chitnis who retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for reappointment.
To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 256 and other applicable provisions if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956 Mr. Shrikanth Madan Chitnis, Director, who retires by rotation be and is hereby reappointed as a Director, liable to retire by rotation.”
4. To re-appoint M/s. Ramasamy Koteswara Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad, as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company
To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT M/s. Ramasamy Koteswara Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants be and are hereby reappointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at such remuneration as may be determined
by the Board of Directors of the Company.”
5. To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend on Equity Shares for the year 2006-07 as Final Dividend.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
6. To appoint a Director in place of Prof. S.K. Palhan who retires at this Annual General
Meeting and being eligible offers himself for appointment.
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT, Prof. S.K. Palhan, who was appointed as a Director during the year, under Section 262 of
the Companies Act, 1956 retires at this Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director
under Sec. 256, liable to retire by rotation.”
7. Delisting of equity shares from Hyderabad Stock Exchange Limited, Madras Stock Exchange Limited and
Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of the Companies Act,1956,Securities Contracts (Regulation)
Act,1956 and the rules framed there under, Listing Agreement, SEBI(Delisting of Securities) Guidelines,2003
and such other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines, and subject to such approvals, permission
and sanctions as may be necessary, the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
seek voluntary delisting of its securities from Hyderabad Stock Exchange Limited, Madras Stock Exchange
Limited and Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER that the securities of the company shall continue to be listed on the Stock Exchange
having nation wide trading terminals viz the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai and therefore as per the said guidelines issued by the Securities
Exchange Board of India, no exit opportunity need to be given to the shareholders of the Company.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER that D. Uday Kumar Reddy, Chairman & Managing Director and Ms. Ch. Seshanuradha,
Company Secretary be and are hereby, jointly and severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary or desirable and to execute all such deeds and documents as may be
considered necessary and expedient to give effect to the above said resolution.”
8. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 198, 269, 309 and other applicable provisions, if any,
read with Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, the Members of the Company do and hereby approve,
with effect from September 1, 2007 till May 31, 2010 , enhancement in remuneration to Rs. 48 Lakhs per
anum, including other allowances/perquisites payable to Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy, Chairman & Managing
Director.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER, that Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy, Chairman & Managing Director, along with other
Working Directors, be eligible to a commission of 1.5% of the net profits of the Company in addition to the
remuneration mentioned above.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year, during the tenure of Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy, the
Company incurs a loss or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay to Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy, the
above remuneration, including other allowances/ perquisites subject to the limits specified under Part II of
Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956 ( including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof, for
the time being in force) or such other limits as may be prescribed by the Government from time to time as
minimum remuneration.’’
“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Remuneration Committee be authorized to review and fix monthly salary and also
to determine performance linked incentives including commission, either on quarterly, half yearly or yearly
basis, considering the maximum remuneration payable under provision of sec198 and Schedule XIII of the
Companies Act, 1956.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purposes of giving effect to the revised remuneration Ms. Ch.
Seshanuradha, Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed or considered necessary or desirable for
such purpose.”
9. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 198, 269, 309 and other applicable provisions, if any,
read with Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, the Members of the Company do and hereby approve,
with effect from September 1, 2007 till January 27, 2010 payment of commission of 1.5% of the net profits
of the Company to Mr.Gautam Sabharwal, Director-Global Business Development, along with other Working
Directors.”
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“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Remuneration Committee be authorized to review and fix performance linked
incentives including commission, either on quarterly, half yearly or yearly basis, considering the maximum
remuneration payable under provision of sec198 and schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purposes of giving effect to the revised remuneration Ms. Ch.
Seshanuradha, Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed or considered necessary or desirable for
such purpose.”
10. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 198, 269, 309 and other applicable provisions, if any,
read with Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, the Members of the Company do and hereby approve,
with effect from September 1, 2007 till September 8, 2009 , enhancement in remuneration to Rs. 43 Lakhs
per anum, including other allowances/perquisites payable to Mr. Satish Kathirisetti, Director- CTO.
“RESOLVED FURTHER, that Mr. Satish Kathirisetti along with other Working Directors , be eligible to a
commission of 1.5% of the net profits of the Company in addition to the remuneration mentioned above.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year, during the tenure of Mr. Satish Kathirisetti, the
Company incurs a loss or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay to Mr. Satish Kathirisetti, the
above remuneration, including other allowances/ perquisites subject to the limits specified under Section II of
Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956 ( including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof,
for the time being in force) or such other limits as may be prescribed by the Government from time to time as
minimum remuneration.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Remuneration Committee be authorized to review and fix monthly salary and also
to determine performance linked incentives including commission, either on quarterly, half yearly or yearly
basis, considering the maximum remuneration payable under provision of sec198 and schedule XIII of the
Companies Act, 1956.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purposes of giving effect to the revised remuneration Ms. Ch.
Seshanuradha, Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed or considered necessary or desirable for
such purpose.”
11. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 198, 269, 309 and other applicable provisions, if any,
read with Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, the Members of the Company do and hereby approve,
with effect from September 1, 2007 till October 26, 2009, enhancement in remuneration to Rs. 30 Lakhs per
anum, including other allowances/perquisites payable to Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal, Director - Operations.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER that Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal, along with other Working Directors be eligible to a
commission of 1.5% of the net profits, of the Company in addition to the remuneration mentioned above.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year, during the tenure of Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal, the
Company incurs a loss or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay to Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal, the
above remuneration, including other allowances/ perquisites subject to the limits specified under Section II of
Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956 ( including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof,
for the time being in force) or such other limits as may be prescribed by the Government from time to time as
minimum remuneration.
“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Remuneration Committee be authorized to review and fix monthly salary and also
to determine performance linked incentives including commission, either on quarterly, half yearly or yearly
basis, considering the maximum remuneration payable under provision of sec198 and schedule XIII of the
Companies Act, 1956.”

153

154

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purposes of giving effect to the revised remuneration Ms. Ch.
Seshanuradha, Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed or considered necessary or desirable for
such purpose.”
12. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of section 198, 269, 309 and other applicable provisions, if any,
read with Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, the Members of the Company do and hereby approve,
with effect from September 1, 2007 till September 1, 2010 , enhancement in remuneration to Rs. 30 Lakhs
per anum, including other allowances/perquisites payable to Mr. Amit Gupta, Director - Finance.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER that Mr. Amit Gupta along with other Working Directors be eligible to a commission of
1.5% of the net profits of the Company in addition to the remuneration mentioned above.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year, during the tenure of Mr. Amit Gupta, the Company
incurs a loss or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay to Mr. Amit Gupta, the above remuneration,
including other allowances/ perquisites subject to the limits specified under Section II of Schedule XIII of the
Companies Act, 1956 ( including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof, for the time being in
force) or such other limits as may be prescribed by the Government from time to time as minimum
remuneration.”
“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Remuneration Committee be authorized to review and fix monthly salary and also
to determine performance linked incentives including commission, either on quarterly, half yearly or yearly
basis, considering the maximum remuneration payable under provision of sec198 and Schedule XIII of the
Companies Act, 1956.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purposes of giving effect to the revised remuneration Ms. Ch.
Seshanuradha, Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed or considered necessary or desirable for
such purpose.”
13. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT, Pursuant to the provisions of section 198, 269, 309 and other applicable provisions, if any,
read with Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, the Members of the Company do and hereby approve,
with effect from September 1, 2007 till September 1, 2010 , enhancement in remuneration to Rs. 30 Lakhs
per anum, including other allowances/perquisites, payable to Mr. Navnit Chachan, Director R&D.
“RESOLVED FURTHER that Mr. Navnit Chachan along with other Working Directors be eligible to a
commission of 1.5% of the net profits of the Company in addition to the remuneration mentioned above.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year, during the tenure of Mr. Navnit Chachan, the
Company incurs a loss or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay to Mr. Navnit Chachan, the above
remuneration, including other allowances/ perquisites subject to the limits specified under Part II of Schedule
XIII of the Companies Act, 1956 ( including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof, for the time
being in force) or such other limits as may be prescribed by the Government from time to time as minimum
remuneration.
“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Remuneration Committee be authorized to review and fix monthly salary and also
to determine performance linked incentives including commission, either on quarterly, half yearly or yearly
basis, considering the maximum remuneration payable under provision of sec198 and Schedule XIII of the
Companies Act, 1956.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purposes of giving effect to the revised remuneration Ms. Ch.
Seshanuradha, Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed or considered necessary or desirable for
such purpose.”

AGM

14. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 81(1A), and all other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act 1956, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999 (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Guidelines”) and subject to such other approvals,
permissions and sanctions as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or imposed while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions and in super session of the
Special Resolution approving the ESOP Scheme- 2005, passed under item no. 4 by Members in the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on December 3 2005, the consent of the Members be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Board" which term
shall be deemed to include any Committee, including the Remuneration Committee which the Board has
constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers, conferred by this resolution), to create, offer, issue
and allot at any time to or to the benefit of such person(s) who are in permanent employment of the
Company, including any Director of the Company, whether whole time or otherwise, options exercisable into
not more than 25,00,000 equity shares of the Company under one or more Employee Stock Option
Scheme(s), in one or more tranches, and on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by
the Board in accordance with the provisions of the law or guidelines issued by the relevant Authority; each
Option would be exercisable for one Equity Share of a face value of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up on payment of
the requisite exercise price to the Company.
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate action (s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger
and sale of division and others, if any additional equity shares are issued by the Company to the Option
Grantees for the purpose of making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the options granted earlier, the above
ceiling of 25, 00,000 equity shares shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of such additional equity
shares issued.
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to issue and allot Equity Shares upon
exercise of options from time to time in accordance with the Employee Stock Option Scheme(s) and such
Equity shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing Equity Shares of the Company.
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case the equity shares of the Company are either sub-divided or consolidated,
then the number of shares to be allotted and the price of acquisition payable by the option grantees under the
schemes shall automatically stand augmented or reduced, as the case may be, in the same proportion as the
present face value of Rs. 2 per equity share bears to the revised face value of the equity shares of the
Company after such sub-division or consolidation, without affecting any other rights or obligations of the said
allottees.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to make modifications, changes,
variations, alterations or revisions in the said schemes as it may deem fit, from time to time in its sole and
absolute discretion in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company and any other applicable laws.
15. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 81(1A), and all other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act 1956, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such
other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and
modifications as may be prescribed or imposed while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions,
the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as "the Board" which term shall be deemed to include any Committee, including the Remuneration
Committee which the Board has constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers, conferred by this
resolution), to create, offer, issue and allot at any time to or to the benefit of such person(s) who are in
permanent employment of one or more subsidiaries of the Company, from time to time, including any
Director of the Company, whether whole time or otherwise, options exercisable into shares or securities
convertible into equity shares within the overall ceiling of 25,00,000 equity shares of the Company as
mentioned in Resolution No. 14 above, in one or more tranches, and on such terms and conditions as may
be fixed or determined by the Board in accordance with the provisions of the law or guidelines issued by the
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relevant Authority; each option would be exercisable for one Equity share of a face value of Rs.2 each fully
paid-up on payment of the requisite exercise price to the Company.

Place: Hyderabad

By Order of the Board of Directors
for Tanla Solutions Limited

Date: July 18 2007
Registered Office:
Tanla Technology Centre
Hitech City Road
Madhapur
Hyderabad - 500 081

Ch. Seshanuradha
Company Secretary

NOTES:
(a) An Explanatory Statement as required under section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of
business under Item Nos. 6 to 15 is annexed hereto.
(b) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE
COMPANIES ACT,1956.VOTING IS BY WAY OF SHOW OF HANDS UNLESS A POLL IS DEMANDED BY A MEMBER
OR MEMBERS PRESENT IN PERSON OR BY PROXY HOLDING AT LEAST ONE_TENTH OF THE TOTAL SHARES
ENTITLED TO VOTE ON THE RESOLUTION OR BY THOSE HOLDING PAID-UP CAPITAL OF AT LEAST Rs.50000.A
PROXY SHALL NOT VOTE EXCEPT ON A POLL.
(c) The instrument appointing the proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
(d) Members whose shareholding is in electronic mode are requested to direct change
of address notifications and updations of savings bank account details to their respective Depository Participants.
Members are requested to address all correspondences, including dividend matters, to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents, Karvy Computershare Private Limited, “Karvy House” 46, Avenue 4, Street No.1,Banjara Hills
Hyderabad – 500 034, Andhra Pradesh, India Tel.No.+91-40-23320251/23312454 Fax No. : +91-4023431551,E-mail: mailmanager@Karvy.com, Website: www.karvy.com
(e) Members wishing to claim dividends, which remain unclaimed, are requested to correspond with Ms. Ch.
Seshanuradha, Company Secretary, at the Company’s Registered Office. Members are requested to note that
dividends not en-cashed or claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid
Dividend Account will as per Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956, be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund.
(f) Members are encouraged to utilize the Electronic Clearing System (ECS) for receiving dividends. The
Company offers the facility of electronic credit of Dividend directly to the respective bank accounts of
shareholders, through Electronic Clearing Services (ECS). This facility is currently available at the locations
specified in the Mandate form separately enclosed in this Annual Report.
Place: Hyderabad

By Order of the Board of Directors

Date: July 18 2007

for Tanla Solutions Limited

Regd.Office
Tanla Technology Centre
Hi-tech City Road
Madhapur
Hyderabad - 500081

Sd/Ch. Seshanuradha
Company Secretary
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2)
As required under section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, (the Act) the following Explanatory Statement sets
out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item Nos.6 to 15 of the accompanying Notice
dated July 18 2007.
Item No: 6
Prof S. K. Palhan was appointed as a Director under Section 262 of the Company’s Act, to fill in the vacancy that
arose due to the resignation of Mr. Subir Mehra from the Board. Prof S. K. Palhan holds office up to the end of
this Annual General Meeting. A notice as required under section 257 of the Companies Act, 956 has been
received from a member proposing Prof S. K. Palhan‘s candidature for appointment as a Director along with a
sum of Rs.500 as deposit.
Profile:
Prof S. K. Palhan is an engineering graduate from I.I.T Kharagpur. He did his DIM & BA from FMS Delhi
University and Advanced Training in Industrial Management in Netherlands. He is the Founder Director of Sri
Sringeri Sharada Institute of Management, Vasant Vihar New Delhi (1996-1999), a Management Institute based
on the modern management technologies and the Indian value system .The President of Media 4community
foundation. He was formerly Industrial Adviser in the Ministry of Industries and Director on the Board of Traco
Cable Company (1990-1998). He is the Dean of Knowledge Network India, an institution conducting
management and I.T courses (MBA, MIT, BBS &BIT)apart from being the Vice President of the Vivekananda
Centre for Holistic Management.
He has taught courses on production and operations management, creativity, entrepreneurship, modeling
decision support, self managing teams, business ethics in FORE, IMI, KNI, Bhartiya Vidya Bhavan.
The Board recommends his appointment for your approval.
None of the Directors of the Company is interested in this resolution except Prof. S. K. Palhan.
Item No.7:
Pursuant to the Follow on Public Issue in December 2006, the equity shares of the Company are being traded on
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited apart from Hyderabad Stock
Exchange Limited (HSE), Madras Stock Exchange Limited (MSE) and Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited (ASE).
This has paved a better option to the shareholders of the Company who are now exposed to stock exchanges with
nation wide terminals.
As the shareholders do not derive any additional benefits by continuing to be listed on the regional stock
exchanges and also considering the fact that the equity shares are scantly traded on the HSE, MSE and ASE, the
Board of Directors accordingly recommends the resolution set out at item No.7 of the accompanying Notice for
the approval of the Members.
None of the Directors of the Company is interested in this resolution, except to the extent of their share holding.
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Item(s) no.8, 9, 10 11, 12 and 13
The Remuneration committee met on July 18 2007 and recommended an increase in remuneration payable to the
Working Directors of the Company, to meet the Industry standards. The said Directors are required to devote more
time and attention more so with the requirements of the revised Corporate Governance Policies. The Remuneration
Committee therefore recognizes the need to suitably remunerate the Directors of the Company who are in the
whole time appointment with such remuneration for a period of 3 years or end of the tenure of their appointment
which ever is earlier and in compliance with Sec 198, 309 and Schedule XIII and other applicable sections of the
Companies Act. The remuneration now proposed is in modification to the resolution passed earlier, in the general
meeting, in which the said Director was appointed.
The Board recommends passing of the Ordinary Resolutions as set out in Item(s) no. 8 to 13.
The contents of this explanatory note may be treated as the memorandum of abstract of variation as stipulated
under section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956.
None of the Directors of the Company is interested in this resolution except the Working Directors in respect of
their respective resolutions.
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE XIII OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956
Brief profile of the Directors for whom an enhancement in remuneration is recommended:
Name of
the Director

Profile

Mr. D. Uday Kumar
Reddy – Chairman &
Managing Director

Mr. Uday Reddy spearheads our global operations from our
headquarters at Hyderabad, India. He has been leading the
company in achieving growth in revenues
and profitability since its takeover from the earlier
promoters. He provides the Company
strategic insight, operational expertise and technological
and financial skills. He holds a Masters Degree in
Management from Manchester Business School in the UK.

Mr.Gautam Sabharwal Mr. Gautam Sabharwal is responsible for planning,
– Director Global
organizing and controlling our product/service lines from
Business Development conceptual stages through optimizing profits and meeting
Development marketing, financial and corporate growth
initiatives. He brings to the Company vast Telecom and
Services Industry experience. His experience includes
several years of running successful businesses in the
emerging telecom services markets of Europe. He has a
strong record of achievement in business development for
technology and results- oriented organizations. His quick
assessment and long-term strategy planning along with
knowledge of the core businesses of Tanla contributes to
the Company’s continued growth and expansion. He
previously worked with Infonetics, UK as a telecom research
analyst. He holds a Masters Degree in Management from
Westminster Business School, the UK.

Proposed Remuneration
Rs.48 Lakhs p.a and
Commission of 1.5%
to be shared with
other Working
Directors

Commission of 1.5%
to be shared with
other Working
Directors
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Mr. Satish Kathirisetti Mr. Satish Kathirisetti is responsible for product strategy
– Director & CTO
and technical direction of the company’s solutions. He
manages the company’s research and development teams.
He brings with him more than 12 years of experience in
Technology, Programming Philosophies and Domain
expertise in the areas of Telecom and Systems Engineering.
He started his career with Intergraph in 3D modeling engine
design and later moved to Windows-Linux interoperability.
group. He is dedicated to achievingexcellence in the
implementation of a strategic vision to advance technology
is his constant endeavor in excellence. With a proven track
record of designing and delivering mission critical systems,
he remains a source of inspiration for all at Tanla. Linux and
contributing to the Open Source Foundation remain his
passion. He holds a Masters degree in Engineering from
Madras Institute of Technology.

Rs.43 Lakhs p.a and
Commission of 1.5%
to be shared with
other Working
Directors

Mr. Amit Gupta –
Director-Finance

Mr. Amit Gupta leads the company’s Program Office and
worldwide Technology Solutions Group, which is dedicated
to deliver business value solutions that built around our core
Architecture technology. He has over 9 years of hands-on
experience in software engineering and ERP. He brings with
him extensive knowledge in the areas of BFSI and
Manufacturing. Before joining Tanla, he served as a
consultant with Ernst & Young and also with KPMG,
specializing in financial planning and information technology
consulting services for Global 2000 companies. He is also
one of the founders of Smartnet, an IT solutions company
started by a group of IIT engineers. His strengths lie in
requirement and gap analysis, project planning and
implementation. He holds a Bachelor of Technology degree
from Indian Institute of Technology, Delhi.

Rs.30 Lakhs p.a and
Commission of 1.5%
to be shared with
other Working
Directors

Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal is responsible for the company’s
– Director-Operations product delivery and operations. He has exposure to a wide
range of technologies. With over 6 years of experience in
object-oriented designs and enterprise software
development, he has worked on cutting-edge business
solutions employing multi-layered architecture designs and
applications development and deployment. He has been a
key member at SmartNet; an IT solutions company started
by a group of IIT engineers and has expertise in architectural
designs and applications development and deployment. He
holds a Bachelors Degree in Technology from Indian Institute
Technology Delhi and a Masters in Sociology from
Jawaharlal Nehru University.

Rs.30 Lakhs p.a and
Commission of 1.5%
to be shared with
other Working
Directors
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Mr.Navnit ChachanDirector – R&D

Mr. Navnit Chachan is responsible for all Systems and
Processes at the company and handles the Telematics and
Telemetry group. He has over 10 years of experience
Development in software engineering and systems. He has
worked extensively in designing, developing, implementing
and enhancing software programs in various operating
systems. Prior to joining Tanla, Navnit worked with Reliance
Industries Limited as a core team member of the ED’s
group. He was instrumental in setting up operation systems
at various sites and implementation of processes. He is also
one of the founders of SmartNet, an IT solutions company
started by a group of IIT engineers. He was the key driver
behind processes and was responsible for the company’s
ISO 9001:2000 certification. His expertise and passion is
Open source technologies. He holds a Bachelor of
Technology degree from Indian Institute of Technology, Delhi.

Rs.30 Lakhs p.a and
Commission of
1.5% to be shared
with other Working
Directors

Item No(s): 14 & 15
The Company appreciates the critical role its people play in the organizational growth. It strongly feels that the
value created by its people should be shared by them. To promote the culture of employee ownership in the
company, approval of the shareholders is being sought for issue of stock options to the employees of the
company and employees of the subsidiary companies including step-down subsidiary companies:
The main features of the employee stock option schemes are as under:
1. Total number of options to be granted:
A total of 25,00,000 (Twenty Five Lakhs) options would be available for being granted to eligible employees of
the Company and its one ore more subsidiaries from time to time under ESOP Scheme(s). Each option when
exercised would be converted into one Equity share of Rs.2/- each fully paid-up.
Vested options that lapse due to non-exercise or unvested options that get cancelled due to resignation of the
employees or otherwise, would be available for being re-granted at a future date.
A fair and reasonable adjustment needs to be made to the options granted in case of any corporate action (s)
such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger and sale of division and others. Accordingly, if any additional
equity shares are issued by the Company to the Options Grantees for making such fair and reasonable
adjustment, the ceiling of 25, 00, 000 equity shares shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of such
additional equity shares issued.
2. Identification of classes of employees entitled to participate in the Employee Stock Option
Scheme(s):
All permanent employees of the company and its one or more subsidiaries from time to time, including the
Directors but excluding an employee who is a promoter or belongs to the promoter group of the Company and
a director who by himself or through his relative or through any body corporate, directly or indirectly holds
more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the Company, as may be decided by the Remuneration
Committee from time to time, would be entitled to be granted stock options under the ESOP Scheme(s).
3. Transferability of employee stock options
The stock options granted to an employee will not be transferable to any person and shall not be pledged,
hypothecated, mortgaged or otherwise alienated in any manner. However, in the event of the death of an
employee stock option holder while in employment, the right to exercise all the options granted to him till
such date shall be transferred to his legal heirs or nominees.
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4. Requirements of vesting and period of vesting:
The Options granted shall vest so long as the employee continues to be in the employment of the Company.
The Remuneration Committee may, at its discretion, lay down certain performance metrics on the achievement
of which the granted options would vest, the detailed terms and conditions relating to such performance-based
vesting, and the proportion in which options granted would vest (subject to the maximum vesting period as
specified below).
The options would vest not earlier than one year and not later than five years from the date of grant of options.
The exact proportion in which and the exact period over which the options would vest would be determined by
the Remuneration Committee, subject to the maximum vesting period of five year from the date of grant of
options.
5. Exercise Price:
The Remuneration Committee shall grant options at either of the following prices:
a. At a discount of 10% on the latest available closing market price prior to the date of grant of the shares
of the Company on the exchange having the highest trading volume.
OR
b. At a discount of 20% on the latest available closing market price prior to the date of grant of the shares of
the Company on the exchange having the highest trading volume.
OR
c. The latest available closing market price prior to the date of grant of the shares of the Company on the
exchange having the highest trading volume.
OR
d. Rs.400/- (Rupees Four Hundred Only)
OR
e. Rs.300/-(Rupees Three Hundred Ony)
6. Exercise Period and the process of Exercise:
The Exercise period would commence from the date of vesting and will expire on completion of three years
from the date of vesting.
The options will be exercisable by the Employees by a written application to the Company to exercise the
options in such manner, and on execution of such documents, as may be prescribed by the Remuneration
Committee from time to time. The options will lapse if not exercised within the specified exercise period.
7. Appraisal Process for determining the eligibility of the employees to ESOP:
The appraisal process for determining the eligibility of the employee will be specified by the Remuneration
Committee, and will be based on criteria such as role / designation of the employee, length of service with the
Company, past performance record, future potential of the employee and/or such other criteria that may be
determined by the Remuneration Committee at its sole discretion.
8. Maximum number of options to be issued per employee and in aggregate:
The number of options that may be granted to any specific employee under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of
the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at the time of grant of
options.
9 Disclosure and Accounting Policies:
The Company shall comply with the disclosure and the accounting policies prescribed as per applicable laws.
10. Method of option valuation
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To calculate the employee compensation cost, the Company shall use the Intrinsic Value Method for valuation
of the options granted.
In case the Company calculates the employee compensation cost using the Fair Value of the stock options, the
difference between the employee compensation cost so computed and the cost that shall have been recognized if
it had used the Fair Value of the options, shall be disclosed in the Directors’ Report and also the impact of this
difference on profits and on EPS of the Company shall also be disclosed in the Directors’ Report.
As the employee stock option schemes provide for issue of shares to be offered to persons other than existing
shareholders of the company, consent of the members is being sought pursuant to Section 81(1A) and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act.
None of the Directors of the Company are in any way, concerned or interested in the resolution, except to the
extent of the securities that may be offered to them under the scheme.
Place: Hyderabad

By Order of the Board of Directors

Date: July 18 2007

For Tanla Solutions Limited

Registered Office:
Tanla Technology Centre
Hitech City Road
Madhapur
Hyderabad - 500081

Sd/-

Ch. Seshanuradha
Company Secretary

Brief Profile of Directors to be appointed / re-appointed:
Name of
the Director

Date of the Birth

Expertise in
specific
functional areas

Qualifications

Directorships in
other companies/
organizations

Padmabhushan Ram
Narain Agarwal

24th July 1941

Program
Director- MissileAgni

Masters Degree in
Agni Renewable
Engineering, from
Energies Ltd
Aero-Indian Institute
of Science, Bangalore

Mr. Shrikanth Madan
Chitnis

21st June 1930

Retd. General
Manager IDBI Bank.

M.A, LLB, MBA and
CAIIB

Prof S. K. Palhan

30th December 1942 Dean of Knowledge
Network India and
Vice President of the
Vivekananda Centre for
Holistic Management.
And President of
Media 4community
Foundation

No. of shares held by
the Director
177

M/s. Pudumjee Paper NIL
Mills Ltd

Engineering graduate NIL
from IIT Kharagpur.
DIM & BA from FMS
Delhi University and
Advanced Training in
Industrial Management
in Netherlands

NIL
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ECS MANDATE FORM
Electronic Clearing Service (Credit Clearing)
Members' authorization to receive dividends through Electronic Credit Clearing Mechanism
1. Name of the first/sole shareholder:
2. Folio No./DP ID No and Client ID No. :
3. Particulars of Bank account of first/sole shareholder:
a) Name of the Bank:
b) Branch, Address, Telephone No. of the Branch:
c) 9 digit code number of the Bank and Branch
appearing on the MICR cheque issued by the Bank:
d) Account Number:
(as appearing on the cheque book/passbook)
e) Account type:
(Saving / Current / Cash Credit Account)
f) Ledger No. /Ledger folio no.:
(If appearing on the cheque book/pass book)
I hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If the transaction is delayed or not
effected at all for reasons of incomplete or incorrect information, I will not hold M/s.Tanla Solutions Limited
responsible. I agree to discharge the responsibility expected of me as a participant under the scheme.
Place:........................................................
Date:........................................................

Signature of the First / Sole Shareholder

163

164

Note:
1. Please fill in the Mandate Form and send it to:
i) The Depository Participant who is maintaining your Demat account in case you hold shares electronically
with a copy to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agents at the address given below, in case there are any
changes in your bank particulars
ii) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent: in case you hold shares in Physical form.
Karvy Computershare Private Limited,
Unit: (Tanla Solutions Limited)
“Karvy House” 46, Avenue 4, Street No.1,
Banjara Hills Hyderabad – 500 034
Andhra Pradesh, India
Tel.No.+91-40-23320251/23312454
Fax No. : +91-40-23431551
E-mail: mailmanager@karvy.com
Website: www.karvy.com
2. Please attach a blank cancelled cheque or photocopy of a cheque. Alternatively, the above
particulars may be attested by your bank manager.
3. In case of more than one folio / demat account please complete details on separate sheets
4. The information provided by you will be treated confidential and would be utilized only for the purpose of
effecting the payments meant for you. You also have a right to withdraw from this mode of payment by
providing the company with an advance notice of 3 weeks. At present the Reserve Bank of India at the
following centres makes the ECS facility available: Ahmedabad, Bangalore, Bhubhaneshwar, Chennai,
Chandigarh, Guwahati, Hyderabad, Jaipur, Kolkata, Kanpur, Mumbai, New Delhi, Nagpur, Patna
and Trivandrum.
5. The members located at other than the above list of centres will continue to receive the Dividend Warrants
with bank details, despite ECS Mandate.
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Registered Office: Tanla Technology Centre, Hitech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad-500081
Regd. Folio / Client ID No.

No. of Shares

Attendance Form
11th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
I certify that I am Member / Proxy for the member of the Company.
I hereby accord my presence at the 11th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Wednesday August 29,
2007, at 10:30 am at Hyderabad International Convention Centre, Novotel & HICC Complex, Near Hi-tech City,
Cyberabad Post Office, Hyderabad – 500 081

-----------------------------Signature of the Member/Proxy
Note:
1. Please sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the Attendance Verification Counter at the Entrance of the
Meeting Hall.
2. This Attendance is valid only in case shares are held on the date of the Meeting.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Registered Office: Tanla Technology Centre, Hitech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad-500081
Regd. Folio / Client ID No.

No. of Shares

Proxy form
11th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
I/We …………………………………………… of ……………………………………. being Member(s)
of M/s. TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED hereby appoint
Mr./ Mrs. …………………………………………………………………………………… of
…………………………………………………………………… or failing which
Mr./ Mrs. ……………………………………………………of
…………………………………………as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the
11th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday August 29, 2007 at 10:30 am,
at Hyderabad International Convention Centre, Novotel & HICC Complex, Near Hi-tech City, Cyberabad Post
Office, Hyderabad – 500 081 and any adjournment thereof.
Signed this ……………… day of …………………. 2007
Affix Re.0.15/Revenue
Stamp

Signature of the Member
Note:
(a) The Proxy Form signed across revenue stamp must be deposited at Registered Office of the Company at Tanla
Technology Centre, Hitech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad -500081.not less than 48 hours before the meeting.
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NOTES

NOTES

2007
Tanla lists on premier
stock exchanges NSE, BSE, in
addition to existing listings
Tanla Solutions records growth
in revenues and profitability with
Consolidated total income increasing
by 262.8% Y-O-Y and
net profit by 206% Y-O-Y
Tanla Solutions pays
an interim dividend of 100%
in March,
compared with 25% in the
previous year

2006
2005

Company’s Follow-on Public Offer in December

Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
acquires Mobizar Limited
(Now known as Tanla Mobile Limited) as
wholly owned subsidiary in September

Establishes business relationships with renowned
telecom operators like Vodafone, 02, Orange

2004
Acquires two companies as
wholly-owned subsidiaries:

Starts Research and Development on Telemetry

2003
SS7 VMS implementation

2002

Implements High-Density
Media Servers

Implements ORS

Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited
(formerly known as Techserv
Teleservices)
and
Smartnet Communication Systems
in December

Starts Research and Development
on SS7-based voice mail server

2001
First SMSC implementation
Starts research and development
on Optimal Routing Solutions
(ORS)

2000
On 16th March, the Company
changes its name to
Tanla Solutions Limited
Starts research and development
on SMSC and WAP Gateway

1999
Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy
and Associates take over
management control

Tanla Solutions Limited,
Tanla Technology Centre,
Hitech City Road,
Hyderabad 500 081,
Andhra Pradesh, India.
Tel: + 91 40 40099999
Fax: + 91 40 23122999
E-mail: ir@tanlasolutions.com
Web: www.tanlasolutions.com

Tanla Solutions (UK) Limited,
5th Floor, 39 Charing Cross Road,
London WC2H OAR,
United Kingdom.
Tel: +44 (0) 20 7494 5600
Fax: +44 (0) 20 7494 5601
E-mail: ir@tanlasolutions.com

Tanla Mobile Inc.
691, State Highway 33,
Trenton,
New Jersey 08619,
United States of America.
E-mail: ir@tanlasolutions.com

